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Corporate Profile
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Established in Hong Kong, one of the world's most vibrant global metropolises, Guotai
Junan International Holdings Limited (“Guotai Junan International” or “the Company”
or "the Group” or “We") serves as a bridge to connect enterprises and investors in
China and the world. We provide channels for Chinese investors to access intemational
capital markets while at the same time enable international investors to gain access to the

dynamic growth of the Chinese markets.

We are a subsidiary of Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited (“Guotai Junan”), one
of the China’s largest securities houses, predominantly owned by Shanghai International
Group Company Limited. Backed by the strong operational support, we are the
designated international flagship company of Guotai Junan, serving as the gateway for

international expansion of Guotai Junan.

Today Guotai Junan Intemnational enjoys a host of tremendous growth opportunities and
is well positioned to participate in capital markets expansion in Hong Kong. We have
unparalleled access to our controlling shareholder's extensive business networks, not just

in China but globally.

Guotai Junan International is the first Mainland-owned securities brokerage house with
China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC") approval to list its shares through initial
public offering (“IPO") on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange"). Established in Hong Kong in 1995, we provide our services in 5 core
business areas: (i) dealing and broking in securities, futures and leveraged foreign exchange,
(i) corporate finance, (iii) asset management, (iv) loans and financing and (v) investment
holding. By means of a sophisticated internet platform, we are able to provide our
clients with comprehensive services on global securities, derivative and leveraged foreign
exchange trading, IPO subscriptions, margin financing, stock quotes, market news and
research reports, etc. Our team of dedicated professionals, who have in-depth knowledge
and understanding of both China and Hong Kong capital markets, has established a solid
reputation for providing a wide range of high quality corporate finance solutions to our

clients in Hong Kong, China and across the world.

We have proudly provided our clients with a superb range of high quality financial services
through some of the most turbulent economic periods in history. Looking into the future,
we will continue to expand and invest in our existing platforms and customer profiles,
and become a major regional financial services conglomerate. We will commit ourselves
to assist our clients in making proper judgments in different market conditions while

upholding our service commitment with integrity, client focus, expertise and innovation.
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1995

1997

2001

2003

2004

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited was incorporated.

Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited became a member of the Stock

Exchange and commenced business.

Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited commenced business.

Online trading platform for Hong Kong securities was launched.
Online trading platform for futures business was launched.

Completed sponsorship and IPO fund raising in Hong Kong for the first pilot

company whose A Shares were listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Our first SFC authorized fund: Guotai Junan Investment Funds — Guotai Junan

Greater China Growth Fund was launched.

Completed sponsorship and IPO fund raising in Hong Kong for the first
pilot company whose A and B Shares were listed on the Shenzhen Stock

Exchange.

Online trading platform for United States securities was launched.

CSRC approval on China B shares trading qualification obtained.

CSRC approval for Hong Kong listing obtained.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited was incorporated and listed on

the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Guotai Junan FX Limited commenced leveraged foreign exchange trading

service.

Level | American Depository Receipt program was launched.
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2012 We launched our first RQFII fund: Guotai Junan Great Dragon RMB Funds —

Guotai Junan Great Dragon China Fixed Income Fund.

Completed conversion of the B share into H share and the listing of H share

on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of a Chinese enterprise.

2013 We launched our first public fund in Luxembourg: White Fleet — Guotai

Junan Sunrise Emerging Market Fixed Income Total Retum Fund.

6 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Fee and commission income W& RmEeBA
— dealing and broking -~ BERBEER
— corporate finance —hERE
— asset management -BEER
Income from loans and financing ERKBERA
Gain from investment holding REZEBYE
Revenue Yo zs
Other income Hit A
Revenue and other income W K EL A A
Profit for the year FERRF
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company A2 7] A A B (5 & F
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BREREF GBI
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) EikEERNGEIL)
Dividend per share (HK cents) BARRS (B
Net asset value per share (HKS$) (Note) BREEFECGET) (M)

Note:  Based on 1,709,296,000 shares (2012: 1,626,889,000 shares) as at 31 December 2013,
being 1,727,650,000 shares issued and fully paid less 18,354,000 shares held under the
Company's share award scheme (2012: 1,640,000,000 shares issued and fully paid less

13,111,000 shares held under the Company's share award scheme).

For the year ended 31

December
BZ+=-A=t+-H
HFE
2013 2012 Change
—EF-=% T F b))
HK$’000 HK$'000 %
TER TET Bl
264,533 42.5%
156,988 -4.7%
31,387 0.6%
276,149 44.1%
57,513 209.2%
786,570 44.2%
4,170 29.8%
790,740 44.1%
307,150 75.1%
307,003 74.7%
18.8 67.0%
18.8 65.4%
10 60%
2.09 10.0%

Mzr: BER-_Z—=F#+-A=+—8H
91709296000/ & (= T — = &
1,626,889,000 % B% 7 ) + B 1,727,650,000 %
BT R AR B A7 7 & 18,354,000 AR 4R 1%
RRRRMEEFTEFENRG(ZE—=
% 1 1,640,000,000 f% B 277 R 41 2 B% 17 R
13,111,000 R AR A2 A AR 1 22 B &t 3
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A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years is set our below:

RESULTS
LS

For the year ended 3| December

BE+t-A=t—-HLEE

AREREDFNTEXERBEERAER
ZHHIWT

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=f T ZT——F ZT-TF ZTThF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHEL FHT FAT FHL
Revenue and other income Wz K HoAth e A 1,139,368 790,740 703,154 658,094 587,085
Profit before tax B A58 A A 619,526 355,402 330,235 288407 271,848
Profit from continuing operations ~ # B A% & E #% F 537,758 307,150 287,448 252,624 244,040
Profit attributable to equity RRARIRIERE AL E T
holders of the company 536,398 307,003 287,706 250,685 298307
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EEHEE
As at 31 December
W+=A=+-H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
“B-=F ZT——-F ZT——F ZT-TF ZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx FHT FAT FAT FHT
Loans and advances to customers BN E P8I 6005392 3058102 2064215 1975894 860,731
Financial asset at fair value through &2 F{EFT ABE A
profit or loss EMEE 983,717 482,220 150,716 84,099 92,567
Cash and cash equivalent RekReEED 485,295 384,554 661,856 441,631 460,284
Client trust bank balances BPEERITEH 7,966,841 5883941 6121768 5874971 5679243
Other current assets HiREEE 1,020,404 1,130,404 354711 947,553 341,724
Other non-current assets HihIERBEE 525,092 547516 648,198 651512 360,382
Total assets BELRE 16,986,741 11486737 10001464 9975660 779493l
Bank and other borrowings RITRE BT (3,710819)  (825820)  (200,000) —  (500,000)
Other liabilities Hih B & (9,328,605) (7261,152)  (6,569,446)  (6903311)  (6,109,673)
Non-controlling interests TR = (7,677) (6317) (6,170) (6428) (4,489)
Shareholders’ fund BEES 3939640 3393448 3225848 3065921 1,180,769

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to report to you that the Group outperformed the market in the year 2013
with better-than-expected results, which accomplished an exciting significant growth

compared with the corresponding period last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the revenue of the Group reached HK$1.134
billion, representing a leap of 44.2%, while the profit after tax recorded a substantial

increase of 75.1% from the previous year to a record high at HK$538 million.

The Board of Directors has recommended the payment of a final dividend of |3 HK cents
per share (2012: 7 HK cents). Together with the interim dividend of 3 HK cents per share
(2012: 3 HK cents), the aggregate dividend for the year will be 16 HK cents per share
(2012: 10 HK cents).

RESULTS REVIEW

In 2013, the trend of economic recovery was basically established in the United States,
while the economy in Europe underwent a slow recovery. The Chinese economy
achieved a stable growth even though it was in the process of structural adjustments.
Upward momentum was observed in global capital markets. As at 31 December 2013,
the Hang Seng Index closed at 23,306.39 points, which concluded the whole year with a
slight rise of 3%. The number of companies newly listed in the primary market of Hong
Kong increased by 72% year on year to |10 and funds raised from IPOs amounted to
HK$166.5 billion, up 85% year on year . The secondary market was picking up with the
average daily tumnover of HK$62.6 billion, representing a 16% rise from the same period

last year.

Under the landscape of the global market recovery, the Group accelerated the
development of its brokerage, loan and financing, corporate financing and investment

businesses.
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As the core businesses of the Group, the global dealing and broking operations achieved a
surge in their income in 2013. The income from the brokerage business grew considerably
by 42.5% compared with the previous year and that was far beyond the 6% increase
in the average daily turnover of the market. The advanced and efficient online trading
platform of the Group supports tradings in 9 stock markets, namely, Hong Kong, the
United States, Japan, the United Kingdom, Canada, Singapore, Taiwan and the B share
markets of Shanghai and Shenzhen, and 21 futures markets as well as leveraged foreign
exchange trading in 8 currency pairs and 2| cross currency pairs, including offshore
renminbi. The said platform has been extensively endorsed by our clients and the market.
Currently, more than 90% of the clients of the Group came from Mainland China. The

number of new client accounts opened exceeded 10,000 in 2013.

To support the rapid growth in the brokerage operations, the Group has been innovating
its loans and financing business with increased capital investment. As a result, a rapid
increase in interest income from loans and financing was secured, and such income has
become one of the most important income sources of the Group. In 2013, the interest

income rose significantly by 44.1% compared with the previous year.

In 2013, the Group established an investment committee to strengthen the planning and
management of its investment operations, whose income surged by 209.2% from the

previous year and has become an important impetus for the income growth of the Group.

Besides, the Group accomplished a swift growth in the fixed-income business in 2013,

while its corporate financing and asset management operations delivered good results.

Apart from facilitating the rapid income growth, we also enhanced our cost and expense
management, which led our cost-to-income ratio to decrease from 55% in 2012 to 46%

in 2013, effectively boosting our operating efficiency.

10 GUOTAIJUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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LOOKING FORWARD

Looking into 2014, we anticipate that the pace of recovery in the United States and
Europe will accelerate, providing global economic development with growth opportunities.
On the other hand, as a result of the recovery in the United States economy and stock
market, the phasing out of the quantitative easing policy, U.S. dollar appreciation and
increasing capital inflow into developed markets, there would be impacts on the capital
markets of developing countries. In China, from a domestic perspective, there is a time
lag in the actual efficacy of the reform measures deepened by the government, and the
benefits of reform will need a longer time to be reflected and realized. Therefore, it is

expected that the securities market of Hong Kong will grow amid corrections in 2014.

Against this backdrop, the Group is prudently optimistic about the market development
in Hong Kong in 2014. We will continue to rely on the strong reputation, broad client
base and diversified investment product portfolio of Guotai Junan, the parent company
of the Group and one of the largest securities firms in Mainland China, to strengthen
synergy and interaction between us. We will actively consolidate the Group's advantages
in cross-border operations and continue to promote our strategy of business and market
diversification. In addition, the Group will leverage on the convenience, efficiency and
functionality of its integrated trading platform to encourage and assist clients in their
global asset allocation. The above actions will ensure that the Group will maintain stable

development and growth in an ever-changing economic environment.

In 2014, the Group will increase its financing capability, capital reserves, operating capability
for large-scale investment and financing projects, ability to respond to market volatility and
profitability. The Group will also enhance its corporate finance, debt financing as well as
asset and wealth management businesses with a view to driving a steady and fast growth

in its income and revenue.
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As the offshore business platform and the start for the internationalization of our parent
company, the Group will fully leverage its advantages in development strategy, core
talent, risk control and information technology to establish core competitiveness, keep
on improvement and innovation, enrich product and service, broaden its client base and
optimize the income structure. We are committed to developing ourselves into a leading
international investment bank in the Asia Pacific region and will do our every best to

maximize the values for our shareholders.

Dr. YIM Fung, JP
Chairman

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited

|3 March 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed to maintain a high
standard of corporate governance practices within the Group and has adopted various
measures to ensure the maintenance of a high standard. The Company has adopted the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as its own code of
corporate govemance during the year ended 31 December 2013. For the year ended 3|
December 2013, the Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out in
the CG Code, except the deviation from provision A2.1 of the CG Code as mentioned

below:

Code Provision A2.| provides that the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. The Company
deviates from this provision because Dr. YIM Fung has been performing both the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 24 August 2012. The
Directors consider that vesting two roles in the same person provides the Group with
strong and consistent leadership in the development and execution of the Group's
business strategies and is beneficial to the Group. Although the responsibilities of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are vested in one person, all major decisions
are made in consultation with the Board members and the senior management of the
Company. There are three Independent Non-Executive Directors in the Board. The
Directors consider that there is sufficient balance of power and the current arrangement

maintains a strong management position of the Company.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate governance of the Company to
ensure that formal and transparent procedures are in place to protect and maximize the

interests of the shareholders of the Company.

This report sets out a detailed discussion of the corporate governance practices adopted
and observed by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2013 (the “Review
Period").
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board believes that a well-balanced corporate governance structure will enable
the Company to better manage its business risks and thereby ensure the Company
is run in the best interests of its shareholders and other stakeholders. The Board is
primarily responsible for formulating overall strategic plans and key policies of the
Group, monitoring its financial performance, maintaining effective oversight over the
management, risks assessment, controls over business operations and ensuring good
corporate govemance and compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. The Board
members are fully committed to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximise the

shareholders' value in the long run.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of 7 Directors:

Executive Directors: Dr. YIM Fung (Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. LI Guangjie

Mr. LI Sang, Edward

Mr. WONG Tung Ching

Independent Dr. FU Tingmei
Dr. SONG Ming

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung

Non-executive Directors:

The list of Directors of the Company and their roles and functions is posted on the

websites of the Company (www.gtja.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors are all with well recognised experience and
expertise in accounting or other fields who can provide valuable advice to the Board.
They were appointed for an initial term of three years commencing from 19 June 2010

and renewed for a further term of three years in 2013.

There is no relationship between members of the Board. Pursuant to the requirement
of the Listing Rules, the Company has received a written confirmation from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors of his independence to the Company. The
Company considers that all the Independent Non-executive Directors were independent

in accordance with the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 201 3.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. YIM Fung has been performing both the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer since 24 August 2012. Dr. YIM joined the Group in 2000 and has been responsible
for the overall business management of the Group, he has over 22 years' experience
in the securities industry. The Directors consider that vesting of two roles in the same
person provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership in the development
and execution of the Group's business strategies and is beneficial to the Group. Although
the responsibilities of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are vested in one person,
all major decisions are made in consultation with the Board members and the senior
management of the Company. There are three Independent Non-executive Directors in
the Board, the Directors consider that there is sufficient balance of power and the current

arrangement maintains a strong management position of the Company.

Board Process

Full board meets in person no less than 4 times a year. Notice of at least 14 days is given
for a regular board meeting so as to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Agenda
and accompanying board papers for each meeting are circulated in full to all Directors
before the meeting. Senior management executives may, from time to time, be invited to
attend the board meetings for making presentation and/or answering any queries that may

be raised by the Board.

The Company Secretary will assist the Board in setting agenda for meetings, and each
Director of the Company is given an opportunity to include any matters to be transacted
in the agenda. Where any Director is considered to be having a conflict of interest in any
transactions, the Director concemed will not be counted in the quorum of the relevant
meeting. Minutes of meetings of the Board and the respective board committees are
recorded in details. All draft minutes are circulated to all those present at the meetings for

comments before submission to the chairman of the meetings for approval.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013, 4 board meetings were held and the individual

attendance of each Director is set out below:

Name of Director

EEpg

Dr. YIM Fung ke

Mr. YAO Wei (resigned on thEEER_T—=
| September 2013) NA—BEE)

Mr. LI Guangjie ERANEE

Mr. LI Sang, Edward THEESE

Mr. WONG Tung Ching LERE

Dr. FU Tingmei BEXEL

Dr. SONG Ming REEL

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung BRELE

Board meetings were held to discuss the business strategies of the Group, monitor
financial and operational performance, approve the annual and interim results of the
Group, discuss the corporate governance functions of the Board, review the Group's
policies and practices in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and review

the codes applicable to directors and employees.

During the year, a meeting of the Chairman and the Independent Non-executive
Directors without presence of the Executive Directors and the management was held to
discuss and review the performance of the Executive Directors and the management, and

the adequacy of systems and controls in place to safeguard the interests of the Group.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors has entered
into a service agreement or a letter of appointment with the Company for a specific term.
Such term is subject to re-election by the Company at an annual general meeting (“AGM")
upon retirement. In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, one-
third of the Directors or, if the number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, will retire from office by rotation and every
Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years. The Directors to retire every year will be those who have been longest in

office since their last re-election or appointment.
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Directors’ Training and Professional Development
The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended 31 December

2013 is set out below:

Name of Director

EspA

Executive Directors HITEE

Dr. YIM Fung 3

Mr. LI Guangjie FRAEE

Mr. LI Sang, Edward e

Mr. WONG Tung Ching TLERE
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHNTEF
Dr. FU Tingmei BiEEmL

Dr. SONG Ming REEL

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung Bigarat

Notes: A = attending seminar

B = delivering speech
Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties, including:

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if

any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e)  to review the Company's compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

(Corporate Governance Code).
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Under the Board, there are 3 board committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. All these committees perform their distinct roles
in accordance with their respective terms of reference and assist the Board in supervising

certain functions of the senior management.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Board was established on 19 June 2010. The Committee

comprises only Independent Non-executive Directors:

Independent Non-executive Directors: Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung (Chairman)
Dr. FU Tingmei

Dr. SONG Ming

The Chairman of the Committee has professional accounting qualification. The Committee
reviews financial information of the Group, monitors the effectiveness of the external audit
and oversees the appointment, remuneration and terms of engagement of the Company's
external auditor, as well as their independence. The Committee will meet regularly to
review financial reporting process, all business affairs managed by the Executive Directors
in particular on connected transactions and continuing connected transactions, if any, to
review the interim and final financial statements before their submission to the Board and
the annual general meeting for approval and to review the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management system of the Group, including the intemnal audit function.
A copy of the terms of reference of the Committee has been posted on the Company's

website (www.gtja.comhk) and the Stock Exchange's website.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Committee met on 4 occasions and the

individual attendance of the Committee members is set out below:

Name of Director

Esng

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung BRELE
Dr. FU Tingmei BEEdL
Dr. SONG Ming REEL
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During the year, the Committee has considered the external auditor's proposed audit
fees, discussed with the external auditor their independence and the nature and scope of
the audit, reviewed the interim and annual financial statements of the Group, particularly
judgmental areas, before submission to the Board, reviewed the internal control system
and the internal audit plan, findings and management’s response, reviewed the Group's
adherence to the code provisions in the Code. The Committee recommended the Board

to adopt the interim and annual financial statements for 201 3.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee was established on 19 June 2010. The Committee

currently comprises 4 Directors:

Independent Non-executive Directors:  Dr. FU Tingmei (Chairman)
Dr. SONG Ming
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung

Executive Director: Dr. YIM Fung

The responsibilities of the Committee include setting remuneration policy of the Group
and fixing remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and the Board as a whole
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of the Company. No
Directors can determine their own remuneration packages. The Committee will meet at
least once a year to discharge its responsibilities in accordance with its terms of reference
which has been posted on the Company’s website. The Committee is provided with the
sufficient resources to discharge its duties. The Chairman of the Committee will report
their findings and recommendations to the Board for consideration and approval. The full
terms of reference of the Committee are available on the Company's website (www.gtja.

comhk) and the Stock Exchange's website.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Committee held | meeting to review and
discuss remuneration matters of the Group. The individual attendance of the Committee

members is set out below:

Name of Director

EspA

Dr. FU Tingmei BEEdL
Dr. SONG Ming REEL
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung Bigakat
Dr. YIM Fung HEET

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee was established on 19 June 2010. The Committee currently

comprises 3 Directors:

Independent Non-executive Directors:  Dr. SONG Ming (Chairman)
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung

Executive Director: Dr. YIM Fung

The primary responsibilities of the Committee are, amongst other things, to make
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors and succession planning
for the Directors. The full terms of reference of the Committee are available on the

Company's website (www.gtjacom.hk) and the Stock Exchange's website.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Committee held | meeting to review and
discuss appointment and succession planning of Directors. The individual attendance of

the Committee members is set out below:

Name of Director

EEps

Dr. SONG Ming REEL
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung BRELE
Dr. YIM Fung ke

DELEGATION TO THE MANAGEMENT

The management team of the Company (the “Management”) is led by the Executive
Directors of the Board and has been delegated powers and authorities to carry out the
day-to-day management and operation of the Group, formulate business policies, make
decision on key business issues and exercise power and authority delegated by the Board
from time to time. The Management assumes full accountability to the Board for the

operation of the Group.

The Company has clear direction on the Board's delegation of powers to the

Management. Some powers are reserved to the Board, including but not limited to:

- Publication of final and interim results of the Company;
- Proposing dividend distribution to the shareholders’ meeting;

- Major issues of treasury policy, accounting policy and remuneration policy;

- Review on internal control system and risk management;

- Changes to major group structure or Board composition;

- Proposed transaction requiring shareholders’ approval (e.g. connected transaction,
notifiable transaction, etc.); and

- Capital restructuring and issue of new securities of the Company.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare financial statements for each financial
period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing
these financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and
estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group.
Prior to the adoption of the financial statements and the related accounting policies,
the relevant financial information is discussed between the external auditor and the

management, and then submitted to the Audit Committee for review.

External Auditors
During the year ended 31 December 2013, Emst & Young was appointed as the external
auditors of the Group. The remuneration paid/payable to the external auditor is set out as

follows:

Services rendered

Friz AR

Audit services ZH R
Interim review i HiEE

Tax and other services i1 e Eo At AR 7%

Internal Control
The Board has the ultimate responsibility to maintain an adequate system of internal

control and review its effectiveness.

The internal control system is designed to facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency
of operations, safeguard assets against unauthorised use and disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records and the truth and fairness of the financial
statements, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations. It provides
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss rather than

elimination of risks associated with business activities.
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For the year ended 3| December 2013, the Audit Committee, as delegated by the Board,
has reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's internal controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management. It has also considered
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and

financial reporting functions and their training programs and budgets.

In addition, the Internal Auditor of the Company conducts regular and independent
reviews of the effectiveness of the Group's internal control system. The Audit Committee
reviews the findings and opinion of the Internal Auditor on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control system and reports to the Board on such reviews.

The Board also annually reviews the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the
Group and the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group's

accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programs and budget.

The Board is of the view that the system of intemal controls in place for the year under
review and up to the date of issuance of this annual report is sound and is sufficient
to safeguard the interests of shareholders, customers and employees, and the Group's
assets. The resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group's accounting and

financial functions, and their training programs and budget are adequate.

Internal Audit

The Company has an independent internal audit team, which plays a major role in
monitoring the corporate governance of the Group and providing objective assurance
to the Board that a sound internal control system is maintained and operated by the
management. The head of the internal audit team directly reports to the Board and the
Audit Committee on audit matters. By adopting a risk-based approach to evaluate risk
level on control environment, the internal audit team makes their audit schedules annually
in consultation with, but independent of, the Management, and the audit plan is submitted
to the Audit Committee for approval. On a quarterly basis, the head of the interal audit
team will present a report and express an opinion to the Audit Committee on the internal
control environment of the Group. The annual audit work plan covers major activities and
processes of the Group's operating business. Moreover, ad hoc reviews will be performed

on specific areas of concern identified by the Audit Committee and the management.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct for securities transactions by the Directors. The Company had made specific
enquiry of all Directors regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code. All Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards as set out in the Model

Code for the year ended 31 December 201 3.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with all shareholders. The
Company encourages two-way communications with both its institutional and private
investors. Extensive information about the Company's activities is provided on its website
(www.gtja.com.hk) and in its interim report and this annual report which are sent to
shareholders of the Company. The annual general meeting provides a valuable forum
for direct communication between the Board and the Company's shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as Chairmen of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration
Committees together with the external auditor are present to answer shareholders'
questions. The annual general meeting circulars are distributed to all shareholders at least
20 clear business days before the meeting. Separate resolutions are proposed at general
meetings on each separate issue and voting of which is taken by poll pursuant to the
Listing Rules. Any results of the poll are published on the Company's website and the
Stock Exchange's website. All corporate communication with shareholders will be posted

on the Company's website (www.gtja.com.hk) for shareholders’ information.
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“E-CERRBEAEER-T-=F1A
NART - BEESMHECEHFINT :

The 2013 annual general meeting was held on 9 May 2013. The attendance record of the

Directors at the meeting is set out below:

Name of Director

Attendance/Number of

general meetings

EsnA HE/ BRRAERY
Dr. YIM Fung HEEL 11
Mr. YAO Wei (resigned on | September 2013) hEEER_ZE-—=FNA—BEE) /1
Mr. LI Guangjie EHRAEE /1
Mr. LI Sang, Edward FHERE /1
Mr. WONG Tung Ching FRERE I/1
Dr. FU Tingmei BEXEL /1
Dr. SONG Ming REEL 11
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung TRR L /1

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association during
the year 2013. A copy of the latest version of the Articles of Association is posted on the
websites of the Company (www.gtja.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

In accordance with section 566 of the Companies Ordinance, shareholder(s) representing
at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the members having a right to vote at general
meeting, may require the directors of the Company to convene an extraordinary general
meeting ("EGM"). The shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary of the Company at the registered address of the Company at 27/
F., Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen'’s Road Central, Hong Kong, specifying
the shareholding information of the shareholder, his/her contact details and the proposal

regarding any specified transaction/business and its supporting documents.
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If the Directors of the Company do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene an EGM for a day not more than 28 days after
the date on which the notice convening the EGM is given, the shareholder(s) concerned,
or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may themselves convene an EGM, provided that the EGM so convened shall not be held

after the expiration of 3 months from the said date.

The EGM convened by shareholders shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which general meetings are to be convened by the Directors of the

Company.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings by Shareholders

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
of the Company at the registered address of the Company 27/F., Low Block, Grand
Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding
information of the shareholder, his/her contact details and the proposal he/she intends
to put forward at general meeting regarding any specified transaction/business and its

supporting documents.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board of the
Company in writing through the Company Secretary at the registered address of the
Company at 27/F., Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen's Road Central, Hong
Kong. The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders' enquiries and concerns
to the Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company, where appropriate, to

answer the shareholders’ questions.
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RESULT AND OVERVIEW

We are pleased to report to our shareholders that Guotai Junan International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively as the “Group”) achieved a
remarkable result for the year ended 31 December 2013, reported a profit after tax
of HK$537.8 million (2012: HK$307.2 million), representing an increase of 75.1% as
compared to 2012. The revenue of the Group reached HK$1,134.0 million (2012:
HK$786.6 million), representing an increase of 44.2% compared to the prior year. Our
promising results were founded on the solid performance in the Group's dealing and
broking, loans and financing as well as investment holding businesses, which recorded
a growth in the revenue of 42.5%, 44.1% and 209.2% respectively. As a result of the
Group's effective cost management, the cost income ratio of the Group decreased from
55.1% in 2012 to 45.6% in 2013.

The board of the directors (the “Board”) of the Company has proposed a payment
of final dividend of HK$0.13 per share (2012: HK$0.07 per share). Together with the
interim dividend of HK$0.03 per share (2012: HK$0.03 per share), dividends paid for
2013 amount to a total of HK$0.16 per share (2012: HK$0.10 per share), representing an

increase of 60%.
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The Group's businesses include dealing and broking, corporate finance, asset management,

loans and financing and investment holding. Due to effort of our staff, we have achieved

a promising result this year and the revenue of the Group has increased by 44.2% for the

year ended 31 December 2013. The allocation of the revenue from these businesses is

listed in the following table.

Fee and commission income W& RmERA
— dealing and broking —BERBRES
— corporate finance —ERE
— asset management —-BEER
Income from loans and financing BERERERA
Gain from investment holding REFBWE
Total revenue Bl
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For the year ended 3| December

BE+-A=t-ALEE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—-fF
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %
TET % FAT %

264,533 336
156,988 200
31,387 40
276,149 35.1
57513 73
786,570 100




Dealing and broking

Although we have been facing keen competition from a number of securities houses and

banks, our result from dealing and broking business was encouraging and the revenue from
dealing and broking was HK$377.1 million (2012: HK$264.5 milion) for the year ended 31

December 2013, representing an increase of 42.5% compared to 2012. A breakdown of

the income has been set out below:
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For the year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=t-BLEE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—fF

HK$'000 % HK$'000 %

TR % TET %

Securities EeEa) 292,892 717 187,398 70.8
Futures ) = 43,868 1.6 51619 19.5
Leveraged foreign exchange TER = SNE 3,517 0.9 1,072 04
Wealth management service 328 iR 7 363 0.1 — —
Handling income FEE 36,417 9.7 24,444 93
377,057 100 264,533 100

The outstanding performance of our dealing and broking business was the result of our

highly efficient online trading platform. Our online trading platform currently supports

9 international securities markets including Hong Kong, United States, Japan, United

Kingdom, Canada, Singapore, Taiwan, Shanghai B shares, Shenzhen B shares, 21 global

futures markets and 8 currency pairs including CNH and up to 21 cross currency pairs in

leveraged foreign exchange trading. Our securities dealing and broking service also covers

securities markets in Malaysia, Korea and Australia and global fixed income market.
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The Group considers that expansion of client base is crucial to the success of the
business. As such, during the year, the Group successfully recruited more than 10,000 new

accounts.

The dealing and broking business of the Group outperformed the market. During the year
ended 3| December 2013, the average daily turnover of Hong Kong securities market
increased by 16.2%, the Group recognized a 56.3% increase of commission income
to HK$292.9 million in 2013 (2012: HK$187.4 million). Other than the outstanding
performance in dealing and broking service in Hong Kong market, the remarkable increase
in US securities tumnover also drove the revenue from US dealing and broking service to a

new high.

Our income from futures dealing and broking, on the other hand, was adversely affected
by market competition. The commission income generated from futures dealing and
broking decreased by 15.0% to HK$43.9 million (2012: HK$51.6 million).

To promote our leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking business, investor
conferences have been organized since 201 1. Our revenue from leveraged foreign
exchange dealing and broking business increased by 228.1% to HK$3.5 million (2012:
HK$1.1 million).

The significant increase in handling income of the Group in 2013 was mainly due to the
increase in securities lending activities. The launch of online securities lending service not
only reinforced customers’ investment and trading strategies, but also facilitated more
business transactions for the Group and increased handling income in 2013. In addition,
there were more corporate actions during the year, as a result, the handling income

increased by 49.0% to HK$36.4 million (2012: HK$24.4 million).
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Corporate finance
Our corporate finance business includes debt capital markets, equity capital markets and
consultancy and financial advisory services. A breakdown of the income for corporate

finance business has been set out below:

sion and Analysis

B ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

PEHE
AANECEREXGREGHEADS  BE
BAMGARBEREBEZARS - BHLXE
BEXBRABRAMHN T :

For the year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=t-BLEE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—fF
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
THERT % TET %
Placing, underwriting and i BEkSBENEE
sub-underwriting commission
— debt capital markets —EBERTS 25,569 17.1 15,878 10.
— equity capital markets —REE LTS 71,070 475 71447 455
Consultancy and financial advisory fee B[ R BB AE 52,910 354 69,663 444
149,549 100 156,988 100
In 2013, there were |10 new listings on the Stock Exchange (2012: 64 new listings), RIE—=F  BII0RAAEBIMLET(Z
including those transferred their listing from GEM Board to the Main Board, a 71.9% E—F AR ETAR) (BEREIERE
increase as compared to 2012. We have completed sponsorship for the listing of 4 EXIRHOAE) BT _FEM71.9% K

companies during the year. We have been also engaged as compliance adviser for 44
newly listed companies and financial advisor for |3 projects. However, the income from
consultancy and financial advisory fee decreased by 24.0% to HK$52.9 million (2012:
HK$69.7 million) for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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As a result of increasing number of new listings and improvement of market sentiment,
the total funds raised through IPO at the Stock Exchange increased by 84.9% to HK$166.5
billion (2012: HK$90.0 billion). During the year, we have been appointed as book-runner
for 6 IPO transactions and as lead manager for 4 IPO transactions. The underwriting
commission from equity financing decreased by 0.5% to HK$71.1 million (2012: HK$71.4
million) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Taking advantage of low funding cost environment, corporate clients preferred debt
financing to support their business development. The Group has acted as lead manager
for the issuance of debt securities for 5 listed companies, which generated revenue of
HK$25.6 million (2012: HK$15.9 million) to our debt capital markets business for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Asset management

We derived our fee income primarily from management fee and performance fee, which
are linked to the asset under management and the returns of the funds, respectively. In
2013, we have successfully launched two public funds, one in Hong Kong and the other in
Luxembourg respectively. The management fee income increased by 10.6% to HK$20.9
million (2012: HK$18.9 million) while the performance fee income decreased by 14.6% to
HK$10.7 million (2012: HK$12.5 million) for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Loans and financing
The income from our loans and financing business significantly increased by 44.1% to
HK$397.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$276.1 million). A

summary of income from loans and financing is set out below:

ME?QJE’I s S 23 AT

EHMREE
BE-Z—=F+-A=+—BLEE &
1mﬂw&m§¥%%ﬁXMWAk%ﬁm
441%E3979BBABET(ZE—Z_F 27618
%%m%%&&ﬂﬁ%Aﬁgﬁmexr

For the year ended 3| December

BET-A=t-BLEE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—-fF

HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
THERx % FET %
Margin loans HRER 304,613 76.6 182,866 66.2
Term loans TEHER 34,900 8.8 22,860 8.3
IPO loans BRARBEER 2,225 05 97 —
Banks and others R1T R EHAL 52,274 13.1 64,506 234
Held-to-maturity investments HEIHEE 3912 1.0 5,820 2.1
397,924 100 276,149 100

The Group has invested significant resources in expanding our loans and financing activities SRINYN —EFE AR ETU

since the listing of the Company on the Stock Exchange in July 2010. During 2013, the
average margin loan increased by 56.3% to HK$3,792.7 million (2012: HK$2,425.8 million)
while the income from margin loan increased by 66.6% to HK$304.6 million (2012:
HK$182.9 million) for the year ended 31 December 2013. We will continue to adopt an

aggressive while stable strategy for the margin loan business.

Other than margin loan, the Group also engaged in other term loan business and the
income from term loan increased by 52.7% to HK$34.9 million (2012: HK$22.9 million)
for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Investment holding

The income from our investment holding business increased by 209.2% to HK$177.9
million (2012: HK$57.5 million) for the year ended 3| December 2013. A summary of

income is set out below:

REXE
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For the year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=t-BLEE

2013
—E-=F
HK$'000 %
TR %

Net fair value gain/(loss) on financial
assets held for trading
— Listed securities
— Unlisted securities
Net fair value gain on unlisted
financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss
Interest income on financial assets
held for trading
— Listed securities
— Unlisted securities
Interest income from unlisted
financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss
Dividend income from listed

securities held for trading
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The Group's investment can be classified into 3 categories: listed equity investments, listed
and unlisted debt investments and convertible bond in relation to the direct investment of

a private company.

During the year, the Group recognized gain on listed securities investments held for
trading of HK$70.9 million (2012: loss of HK$10.3 million) and gain on unlisted securities
investments held for trading of HK$78.8 million (2012: HK$ nil). The interest income from
listed debt investments and unlisted debt investments were HK$18.2 million and HK$0.6
million respectively (2012: HK$3.7 million and nil). The Group also received dividend
income from listed equity investments of HK$ 1.0 million (2012: HK$3.2 million).

To diversify revenue stream and to secure sponsorship and underwriting opportunities,
the Group has engaged in direct investment in private companies. As at 31 December
2013, we had a direct investment project in the form of convertible bond at the fair
value of HK$123.6 million. The net gain on the financial asset designated at fair value
through profit and loss was HK$5.3 million (2012: HK$58.1 million) for the year ended 31
December 2013. The corresponding interest income derived from the convertible bond

was HK$3.0 million (2012: HK$2.8 million) for the year ended 31 December 2013,

RESULTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
The Group's total assets increased by 47.9% to HK$16,986.7 million (2012: HK$ 1 1,486.7
million) as at 31 December 2013.

The Group's total liabilities as at 31 December 2013 increased by 61.2% to HK$13,039.4
million (2012: HK$8,087.0 million).
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2013, the net current assets of the Group increased by 20.5% to
HK$3,456.6 million (2012: HK$2,869.5 million). The Group's current ratio was at 1.27
times as at 31 December 2013 (2012: 1.36 times).

The Group had a cash inflow of HK$100.7 million (2012: cash outflow of HK$277.3
million) for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the Group's bank balances was
HK$485.3 million as at 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$384.6 million). As at 31 December
2013, the Group had outstanding bank borrowings of HK$3,386.1 million (2012:
HK$739.8 million) through bilateral banking facilities with various banks. The Group also
had a Medium Term Note Programme (the “MTN Programme”) under which both
listed and unlisted notes may be issued. We have issued eleven series of the notes during
the year and the notes outstanding as at 31 December 2013 was of HK$324.7 million
(2012: HK$86 million). The gearing ratio (defined as bank and other borrowings to equity
attributable to owners of the parent) was 0.94 times as at 3|1 December 2013 (2012: 0.24
times). Taking into account of the unutilized banking facilities from Hong Kong authorized
financial institutions and the significant un-issued portion of the MTN Programme, we
believe our operating cash flow remains adequate to finance our recurrent working capital

requirements as well as any investment opportunities that may arise in the near future.

The Group monitors its capital structure in order to ensure the compliance of the capital
requirements under the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (Cap. 571N)
for its licensed subsidiaries and to support the development of new business. All licensed
corporations within the Group complied with their respective liquid capital requirements

during the year and up to the date of this annual report.

Other than the information disclosed above, there were no other equity or debt

instruments issued by the Company during the year and at the end of the year.
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OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PLANS

Following the scaling down of the quantitative easing measures in the United States
and the slowdown of Chinese economic growth, 2014 will be a challenging year for us.
However, we are still full of confidence as we see lots of opportunities deriving from the

interationalization of RMB and the opening of China capital markets.

Driven by strong economic growth in the past two decades, the capital markets in China
have expanded significantly. The pace for the internationalization of RMB have been
speeded up in the last few years and Hong Kong becomes the major gateway for cross-
border financial activities. With a well-established legal and regulatory system, Hong Kong
has become the most favorable listing and fund raising venue for Chinese enterprises.
In addition, cross-border investment activities increased significantly in last two years
through the expansion of QFIl, RQFII and QDI systems and are expected to increase
in the coming years. The Group foresees that there will be more cross-border business
opportunities in the coming future, including the listing of Chinese enterprises in Hong
Kong, the expansion of cross-border asset management business through QFIl and RQFII,
and the tremendous growth in brokerage business when QDII2 is in place. As such, we
will continue to collaborate with our parent company Guotai Junan so as to secure all

different business opportunities that we may come across.

Starting from the second half of last year, the IPO market in Hong Kong revitalized
and there were many successful listings since then. Even though the China IPO market
reopened in January 2014, we are expecting that the Hong Kong IPO market will still be
very active this year as the demand for capital raising for Chinese enterprises remains
strong and listing in China markets takes long queuing time. We will make use of this

opportunity to accelerate the development of our corporate finance business.

We also expect that the demand for margin and other financing remains strong in 2014.
The launch of online margin financing and securities lending services not only broadens
customers’ investment and trading strategies but also facilitates more business transactions
and opportunities for us. In addition, we will continue to broaden the scope of our loans
and financing services, especially in the context of providing financial support in relation to
corporate finance activities. The Group will continue to invest sufficient resources in loans

and financing activities.
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Capitalizing on the recent expansion of the QFIl, RQFIl and QDII scale in China, we will
devote to explore more asset management opportunities by providing cross-border

investment products to customers.

It has been the Group's mission to provide customers with a one-stop online platform to
do global investments. With the investors in mainland China widening their investment
knowledge and starting to invest globally, we will continue to strengthen our online trading
platform and to provide value-added services to our customers to do global investments.
In addition, in order to facilitate mainland China investors to do offshore investments
when QDII2 is in place, we will get ourselves well-prepared and to capture the first

opportunity when QDII2 is in place.

Overall, the Group will continue to leverage on the extensive customer network and
resource advantages of our parent company Guotai Junan in China and to achieve a

breakthrough in the overall business scale and competitive strength.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND SIGNIFICANT
INVESTMENTS

The Group did not make any material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries and
associated companies for the year ended 31 December 2013. As at 31 December 2013,

the Group did not hold any significant investments.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS
No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 3| December 2012 and 2013

respectively.

GUARANTEE AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company had guaranteed certain of the Group's bank borrowings up to HK$2,730
million (2012: HK$530 million) as at 31 December 2013. As at 31 December 2013, the
Company provided guarantees up to HK$249.0 million (31 December 2012: HK$232.6
million) in favour of financial institutions in respect of securities trading limit and insurance
brokerage limit granted to wholly-owned subsidiaries principally engaged in the provision

of securities and futures dealing and broking services.
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The Group had no other material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2013 and 31
December 2012.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

The Group had capital commitments for an [T upgrade of approximately HK$533,000
which were contracted but not provided for as at 31 December 2013 (2012:
HK$2,103,000).

The Group has undertaken underwriting obligations on placing, IPO, takeover and merger
activities and financial obligations on loan facilities provided to customers. As at 3|
December 2013, the underwriting and financial obligations were approximately HK$256.8
million and HK$176.4 million respectively (31 December 2012: nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2013, we had 244 employees in total (excluding our account
executives). Competitive remuneration packages are offered to employees by reference
to prevailing market rate and individual merits. Salaries are reviewed on annual basis and
discretionary bonus is paid on annual basis with reference to the Group's performance
and individual performance. Share options and shares award have been granted to the
directors and employees in recognition and acknowledgement of their contribution made
or to be made to the Group. Other benefits offered by the Group include mandatory

provident fund scheme and medical and dental insurance.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group adopted stringent risk management policies and monitoring systems to control
risk exposure associated with credit, liquidity, market, foreign exchange and [T system in all

its major operations.
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Credit Risk

Loans and financing activities:

The Board delegates to the Credit Committee the duties to monitor the credit risk of
the Group. Members of the Credit Committee include, inter alia, the Chief Executive
Officer, the Responsible Officers, the Chief Financial Officer and the Head of Credit and
Risk Department. The Credit Committee has appointed a group of authorized persons to
take charge in approving credit limit and margin limit of each client. The Credit and Risk
Management Department is responsible for making settlement calls when the trades of
margin clients exceed their respective limits. Any such excess is required to be made good
according to the deficiency report. The deficiency report will be daily monitored by the
Credit and Risk Management Department. Failure to meet margin calls may result in the
liquidation of the client's positions. The Credit Committee is also responsible for approval
of stocks acceptable as margin collateral and the margin-lending ratio. The list of approved
margin collateral stocks will be reviewed and revised by the Credit Committee when

necessary.

The Group also grants term loans to customers that may contain an element of credit risk.
The Group minimizes such risk exposure by performing detailed credit analysis of potential
loan investment, and dedicated professionals are assigned to oversee and monitor the
performance of the loan investment. Loans and advances to customers also include IPO
loans for subscription of new shares which are normally settled within one week from the
draw-down date. Forced liquidation action would be taken if the customers fail to settle

their shortfall within specific period of tolerance after IPO allotment result announced.

For debt securities, external credit rating such as Standard & Poor’s and Moody's rating or
their equivalents are used by the Credit and Risk Management Department for managing
of the credit risk exposures as supplemented by the Group’s own assessment through the

use of internal ratings tools.

For the Group's bank balances which we beneficially own, they are deposited in
respectable large commercial banks. For the client trust bank balances which are held in

segregated accounts, they are deposited in authorized financial institutions in Hong Kong.
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Dealing and broking

Accounts receivable from clients represents receivables from clients arising from dealing
in securities, which normally had a delivery-against payment settlement term of 2 to 3
days. The Group allows a credit up to the settlement dates of the respective securities
transactions (normally within T+2 or T+3 days). All application for the credit limit must
be reviewed by Credit Manager and approved by the Credit Committee. Credit and
Risk Management Department determines whether forced liquidation action is to be
taken against clients with overdue balances on case-by-case basis. The overdue report is

regularly reviewed by the Credit Committee.

The Group only accepts margin deposit in the form of cash for futures and leveraged
foreign exchange trading. No transaction is allowed to be executed if the current position
of the customer exceeds its trading limit. The margin deposit placed and the aggregate
of the required margin deposit of each futures and leveraged foreign exchange contract
is timely monitored by the Credit and Risk Management Department. Margin call will
be executed if there is a deficit in the margin deposit. Forced liquidation of the client's

position will be executed if the customer fails to meet margin calls.

Accounts receivable from brokers and dealers are placed with large financial institutions
which are governed by regulators including the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (the
"HKMA") and Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC"). Accounts
receivable from the Stock Exchange and other clearing-houses and other assets which are

mainly deposits placed with the regulators are considered to have minimal credit risk.

Asset management and corporate finance

Accounts receivable arising from asset management and corporate finance services are
trade counterparties with sound credit rating and/or reputation. The credit risk with these

trade counterparties are considered to be manageable.
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Impairment and provisioning policies

The Group's credit and risk management policy requires the review of individual
outstanding amount at least monthly or more regularly depending on individual
circumstances or market condition. Impairment allowances on individually assessed
accounts are determined by an evaluation of the incurred loss at balance sheet date on
a case-by-case basis, and are applied to all individual accounts. The assessment normally
encompasses collateral held and the anticipated receipts for that individual account.
Generally, impairment allowances will be recognised when clients failed to meet margin
call requirements and clients’ collateral are insufficient to cover their outstanding loan

balances.

Liquidity Risk

The Group's operating units are subject to various statutory liquidity requirements as
prescribed by the regulators. The Group has put in place monitoring system to ensure
that it maintains adequate liquid capital to fund its financial obligations and to comply
with the relevant Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (Cap.57IN). As a
safeguard, the Group has maintained stand-by banking facilities to meet any contingency
in its operations. Even in periods of high market volatility, the Board believes that the

Group's working capital is adequate to meet its financial obligations.

Market Risk

The asset quality of our margin client’s collateral will deteriorate when the market comes
down drastically. The Group’s exposure to underwriting commitments will be also
affected at times of volatile market. The Group has established policies and procedures
for monitoring and controlling the market risk arising in the ordinary and usual course of

business. Stress tests will be performed when necessary.

The Group also has listed and unlisted investments that are subject to the market risk.
The Group minimizes such risk exposure by performing detailed due diligence analysis of
potential investments, and dedicated professionals are assigned to oversee and monitor
the performance of the investment. These key investment decisions are also subject to

approval by Investment Committee delegated by the Board.
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Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group's principal operations are transacted and recorded in Hong Kong dollars and
U.S. dollars and the level of foreign currency exposure is relatively minimal compared to its
total asset and liabilities. Foreign exchange risk is managed and monitored by our Finance
Department. For the leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking, stringent control
over the position has been adopted, hence, we consider that our foreign exchange risk

exposure is considered to be manageable.

Operational Risk

Systems are installed to monitor availability and performance of various IT systems and
a team will act and report to the senior management in accordance with the established
procedures in the event of disruption, instability and other situations which may warrant to
trigger the contingency procedure to protect interest of clients. The Group maintains and
updates the operation manuals of its major operations on an on-going basis in accordance
to the regulatory and industrial requirement. We have also put in place competent
compliance and internal audit functions with their respective aims at detecting control
points risks and recommending policy changes as well as carrying out checks on statutory

compliance and the internal rules and regulations.
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Directors

Executive Directors

YIM Fung (EJI§), aged 50, is the chairman and the chief executive officer of our Group.
Dr. Yim joined Guotai Junan in 1993 and joined our Group in 2000 and is responsible for
the overall business management of our Group. Dr. Yim has over 22 years' experience in
the securities industry. Dr. Yim is a senior economist and holds a doctorate in Economics
from the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences (P BI4L &1 £
Brift7E &£ FT) and a bachelor degree in Environmental Engineering from the Tsinghua
University (BZEAE). Dr. Yim is also a director of Guotai Junan Holdings Limited and
Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited which are the controlling shareholders of the

Company. Dr. Yim was appointed Justice of the Peace in July 2013.

LI Guangjie (FYER), aged 45, is an executive director and the head of the sales house
team of our Group. Mr. Li joined our Group in November 2001 and is responsible for the
supervision and management of the Group's sales team. He has over 22 years experience
in accounting, audit, taxation and asset appraisal. Mr. Li started his career at Shenzhen
Jinpeng Certified Public Accountants (RINEBEEEHRIZTEFT) as the deputy head of
appraisal department. Mr. Li holds a bachelor degree in Economics from the Shenzhen
University (F3IIA22) and a master degree in Economics from the Central University of
Finance and Economics (R REF4EKEZ2). He is also an economist and a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Bl & FTENIHE) and a member
of the Chinese Certified Tax Agents Association (! Bz TR IS AN ).

LI Sang Edward (Z4), aged 50, is an executive director and the head of legal and
compliance of our Group. Mr. Li joined our Group in May 2007 and is responsible for
the legal, compliance and company secretarial matters of our Group. Mr. Li has over 21
years' of experience in legal and financial services. He holds a master degree of Laws
in Corporate and Financial Law from the University of Hong Kong, a master degree in
Corporate Finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnics University and a bachelor degree
in Law from the University of London. Mr. Li admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong and
England and Wales in 1995.
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WONG Tung Ching (E4%), aged 42, is an executive director and the head of the
corporate finance and equity capital markets divisions of our Group. Mr. Wong joined
our Group in October 2000 and is responsible for the overall business and marketing
matters of corporate finance and equity capital markets business of our Group. Mr. Wong
obtained a master degree in Business Administration from the University of Lincolnshire
& Humberside (now known as the University of Lincoln) in 2001 and a higher diploma in
International Trading from the Shenzhen University (RIIAZE) in 1992. Mr. Wong was
appointed as deputy chief executive officer of the Group on |2 December 201 3.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

FU Tingmei (f8#£3€), aged 47, is an independent non-executive director. Dr. Fu was
appointed a Director on 19 June 2010. Dr. Fu has extensive experiences in investment,
finance, law and business management. Between 1992 and 2003, he conducted many
corporate finance transactions in several investment banking firms based in Hong Kong,
including serving as a director of Peregrine Capital Limited, and a deputy managing director
and subsequently a managing director of BNP Paribas Peregrine Capital Limited. Dr. Fu is
currently engaged in private investment business. He is currently also an independent non-
executive director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (stock code: 392) and CPMC
Holdings Limited (stock code: 906), both listed on the Stock Exchange. Dr. Fu graduated
from the University of London with a master's degree and a doctorate degree in Law in

1989 and 1993, respectively.
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SONG Ming (R#), aged 52, is an independent non-executive director. Dr. Song has over

21 years' experience in research of bank regulation and management, financial market, and
macroeconomics. Dr. Song is the director of Centre for China Financial Research (CCFR)
and a professor in Faculty of Business and Economics at the University of Hong Kong, Dr.
Song holds a doctorate degree in Economics from Ohio State University, a master degree
of Science in Mathematics from Huazhong University of Science and Technology (ZEFH
BH%AKZ) and a bachelor degree of Science in Mathematics from Zhejiang University
(HIKEZ). Dr. Song is appointed as an independent non-executive director of United
Laboratories International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 3933) since May 2007 and
independent non-executive director of Wuzhou International Holdings Limited (stock

code: 1369) since May 2013.

TSANG Yiu Keung (B #23%), aged 60, is an independent non-executive director. Mr.
Tsang is a professional accountant and a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Mr. Tsang was with KPMG for
more than 27 years, where he was a senior banking partner until he retired from the firm
in 2003. Mr. Tsang is an independent non-executive director and the chairman of the audit
committee of L. K. Technology Holdings Limited (Stock code: 558), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, and China CITIC Bank International Limited, a licensed bank in Hong
Kong and CITIC Intemational Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Tsang holds a higher diploma

in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic.

46 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2013 Annual Report

RE 5257  RBEUFRITES - RELRR
TEENLEE  2BM5  REBEENRE
W%ﬁ@‘+-¢mﬁ°%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
SHESRMAETLIERBERBLER
AE ﬁﬁ&ﬁ&°mﬁi%ﬁ1%ﬁM1K%
KESELEMA  EFPHRARHEEMAL
BUMMIASHEENELEN - B-FF
tERARE  RELRZERE R
ERA R AR (B K5 © 3933) B IFHAT
EX RE-T--FOARBRKZERTNM
BIRRIZR AR AR (BRID SR : 1369) HYBIL 3
BITES -

LR 0B REIUFRITEE - ERAR
EXQMRBEGHAE  REKHFAR
SMAEREABFNERTHARAES

AEE - BRAACREFHEHAMELMER
B-ttF R-TZ=FRABA/RITES
BRABA BRERNDHREEEARAAF
(B LEmAR - BRKER5S8) - FER
T(ER)BRAR(REBEBORFERT) RHE

BReRERARARBLIMTEZRER
REGIR - BAARARREISRK G2

BRSUR



The Directors present their report together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in securities, futures and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking,

corporate finance, asset management, loans and financing and investment holding.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 74 of this annual report.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$0.03 per share and proposed the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.13 per share to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the company on 21 May 2014. The dividend will be
payable on or about 6 June 2014.

The register of members of the Company will be closed on Wednesday, 21 May 2014
for ascertaining shareholders entitlement to the proposed final dividend. No transfer of
shares will be registered on that date. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend to
be approved at the forthcoming annual general meeting, shareholders should ensure that
all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are lodged with
the Company's Hong Kong Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, No.183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 20 May 2014.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Detailed segment information in respect of the Group's revenue and segment results are

shown in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 22 to 125.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31 December 2013 is set out on page 8 of

this annual report.
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PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year
are set out in note || to the financial statements which is set out on pages 133 to 134 of

this annual report.

PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company's subsidiaries are set out in the note 22 to the financial statements

which is set out on pages |51 to 153 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set out in

note 27 to the financial statements which is set out on page 157 of this annual report.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are
set out in the section of “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” and note 31 in
the financial statements on pages 163 to 165 of this annual report. As at 31 December
2013, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance with
the provisions of Sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
amounted to HK$236,003,000 of which HK$222,209,000 has been proposed as final
dividend for the year.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations amounting to

approximately HK$505,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 3| December 2013, the revenue attributable to the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group's total revenue. The
Group is a provider of financial services. In the opinion of the Board, it is therefore of no

value to disclose details of the Group's suppliers.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the issuer's share capital) had any

beneficial interest in the Group's 5 largest customers.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company's listed securities for the year ended 31 December 2013 other than as an

agent for the trustee of Guotai Junan Share Award Scheme (the “Share Award Scheme").

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. YIM Fung

Mr. YAO Wei (resigned on | September 2013)
Mr. LI Guangjie

Mr. LI Sang, Edward

Mr. WONG Tung Ching

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. FU Tingmei

Dr. SONG Ming

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director has a service contract with the Company which is for a duration that may
exceed 3 years or which requires the Company to, in order to terminate such contract,
give a notice period of more than | year or pay compensation or make other payments

equivalent to more than | year's emolument.

Details of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial

statements which is set out on pages 168 to |71 of this annual report.

In accordance with Article 104 of the Articles of Association of the Company, every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. At each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-third, shall retire from
office and be eligible for re-selection. Accordingly, Dr. YIM Fung, Mr . LI Guangjie and Mr.
LI Sang Edward shall retire by rotation. They will offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.
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The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Dr. FU Tingmei,
Dr. SONG Ming and Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung and as at the date of this annual report, still
considers them to be independent. Generally, the term of office for each independent
non-executive Director is for a period of 3 years, and all of the 3 independent non-
executive Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company's Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries

was a party during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTEREST IN THE SHARES

AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the Directors or their

associates in the share capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within the

meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") which have been

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part

XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to

Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

Long position in the ordinary shares and underlying shares of the Company

he Directors

ERER

EEREIRTHRABRADTHEMME
BEENRORARRANER

RZE—=ZF+ZA=+—H EEFHKE
ARARBHERBER (TR REFLAEHE
BICTE S AR GG E XV E) BAT -
BRBEEFMHEROIEXVEET R8N HE
HERDAERERA - SR EE S LB KD
F32FRECBRNZ RO A B - 3
RIBE PR 7 £ AR A (T LR B L) B 8t
ERETARENGRLR LB AMT -

RELABEBRRABRONRE

Approximate

Number of percentage
underlying of the
shares held Company’s
under equity total issued

Number derivatives share capital

of awarded RALTE ERRAT

Number of ~ share held IAT BET

Name of director Long/short positions Share held Frise FisiEE Total BB

EEng R/%R FEROHE ROBE RONHE ROAZ HOEI

YIM Fung Long 2,665,000 2,611,000 6,000,000 11,276,000 0.65%
E1]:3 =3}

WONG Tung Ching Long 1,042,000 819,000 2,500,000 4,361,000 0.25%
45 =Y}

LI Guangjie Long — 194,000 1,500,000 1,694,000 0.10%
FRA =9}

LI Sang, Edward Long 124,000 187,000 1,500,000 1,811,000 0.10%
¥4 ®B

FU Tingmei Long — — 500,000 500,000 0.03%
BiEx =Y}

SONG Ming Long — — 500,000 500,000 0.03%
RE =9}

TSANG Yiu Keung Long — — 500,000 500,000 0.03%
125 kB
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Long position in the ordinary shares of an associated corporation

REBZENEBRORR

Name of Percentage of

associated Number issued shares
Name of director Long/short positions  corporations Nature of interest of shares HEBTRHM
EEpA B/KE HEZEEE BENE B EE Bat
YIM Fung (Note) Long Guotai Junan Fund Interest of a 2,010,000 20.1%
R () KA Management Limited  controlled corporation

BHRELATER

BRAF
Note: Dr. YIM Fung, Chairman, executive director and chief executive officer, holds 92% equity
interests in Best New Management Limited, is deemed to have an interest in the 20.1%

equity interest held by Best New Management Limited in Guotai Junan Fund Management
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations which had
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model

Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARED-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEME

The Company operates two equity-settled share-based compensation schemes including
a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) and the Share Award Scheme for
the purpose of assisting in recruiting, retaining and motivating key staff members. Eligible
participants of the schemes include the Company's directors (including independent non-

executive directors) and other employees of the Group.
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Share Option Scheme
The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 19 June 2010 which shall be valid

and effective for a period of 10 years from that date.

On 10 June 2011, 40,000,000 share options have been granted to the Directors and

employees with the exercise price of HK$4.30 per share.

On 24 April 2012, the Board resolved to cancel the outstanding share options and
granted new options to the same grantees with the exercise price of HK$2.50 per share.
Among the share options granted, a total of 13,500,000 share options were granted to
the directors of the Company. The option period of the share options is from 24 April
2012 to 9 June 2021. One-third of the share options granted were vested on |0 June
2013.

2,650,000 share options were exercised during the year ended 3| December 2013 and
the weighted average share price at the date of exercise of share option exercised during
the year was HK$3.34 per share. For the year ended 31 December 2013, 500,000 share

options lapsed prior to vesting date as a result of resignation.
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Movements of the share options under the Share Option Scheme for the year ended 31 BE_T-—=F+_A=Tt—HILFERRE

December 2013 are as follows; FEFERLNBRENESNT

Weighted

average

Options held at share price

Options held 31 December Exercise immediately

at | January 2013 price of preceding

2013 Exercised lapsed MZB-=% share options the exercise

R=B-=% during during tZA Date of (HKS$) date

-R-B%F the year the year =t-H Grant ~ BRETHEE BETEAMA

Name of participants SEENE HiRRE FRfTE FRER  BRNERE RHAH (Bm) HMETHRE
Directors Bz

YIM Fung o] 6,000,000 — — 6,000,000 24/412012 250 N/A%E

WONG Tung Ching I%5 3,000,000 (500,000) — 2,500,000 24/42012 250 351

LI Guangjie A 1,500,000 — — 1,500,000 24/412012 250 N/ASE

LI Sang, Edward £ 1,500,000 — — 1,500,000 241412012 250 N/ASE

Fu Tingme BEX 500,000 — — 500,000 24412012 250 NA

SONG Ming P: | 500,000 — — 500,000 24412012 250 NAE

TSANG Yiu Keung Bigs 500,000 — - 500,000 24412012 250 NIAE
Continuous contract employees BEANES

In aggregate &3t 25500,000 (2,150,000) (500,000) 22,850,000 241412012 250 330

39,000,000 (2,650,000) (500,000) 35,850,000 247412012 250 334

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in note 28 to the financial ERET2NE M BN BRRWT 285

statements. & o
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On 10 January 2014, 50,000,000 share options have been granted to the Directors and
employees with the exercise price of HK$3.82 per share. One-third of the share options
granted will be vested on the first, second and third anniversaries of the date of grant
respectively. The closing price of the Company's share on the date of grant of the share
options was HK$3.82 per share. The option period the share option is from 10 January
2014 to 9 January 2024. Among the share options granted, a total of 9,750,000 share

options were granted to the Directors of the Company as follows:

R-ZE-MFE-A+H ARFRCRTEES

R 3.82 B LM E = K & & 1% 1 50,000,000 {3 ik
1 o FTRBIREN =5 2 — K2 RIREH B 58
E— Z ZHAFEHEB - ALARONE
RNz BMKmEAER382ET - BRE
NERHE-_Z—NE—A+ARE-_ZE_MO
F-ANBIL - RZFLKBBERES 51
9750000 BERIE TR T AR RIESMT ¢

Number of

share options granted

Name of participants SHELR EREBRESE

Directors S

Yim Fung BlE 4750,000

Wong Tung Ching I45 2,500,000

Li Guangjie ZHRA 1,250,000

Li Sang Edward XS 1,250,000

Continuous contract employees BEANES

In aggregate st 40,250,000
50,000,000

Share Award Scheme

On 27 October 2011, the Company adopted the Share Award Scheme under which the
shares of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected employees
(including Directors) of any members of the Group (the “Selected Employees ") pursuant to
the terms of the Scheme Rules and the Trust Deed of the Share Award Scheme. The Share
Award Scheme became effective on the adoption date and, unless otherwise terminated or

amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date, i.e,, 26 October 2021.

The aggregate number of Awarded Shares permitted to be awarded under the Share
Award Scheme throughout the duration of the Share Award Scheme is limited to 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date (being 164,000,000
shares). The maximum number of Awarded Shares which may be awarded to a Selected
Employee in any |2-month period up to and including the date of award shall not in
aggregate exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date
(being 16,400,000 shares).
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When a selected employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which might include service
and/or performance conditions, specified by the Board of the Company at the time of
making the award and become entitled to the shares of the Company forming the subject
of the award, the trustee shall transfer the relevant Awarded Shares to that employee
at no cost. The Selected Employee however is not entitled to receive any income or
distribution, such as dividend derived from the unvested Awarded Shares allocated to
him/her.

Details of the Awarded Shares awarded during the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2013 are set out below:
Number of Average fair

Date of award shares awarded value per share

HWEEREENAARAESS
B 51 B R0 2 BR SR B IR 1 (E P Al sE B IR IR TS
R/ HRBOGEN) - RUEREBREOR

MEL B B2 R

ARG  REAREERNZLAEREREH
BRI - A BEREE BRREEARA
0K MR E DR TROKEE LB 0
B8

REE-Z——RK-T-—=F+-A=1+—H
HFERHOERRHFBDOT

Vesting date

BEAH

3071172012, 30/11/2013 and 30/11/2014
“F--E+—BS+R ZEF-ZF+-AStAR

—T-MmE+—-A=1H

30/11/2012,30/11/2013 and 3071112014
“E-ZHt-AZTRZE-=Ft-A=TER

e L AR EN

R A RERNEBE BRIEHYLFE
30 March 2012 7,494,000 HK$2.15
—E-—_%ZA=1H 21587
21 May 2012 182,000 HK$2.52
—E-—FRA=-+—H 25287
22 April 2013 8,567,000 HK$2.97
“E-=FMA=-+=H 297 T

30/11/2013, 30/11/2014 and 30/1112015
“E-=Ft-A=1H Z2-OFft-A=1+AR

—E-1F+—-HA=1H

The vesting date of 1,360,000 Awarded Shares, which was granted on 30 March 2012 and
expected to be vested on 30 November 2012, has been deferred. Those Awarded Shares

were vested and transferred to the grantees on 24 June 2013 at no cost.

5,258,000 Awarded Shares have been either transferred to the grantees or sold in
accordance with their instructions on 30 November 2013 (30 November 2012: 1,146,000)

at no cost.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, 202,000 awarded shares lapsed prior to its

vesting date as a result of staff resignation.
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Movements of Awarded Shares under the Share Award Scheme for the year ended 3|

December 2013 are as follows:

E+ZAST—ALLEENEBNT

T

B BBt A TR RBRNINBEE-_F—=

Awarded
Awarded shares at
shares at 31 December
| January 2013
2013 R®
i Granted Vested lapsed ZZE—-Z=F
—E-=f during during during +=A
Name of participants —-A-H the year the year the year =+—H Vesting date
SRELR HEBRG FRARE EnEE Erg¥  HEBRG SEEH
Directors
Bz
Yim Fung 2,718,000 2,558,000 (2,665,000 — 2,611,000  30/11/2014 and 30/11/2015
A “E-NET-AZTAER
—E-hF+t—-A=+H
Wong Tung Ching 526,000 835,000 (542,000) — 819,000  30/11/2014 and 30/11/2015
I%% “E-NET-AZTAER
—E-hF+t—-A=+H
Li Guangjie 120,000 202,000 (128,000) — 194000  30/11/2014 and 30/11/2015
FHEN “E-mFE+-A=TRHK
—E-hF+t—-A=+H
Li Sang, Edward 120,000 191,000 (124,000) — 187,000  30/11/2014 and 30/11/2015
FHE “E-MET-AZTAER
—Z-hF+t—-HA=+H
Continuous contract
employees
BEANER
In aggregate 2,841,000 4,781,000 (3,159,000) (202,000) 4261000  30/11/2014 and 30/11/2015
T “E-mFE+-A=TRHK
—Z-hF+t—-A=+H
6,325,000 8,567,000 (6,618,000) (202,000) 8,072,000
Further details of the Share Award Scheme are disclosed in note 29 to the financial MR S E 2 E M BB AR M 3T 29 B
statements. = o
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURE

Save as the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award Scheme disclosed above, for the
year ended 3| December 2013, the Company or any of its subsidiaries has not signed
any agreements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debt securities (including debentures) of the Company or any other body

corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or children under the age of 18, had

any rights to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSON’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the following persons (not being a Director of our Company)
have interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which have been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of

Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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eport of the Directors

%%’@*ﬁ%

Ordinary shares of the Company AAREER
Approximate percentage of
issued share capital
of the Company
Number of shares HEAAREBRITRAE
R EE BRESt
Long Short Long Short
Name of shareholders positions positions positions positions
RRE®E RE KR RE KB
Shanghai International Group HEBRRER
Co. Ltd (Note) AR RE (PEE) 1,230,000,000 Nl 4 71.19% NIE:3
Guotai Junan Securities BIRELEHFR D
Co., Ltd (Note) ARAR (M) 1,230,000,000 Nil £ 71.19% Nil £
Guotai Junan Financial BRELSRER
Holdings Limited (Note) AR AE () 1,230,000,000 Nil 71.19% Nil &
Guotai Junan Holdings Limited ERELERARAE 1,230,000,000 Nil £& 71.19% Nil £&

Note: Guotai Junan Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited B
which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. Guotai Junan
Securities Co,, Ltd is a controlled corporation of Shanghai International Group Co, Ltd.

Accordingly, Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited, Guotai Junan Securities Co,, Ltd and

'13”:

Shanghai International Group Co., Ltd are deemed to have the same interest in the shares of TR BB EB AR AR °
LERMERERAT BRELEFRNE

the Company as Guotai Junan Holdings Limited.

RAARLBERERERA

BREZERERAAHEFELERIER

ﬁBE AIZERE  MEXRELSRERSE
AARAIRBERFEREFRNERARNE

éﬁﬁ% 7 BRBALZEHFBROBERL

FEtt - BFRE

AR ARA

DRRMDF R BERERERERAFM

HRERRNER -
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the Company has not been notified BEXFBREEN R_E—=F+_-A
by any persons (other than Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who had =+—0 BEFOAT(TEERARARES
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which S2THA S ) Me RA R ERARA TR S
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of BRmT  BEREBESNHEENEXVE

Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

FIREIDBIESBERARRFE - Nk

RRBES MR EGRIEBRARREFE

BRffRmERIiRR -

Save as the continuing connected transactions disclosed below, no contracts concerning BTINEENESERES SN

the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of business of the

Company or its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(@)

Cooperation Agreement for China B shares dealing and broking

On 17 June 2010, a cooperation agreement was entered between Guotai Junan
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited (“Guotai Junan") (which was
subsequently amended by a supplemental agreement dated 3| December 2012)
whereby Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited would maintain a China
B share trading account with Guotai Junan and place orders on behalf of its
customers to Guotai Junan. Guotai Junan would then execute the orders using
its China B shares trading platform. As the cooperation agreement expired on 31
December 2012, the parties entered into a renewed cooperation agreement on 31
December 2012 to continue the transaction contemplated under the agreement
for 3 years. As disclosed in the announcement dated 31 December 2012, the
proposed annual amount of commission payable by Guotai Junan Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited to Guotai Junan for the 3 years ended 31 December 2013, 2014
and 2015 should not exceed HK$7.2 million. The total commission paid to Guotai
Junan for the year ended 31 December 2013 was approximately HK$4.5 million
which is also set out in Note 37(i) to the financial statements on pages 175 to 181

of this annual report.
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Consultancy Service Agreement

On 17 June 2010, a service agreement was entered between Guotai Junan (Hong
Kong) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Guotai Junan
Consultancy Services (Shenzhen) Co., Limited (which was subsequently amended
by two supplemental agreements dated 19 April 2011 and 31 December 2012
respectively) whereby Guotai Junan Consultancy Services (Shenzhen) Co,, Limited
would provide consultancy services relating to project management and economic
information as well as marketing and planning to Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited.
As the service agreement expired on 31 December 2012, the parties entered into
a renewed service agreement on 31 December 2012 to continue the transaction
contemplated under such agreement for 3 years. As disclosed in the announcement
dated 31 December 2012, for each of the years ended 3| December 2013, 2014
and 2015, the proposed annual consultancy fee payable by Guotai Junan (Hong
Kong) Limited to Guotai Junan (Shenzhen) Co., Limited in connection with the
services provided under the renewed service agreement would be no more than
HK$ 15 million. The total consultancy fee paid to Guotai Junan Consultancy Services
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited for the year ended 3| December 2013 was approximately
HK$13.1 million which is also set out in Note 37(ii) to the financial statements on

pages 175 to 181 of this annual report.
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Investment Management Agreements

On |7 June 2010, a supplemental investment management agreement was
entered into between Guotai Junan Funds SPC (for the account of Guotai Junan
Harvest China Fund Segregated Portfolio) (“SPC Fund") and Guotai Junan Assets
(Asia) Limited and a supplemental margin trading agreement was entered into
between SPC Fund and Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited (which
was amended by supplemental agreement dated 31 December 2012). Under
the said supplemental agreements, Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
will provide securities trading services and margin facilities to SPC Fund, Guotai
Junan Assets (Asia) Limited will act as the investment manager for the SPC
Fund. As the above-mentioned agreements expired on 31 December 2012, the
parties entered into renewed agreements on 3| December 2012 to continue
the transactions contemplated under such agreements for 3 years. As disclosed
in the announcement dated 31 December 2012, for each of the years ended 31
December 2013, 2014 and 2015, the proposed annual fees payable by SPC Fund
to Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited and Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong)

Limited under the renewed agreements would be no more than HK$12 million.
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On 26 July 2013, the directors of the SPC Fund, passed written resolutions to
terminate pursuant to the Articles of Association of the fund. All the investments
in the fund have been divested on 23 August 2013. Since the performance of the
SPC Fund was better than expected, the aggregate income eamned by Guotai Junan
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited from the
fund was approximately HK$12,076,000, which slightly exceeded the aggregate
annual cap of HK$12 million previously set for the year ended 31 December
2013. As the annual cap disclosed in the announcement dated 31 December 2012
was exceeded, the Company has re-complied with the relevant reporting and
announcement requirements of Rule 14A.35(3) of the Listing Rules in accordance
with the Rule 14A.36(1) of the Listing Rules. The total fees paid by the fund to the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 was approximately HK$ 12,076,000
which are also set out in Note 37(v) and (vi) to the financial statements on pages

175 to 181 of this annual report.

Investment Advisory Agreement and Client Agreement

On Il August 2010, an advisory agreement was entered between Guotai Junan
Assets (Asia) Limited and Guotai Junan, the investment manager of a Qualified
Domestic Institutional Investors (QDII) collective investment plan (the “QDII
Scheme”), namely BIREB L BB R ISR EEEIETE] (Guotai Junan Jun Fu
Xiang Jiang Collective Investment Plan), which was amended by two supplemental
agreements dated 27 September 2011 and 31 December 2012 respectively).
Under the advisory agreement, Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited was appointed

as an investment advisor of the QDII Scheme and be entitled to advisory fee.
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On 15 September 2010, a client agreement was entered between Guotai Junan
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and Guotai Junan, the investment manager of
the QDII Scheme, which was amended by two supplemental agreements on 27
September 201 | and 31 December 2012 respectively. Under the client agreement,
Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited agreed to provide securities brokerage

services to the QDI Scheme and be entitled to commission income.

On 25 September 2010, the relevant parties entered into agreements under
which all rights and obligations of Guotai Junan as the investment manager of the
QDI Scheme have been transferred to H BRI ELZESHEEEEAR AR
(Shanghai Guotai Junan Securities Assets Management Limited), a wholly-owned

subsidiary of Guotai Junan.

As the above-mentioned agreements expired on 31 December 2012, the parties
entered into renewed agreements on 3| December 2012 to continue the
transactions contemplated under such agreements for 3 years. As disclosed in
the announcement dated 31 December 2012, for each of the years ended 3|
December 2013, 2014 and 2015, the proposed annual fees payable by the QDI
Scheme to Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited and Guotai Junan Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited under the renewed agreements would be no more than HK$4.5
million. The total fees paid by the QDII Scheme for the year ended 3| December
2013 was approximately HK$731,000 which are also set out in Note 37(vii) to the

financial statements on pages 175 to 181 of this annual report.
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Service Agreement

On | July 2012, Guotai Junan and Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
entered into a Securities Investment Consultancy Service Agreement (which was
subsequently amended by a supplemental agreement dated 31 December 2012)
under which Guotai Junan will provide securities investment consultancy services to
Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited, including but not limited to research
reports, market news and updates and commentaries, Guotai Junan Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited will pay service fee to Guotai Junan quarterly based on the actual
amount of services Guotai Junan has provided during the quarter. As disclosed in
the announcement dated 31 December 2012, the estimated maximum amount
of service fee under the Securities Investment Consultancy Service Agreement
would not exceed RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,750,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2013, RMB4,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,625,000) for the year ended 31 December 2014 and RMB6,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$7,500,000) for the year ended 31 December
2015 respectively. There was no service fee incurred by the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2013 which are also set out in Note 37(viii) to the financial

statements on pages |75 to 181 to this annual report.
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Report of the Directors

R EHR

Client Agreements

On 9 August 2012, Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited (the Company's
intermediate holding company) and Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited
have entered into two Client Agreements for futures trading on the same terms
(which were subsequently amended by a supplemental agreement dated 31
December 2012), pursuant to which Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited
maintained two futures trading accounts at Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong)
Limited for futures trading in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars respectively, Guotai
Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited agreed to provide brokerage services to Guotai
Junan Financial Holdings Limited. The commission income charged by Guotai
Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited would be based on the market rate, i.e. price
receivable from independent third parties for the similar services under ordinary
commercial transactions, and the commission is payable on the settlement day

under the relevant market practice.

On | November 2012, Guotai Junan and Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong)
Limited have entered into a Client Agreement for securities trading (which was
subsequently amended by a supplemental agreement dated 3| December 2012),
pursuant to which Guotai Junan maintained an account at Guotai Junan Securities
(Hong Kong) Limited for securities trading, Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong)
Limited agreed to provide securities brokerage services to Guotai Junan. The
commission income charged by Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited would
be based on the market rate, i.e. price receivable from independent third parties for
the similar services under ordinary commercial transactions, and the commission is

payable on the settlement day under the relevant market practice.

As the transactions under the above-mentioned three Client Agreements were
all related to the Group's provision of brokerage services to its controlling
shareholder, the transactions would need to be aggregated pursuant to Rules
[4A.25 and 14A.26 of the Listing Rules. As disclosed in the announcement dated
31 December 2012, the aggregate proposed annual caps for the transactions under
the three Client Agreements would be HK$ 17,000,000 for each of the years ended
31 December 2013, 2014 and 2015.
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The commission eamed by the Group from Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited
and Guotai Junan were HK$61 1,000 and HK$583,000 which also set out in Note
37(ix) and (x) to the financial statement on pages |75 to |81 of this annual report
for the year ended 31 December 201 3.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed and

confirmed that the continuing connected transactions were entered into:

() inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to the Group

than terms available to/from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in interests of the shareholders of the Company

as a whole.

In accordance with paragraph 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Directors engaged
the auditor of the Company to report on the above mentioned continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagement 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Review of
Historical Financial Information” (“HKSAE 3000") and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” (“PN740") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants.

The auditor has reported to the Directors in accordance with HKSAE 3000 and
with reference to PN740 that the transactions:

() have been approved by the Board of the Company;
(i) areinaccordance with the pricing policies of the Company;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements

governing such transactions; and

(iv)  have not exceeded the relevant CAPs disclosed in the announcement dated

31 December 2012 except the following:
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On 26 July 2013, the directors of the SPC Fund, a managed fund of the
Group, passed written resolutions to terminate pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the fund. All the investments in the fund have been divested
on 23 August 2013. Since the performance of the SPC Fund was better
than expected, the aggregate income earned by Guotai Junan Securities
(Hong Kong) Limited and Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited from the fund
was HK$ 12,076,000, which slightly exceeded the aggregate annual cap of
HK$12 million previously set for the year ended 31 December 2013. As
the annual cap disclosed in the announcement dated 31 December 2012
was exceeded, the Company has re-complied with the relevant reporting
and announcement requirements of Rule [4A.35(3) of the Listing Rules in

accordance with the Rule [4A.36(1) of the Listing Rules.

The following is a summary of the exempt continuing connected transactions of the

Group for the year ended 31 December 2013:

On 29 December 2012, an advisory service agreement was entered into between
Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited and E/BBEIRBEREFEEEBEBRR
B (Shanghai Guotai Junan Securities Assets Management Limited) whereby
Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited was appointed as an investment advisor for a
Qualified Domestic Institutional Investor (“QDII") collective investment plan (“QDII
Scheme") managed by Shanghai Guotai Junan Securities Assets Management
Limited. Shanghai Guotai Junan Securities Assets Management Limited would pay
50% of the management fee income received from the QDII Scheme less incurred
expenses, if any, as advisory fee to Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited for its
advisory services provided. No advisory fee income was eamned for the two years

ended 3| December 2012 and 2013 respectively.
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The Group launched two public funds namely Guotai Junan Investment Fund
— Guotai Junan Hong Kong Dollar Bond Fund and White Fleet — Guotai Junan
Sunrise Emerging Market Fixed Income Total Return Fund (together, the “funds”)
for the year ended 31 December 2013. The funds are managed by Guotai Junan
Assets (Asia) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and controlled
by Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company. The management fee was calculated based on a percentage stated in
the respective signed investment management agreement with Guotai Junan Assets
(Asia) Limited and the total management fee income eamned from the funds was
approximately HK$ 151,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013, which are
also set out in Note 37(xii) to the financial statements on pages |75 to |81 to this

annual report.

On 31 January 2013, Guotai Junan and Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited
entered into a Futures Investment Consultancy Service Agreement under which
Guotai Junan will provide investment consultancy services to Guotai Junan Futures
(Hong Kong) Limited, including but not limited to research reports, Guotai Junan
Futures (Hong Kong) Limited will pay service fee to Guotai Junan quarterly based
on the actual amount of services Guotai Junan has provided during the quarter.
The service fee incurred by the Group was approximately HK$39,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2013, which are also set out in Note 37(xv) to the financial

statements on pages |75 to 181 to this annual report.

The abovementioned continuing connected transactions were exempt from the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders” approval requirement

under Rule 14A31 of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

R EHR

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Guotai Junan Finance (Hong Kong) Limited (as purchaser), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, has entered into a sale and purchase agreement dated 4 November
2013 with Guotai Junan Investments (Hong Kong) Limited (as vendor), under which the
purchaser purchased two-year convertible bonds issued by a company whose ordinary
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange at a consideration of HK$33.0 million as an
investment. The principal amount of the convertible bonds was HK$32.0 million and
the bonds bear interest at 9% per annum. The bonds will due on 3 September 2015,
bondholder may convert the whole or part of the bonds into convertible shares of the
issuer at any time until 3 September 2015 at the conversation price of HK$0.32 per
share. As Guotai Junan Investments (Hong Kong) Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the controlling shareholder of the Company and therefore a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules, the transaction constituted a connected transaction of
the Company. Pursuant to Rules 14A45 of the Listing Rules, details of the transaction are

included in this annual report.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 29 January 2014, the Company (as guarantor) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Guotai
Junan (Hong Kong) Limited (as borrower), entered into a facility agreement (the “Facility
Agreement”) with certain financial institutions (as “lenders”) in respect of a revolving
loan facility and a term loan facility in an aggregate amount of HK$3.3 billion for a term
of 3 years. Under the Facility Agreement, it will be an event of default if Guotai Junan,
the controlling shareholder of the Company, does not, or ceases to directly or indirectly
own, legally and beneficially, at least 51% of the share capital of the Company. In case of
an event of default, the lenders may, by notice to borrower: (i) cancel all or part of the
loan; and/or (ii) declare all or part of the loan, together with accrued interest, and all other
amounts accrued or outstanding under the Facility Agreement be immediately due and

payable; and/or (iii) declare that all or part of the loan become payable on demand.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESSES
As at 31 December 2013, none of the Board members of the Company and their
associates had any interests in an entity whose business competes or is likely to compete,

either directly or indirectly, with the Company's business.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by the
public as at the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company's corporate governance principles and practices are set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages |3 to 26 of this report.

AUDITORS
The financial statements have been audited by Emst & Young who will retire and being
eligible offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of

the Company to be held on 14 May 2014.

There was a change of auditors from PricewaterhouseCoopers to Emst & Young for the

year ended 31 December 2011,

By order of the Board
Yim Fung

Chairman

Hong Kong, |3 March 2014
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' ndet Auditors’ Report

B BRI E

e
EY =i

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Guotai Junan International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 74 to 206, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such intermal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents

of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower
| Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider intemal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

I3 March 2014
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Year ended 31 December 2013
B2 -_F—=F1-A=F—HIFE

Notes 2013 2012
WeE —B-=F —FT--F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TET
Revenue Uz 5 1,133,956 786,570
Other income HA 6 5412 4,170
Revenue and other income gt R A 1,139,368 790,740
Staff costs BIA 7 (267,441) (202,484)
Commission to account executives EPXERS (62,697) (43,339)
Other commission expenses HirAexz i (32,170) (48312)
Performance fee expenses FREBXH (6,261) (11,940)
Depreciation e (26,049) (25943)
Whrite back of/(Impairment charge on) BTEPHERR
loans and advances to customers BEEChE) |7 14 (540)
Impairment charge on accounts receivable R IBR(E 18(a) 222) (5)
Other operating expenses Hihie g i (101,738) (95,537)
Operating profit L mM 642,804 362,640
Finance costs BERA 7 (23,278) (7,238)
Profit before tax FREBLATEF 7 619,526 355402
Income tax expense FfeBi 8 (81,768) (48,252)
Profit for the year FREA 537,758 307,150
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax FREA 2 E Wz @ IIKRFIE — —
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2ENEAE 537,758 307,150
Profit and total comprehensive income attributable to: JE{G F A& | x 2 E M & 48 %8 -
Owners of the parent SYNIE 2PN 536,398 307,003
Non-controlling interests R ER 1,360 147
537,758 307,150
Earnings per share attributable ERRRRES
to ordinary equity holders of the parent SREF 10
— Basic (in HK cents) —ER(ABE) 314 18.8
— Diluted (in HK cents) — 85 (DU ILE) 3.1 18.8

Details of the dividends paid and proposed for the year are disclosed in note 9 to the

financial statements.
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Position

mEMBRRE

As at 3/ December 2013
REF-—=#1-f=1-H
Notes 2013 2012
it —B-ZF —T-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BE K& I 413,440 429,402
Investment properties REME 12 105,599 108,751
Intangible assets BVEE 13 2,823 2823
Other assets Hih & E 14 3,230 2,870
Deferred tax assets ERERIBAE 15 — 3,670
Total non-current assets FRBEELR 525,092 547516
Current assets RBEE
Loans and advances to customers LTEPHERRER 17 6,005,392 3,058,102
Accounts receivable FEU A 18 998,881 1,023,187
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B - e KA EKE 19 21,341 22,901
Held-to-maturity investments REIMRE 16 — 77,520
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BATEABRNEREE 20 983,717 482,220
Tax recoverable AR EITIE 182 6,796
Client trust bank balances RPERRTES 2 7,966,841 5883941
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkBReEEY 21 485,295 384,554
Total current assets RBEEAR 16,461,649 10,939,221
Current liabilities RBAE
Accounts payable FERT50R 23 (9,120,380) (6,955818)
Subscription monies received in advance BRRERE 27 — (186,798)
Other payables and accrued liabilities HA0 RS 5008 R B A UB 24 (139,029) (95,022)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ATERITER 25 (3,386,113) (739,820)
Debt securities in issue BEETHNERE S 26 (324,706) (86,000)
Tax payable JEANEAE (34,864) (6214)
Total current liabilities REEEEHE (13,005092)  (8,069,672)
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 3,456,557 2,869,549
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES REERRDEE 3,981,649 3417065
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities ELHEAR 5 (34,332) (17,300)
Net assets BERE 3947317 3,399,765
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As at 31 December 2013
R-F—=#1-f=1-H

Equity
Share capital
Share premium
Other reserve
Share-based compensation reserve
— Share option reserve
— Share award reserve
Shares held under the share award scheme
Proposed final dividend
Retained profits

BE

[-EN

Bt (&

HibfE

B RERRERE
—BERRE
—BID R

REM D LR B A R

KRS

PRER A

Notes 2013
BT —E-Z=f
HK$’000
FTER
27
3l(a)
28
29
30
9

Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

SUNCIE RPN o
IR

Total equity BRAT

Dr YIM Fung Mr Li Sang, Edward
R+ FHERE
Director Director

£ EE
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2012

HK$'000
TAT

164,000
2771707
(1236,460)

33330
5720

(28833)
113882
570,102

3,393,448
6317

3,399,765
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As at 31 December 2013
R-F—=#F+-A=+-H

Notes 2013 2012
D —B-=%f —T--F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR

Non-current assets ERBDEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBRRRE 2 1,316,166 1,306,553
Total non-current assets FRBEELR 1,316,166 1,306,553
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BRNHE - ke REMERGE 19 2,737 1,549
Due from a subsidiary i G = YNGIb ] 2 2,362,863 1,846,614
Cash and cash equivalents BekHReEEY 21 1,205 521
Total current assets RBEEAR 2,366,805 1,848,684
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued liabilities FEET IR 24 (891) (1,008)
Debt securities in issue EETEEES 26 (324,706) (86,000)
Total current liabilities REEEEHE (325,597) (87,008)
Net current assets RBEERE 2,041,208 1,761,676
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTDEER

and net assets BEFE 3,357,374 3,068,229
Equity i
Share capital R 27 172,765 164,000
Share premium W1 s B 2,956,256 2,768,723
Share-based compensation reserve PARR D A B R

— Share option reserve - BRERERE 28 39,998 33,330

— Share award reserve — &0 SREN B 29 9,054 5720
Shares held under the share award scheme RBR 0 2R 1 81+ B AV AR 0 30 (56,702) (28:833)
Proposed final dividend BIRAR RS 9 222,209 113,882
Retained profits REEH 31(b) 13,794 1,407
Total equity BRAEHE 3,357,374 3068229
Dr YIM Fung Mr Li Sang, Edward
HgE L FERE
Director Director
EF EF

BEEZZEBERARARD 77

2013 F ]



=K :
Year ended 31 December 2013

BE-F-—F1-A=F—-HI¥E

Share
capital
Rx
HK$'000
TER

Balance at | January 2013

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Shares issued upon placement
of shares (Note 27)

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payment
(Note 28 and 29)

Purchases of shares held under
the share award scheme
(Note 30)

Vesting of shares for the
share award scheme
(Note 29 and 30)

Share issued upon exercise
of share option under
the share option scheme
(Note 28)

Final dividend peid for 2012 (Note 9) XFH=F—Z—FXERE

Interim dividend paid (Note 9)
Proposed final dividend for
2013 (Note 9)

RZZ-=F
-f-RaER

FREE
e

REERHMET
B (3E27)

BN ERAE
DARR BERRR
(fitE28 )2 29)

EERERD R8T
[itszal:
WRiA(HzE30)

GRRHEE
HEL)
(FitE29 ]2 30)

il e N
BRERER
BRI
(FzE28)

(Fzk9)

SRR (9)

BE-ZS-=ERERE
(Rt&9)

Balance at 3| December 2013

R=F-Z%
+-A=t+-H
igferal

2013 Annual Report

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

BRTEEARERR

Shares held

under the

share

Share Share award

option award  scheme

Share  Other  reserve  reserve REBRA
premum  reserve  HBRIE Rt REHE

Proposed
dividend

RtveE RtRE B ZEEE FANRG RKRR

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TEr TEn TER TEn TEx
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HK$'000
TR

Retained
profits
REER
HK$'000
TER

Total
st
HK$'000
FER

Non-
controlling
interests
FER
#s
HK$'000
T

Total
equity
BReE
HK$'000
T
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Year ended 31 December 2013
BE-F-ZF1-fA=+—HIFE

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

SRARANEE RS

Shares held
under the
share
Share Share award Non-
option award  scheme controlling
Share Share Other  resene  resene  RER(A  Proposed  Retained interests Total
aptal  premium  reseve  BEMRIE RA REEE diidend profits Totd  FiER equity
BE RVEE EbEE h ZEEE RAORD RERE REEH &t B ERER
HKP000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKPOOO  HKS000  HKFOOO  HKE000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000
TEr  TEr TR TER  TEr  TEx  TET TR TER  TET TER
Balance at | January 2012 RZE-ZF
—R-Regs 164000 2771707 (1236460) 12805 — 9384) 9B ll6 1425064 3225848 6170 3232018
Total comprehensive income ERN2E
forthe year e — — — — — — — 307003 307003 147 307,150
Recognition of equity-settled BANERE
share-based payment PARfR BRI
(Note 28 and 29) (3285 29) — — — 0870 8300 - - AL - B8
Purchase of shares held under BERERHLE:E
the share award scheme A
(Note 30) iRia(fEE30) - - - - — 7 (210) A Q1749 — QI
Vesting of shares for GERMEE
the share award scheme HELG)
(Note 29 and 30) (29 B 30) — - - — Q%) 27 - 315 - - -
Transfer of share option R R R
reserve upon the forfeiture Bk
of share options & — — — (345) — — — 345 — — —
Final dividend paid for 201 IHZE-——ERERE - - - - - (97906) - (97908) - (97908)
Interim dividend paid (Note 9) SRR E (F%9) — - - - - - — (#8953 (489%3) — (1895
Proposed final dividend for HR-T-—5RERS
2012 (Note 9) (BizE9) - - - - - — 1388 (113882) - - -
Balance at 3| December 2012 RZF-CF
TIAZT-RMER 164000 2771707 (1236460) 33330 570 (28833) 113882 1570102 3393448 6317 3399765
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Consolidated Statement of
mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2013
BE-§-=#1-A=t-ALTE

Notes 2013 2012
DEF— Sk -
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Net cash flows used in operating activities RETBHMAREREFH 35 (2,570,405) (916,037)
Cash flows from investing activities REFHRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BEIR I (6,935) (5,300)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REZBMAREREFHE (6,935) (5,300)
Cash flows from financing activities METHRERE
Net proceeds from bank loans RITERMERIETE 2,646,293 539,820
Proceeds from issuance of debt securities BTREBEFMENE 817,717 86,000
Repayment of debt securities BNEBES (579,011) —
(Decrease)/increase in subscription TARRERE D) /B
monies received in advance (186,798) 186,798
Net proceeds from issuance AR EROMETROMENIEFE
of shares upon placements of shares 186,764 —
Net proceeds from issuance R R ERTEmMBEITROAEREFE
of shares upon exercise of share options 6,625 —
Dividend paid to shareholders TRRERE (171,062) (146,859)
Purchase of shares held under the share BERIEMRN RE: 2
award scheme mE A B 30 (42,447) (21,724)
Net cash flows from financing activities RETHESHRETE 2,678,081 644,035
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents & R B S ZEYE M,/ (B ) FHE 100,741 (277,302)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FNHReRREEEY 384,554 661,856
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRELRELEEY 485,295 384,554
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents ~HRERBESEEUNNER DT
Cash and bank balances Be RFTHEHS 21 378,152 258,754
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of Bl R EH BT =& A /)
less than three months when acquired AERTHER 21 107,143 125,800
485,295 384,554
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2.1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited (the “Company") was incorporated on
8 March 2010 in Hong Kong with limited liability under the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and its shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 8 July 2010. The registered
office address of the Company is 27th Floor, Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza,
181 Queen'’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company is an investment holding
company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in dealing and broking, loans

and financing, corporate finance, asset management and investment holding.

The Company's immediate holding company and ultimate holding company are
Guotai Junan Holdings Limited (“GJHL") incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited (“Guotai Junan”) incorporated in the

People’s Republic of China, respectively.

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 13 March 2014.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which have

been measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are

rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise stated.

2.1

31 December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A
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31 December 2013
i
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2013. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control

ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions

between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described in the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an

equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-
controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of
any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related

assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

22

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first time

for the current year's financial statements.

g E
31 December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A

B HREIRKE
ARECRAFEOMBERRERER
AT Z#a] RS EFT BB RS A -

Effective for financial

years beginning on/after

Standard Content RT5I B8R z%&
%8 AR RIGNRBEELEXR
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22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES 22 BHBRESFREES)
(continued)
Effective for financial
years beginning on/after
Standard Content RT5IBHR 2%
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HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement | January 2013
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)
Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of amendments to
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKFRS I3, the adoption of the new and

revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these financial statements.

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as follows:

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require an entity to disclose information about
rights to set-off and related arrangements (e.g, collateral agreements). The
disclosures provide users with information that is useful in evaluating the
effect of netting arrangements on an entity's financial position. The new
disclosures are required for all recognised financial instruments that are set
off in accordance with HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. The
disclosures also apply to recognised financial instruments that are subject to
an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement, irrespective
of whether they are set off in accordance with HKAS 32. Additional
disclosures required by HKFRS 7 Amendments are included in note 39 to

the financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

HKFRS 10 Consoligated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements that addresses the accounting for consolidated financial
statements and addresses the issues in HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation —
Special Purpose Entities. It establishes a single control model used for
determining which entities are consolidated. To meet the definition of
control in HKFRS 10, an investor must have (a) power over an investee,
(b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect
the amount of the investor’s returns. The changes introduced by HKFRS
10 require management of the Group to exercise significant judgement to
determine which entities are controlled. The application of this new standard

has no financial impact on the Group.

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 sets out the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and structured entities previously included in HKAS
27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, HKAS 31 Interests in
Joint Ventures and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates. It also introduces
a number of new disclosure requirements for these entities. Details of
the disclosures for subsidiaries are included in note 22 to the financial
statements. As the non-controlling interests attributable to Guotai Junan
Fund Management Limited are not material as at 31 December 2013, there

is no additional disclosure in the application of this new standard.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a single source of
fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across HKFRS.
The standard does not change the circumstances in which the Group is
required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how fair value
should be applied where its use has already been required or permitted
under other HKFRSs. HKFRS 13 is applied prospectively and the adoption
has had no material impact on the Group's fair value measurements. As a
result of the Guidance in HKFRS 13, the policies for measuring fair value
have been amended. Additional disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the
fair value measurements of investment properties and financial instruments
are included in notes 12 and 38 to the financial statements. The application

of this new standard has no material financial impact on the Group.

The Group has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment

that has been issued but is not yet effective.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL 23 BEAEEREVNNEBHERSE
REPORTING STANDARDS 8|

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been

issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.
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Effective for financial
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interpretation Content RT5IBHR 2%
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

£8(#)
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the
Group s as follows:

. HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase | of a
comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification and
measurement of financial assets. Instead of classifying financial assets into four
categories, an entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured at
either amortised cost or fair value, on the basis of both the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to improve and simplify the
approach for the classification and measurement of financial assets compared
with the requirements of HKAS 39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS 9 to address
financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the
current derecognition principles of financial instruments of HKAS 39. Most
of the Additions were carried forward unchanged from HKAS 39, while
changes were made to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVO").
For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value of a liability
that is attributable to changes in credit risk must be presented in other
comprehensive income (“OCI"). The remainder of the change in fair value
is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change
in respect of the liability's credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts which have been designated under the FVO
are scoped out of the Additions. In December 2013, the HKICPA issued
amendments to HKFRS 9 which allow an entity to apply only the improved
accounting for own credit risk-related fair value gains and losses arising an
FVO liabilities as introduced in 2010 without applying the other HKFRS 9
requirements at the same time.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety. Before this
entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39 on impairment of financial
assets continues to apply. The previous mandatory effective date of HKFRS
9 was removed by the HKICPA in December 2013 although the standard is
available for application now. A mandatory effective date will be determined
after the entire replacement of HKAS 39 is completed. The Group will
quantify the effect in conjunction with other phases, when the final standard

including all phases is issued.

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011) — Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS27 (2011) — Investment Entities

Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of an investment entity and
provide an exception to the consolidation requirement for entities that meet
the definition of an investment entity. Investment entities are required to
account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with
HKFRS 9 rather than consolidate them. Consequential amendments were
made to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments to HKFRS 12
also set out the disclosure requirements for investment entities. The Group
expects that these amendments will not have any impact on the Group as

the Company is not an investment entity as defined in HKFRS 10.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
. Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off" for offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities. The amendments also clarify the application of the offsetting criteria
in HKAS 32 to settlement systems (such as central clearing house systems)
which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the financial position

or performance of the Group upon adoption on | January 2014.

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (ie. existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the

investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances

in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

() the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.
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24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's profit or loss to the extent
of dividends received and receivable. The Company's investments in subsidiaries

are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its debt and equity investments at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of

relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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31 December 2013
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level I —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each

reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing
for an asset is required (other than financial assets), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to

which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in

those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there
is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss

is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset

to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such

parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each
item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful

life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Shorter of

the remaining
lease term and
the useful life

Leasehold land under finance lease of the building

Buildings 25-40 years
Leasehold improvements 3 years
Office equipment 3 years
Fumiture and fixtures 3 years
Motor vehicles 3 years
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year

end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference

between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation (refer to the accounting policy for “Property, plant and equipment and

depreciation”) and any impairment losses.

An item of investment property and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net

sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

31 December 2013
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible

asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets, representing club membership and eligibility rights to trade on or
through the Stock Exchange and The Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, with
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. These intangible assets are not amortised. The useful
life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective

basis.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance
costs of these leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a constant

periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain
with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is the
lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating leases are included in non-
current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease

terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and held-to-maturity investments.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,

except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Notes to inancia Statements '
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as

follows:
. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held
for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if

they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement
of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not include any dividends or
interest eamed on these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance

with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition and only if the

criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as

follows: (continued)
. Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, these assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
revenue in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in

profit or loss.

. Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity when the Group has the
positive intention and ability to hold them to maturity. Held-to-maturity
investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in revenue in profit or loss.

The loss arising from impairment is recognised in profit or loss.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's

consolidated statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset
or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially

all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it
has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

Group has retained.
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24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate

with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carnied at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original

effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all

collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases
or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other

operating expenses in profit or loss.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

The Group's financial liabilities include accounts and other payables, bank
borrowings and debt securities in issue. The Group determines the classification of

its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

Al financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and

borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are

derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

-
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 FESHBRBE )

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the

respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or

to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Shares held under the share award scheme

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (shares held under the share
award scheme) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Group's own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and

the consideration is recognised in equity.

Client trust bank balances

The Group has classified the clients’ monies as cash held on behalf of customers
under the current assets in the consolidated statement of financial position and
recognised corresponding accounts payable to respective clients on grounds that it

is liable for any loss or misappropriation of clients’ monies.
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24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are

repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in

nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Other assets

Other assets represent the deposits and admission fee paid to the Stock Exchange,
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company
Limited and other regulators. They are intended to be held on a long-term basis

and are stated at cost less impairment losses.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate

can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision
is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in

profit or loss.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and

practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at
the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and

their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset

to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

() commission income from securities and futures dealing and broking, on the

transaction dates when the relevant contract notes are exchanged;
(i) netincome from leveraged foreign exchange transactions on an accrual basis;

(i) commission income from provision of wealth management services on an

accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the underlying agreements;

(iv)  commission income from underwriting/placing in securities is earned
on execution of each significant act based on the terms of underlying

agreements and mandates;

(v)  management, consultancy, financial advisory fees and handling income, when

the services have been rendered,

(Vi) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by
applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when

appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(vii)

(vii)

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive payment has been

established;

performance fees are recognised on the performance fee valuation day
of the investment funds and managed accounts when there is a positive
performance for the relevant performance period, taking into consideration
the relevant basis of calculation for the investment funds and managed

accounts;

information services income, when the services have been rendered;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease term; and

net gains/losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
those held for trading include realised gains/losses which are recognised on
the transaction dates when the relevant contract notes are exchanged; and
unrealised fair value gains/losses which are recognised in the period in which

they arise.

-
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

@

®)

©

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when

contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Annual leave

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they are
accrued to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of

the reporting period.

Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses, based on an
approved formula that takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Group after certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a

constructive obligation.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(@

Share-based payments

The Company operates two equity-settled share-based compensation
schemes including a share option scheme and a share award scheme for the
purpose of assisting in recruiting, retaining and motivating key staff members.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as

consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The cost
of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in the “share award reserve” and “share option reserve” under
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled in share-based compensation expense. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the

beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for
equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional upon a market or
non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all

other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(@

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an
expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value
of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as

measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested
on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the
award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the employee are not
met. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the

original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect (if any) of outstanding options is reflected as additional

share dilution in the computation of eamnings per share.
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24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors, excluding those relating to the
Company's own shares held under the Company's share award scheme, are
classified as a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the statement of financial position, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by

the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company's memorandum and articles of association grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are

recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Securities borrowing and lending agreements

The Group has engaged in the securities borrowing and lending business, under
which all transactions are secured in the form of cash. Cash collateral advanced or
received is recorded as an asset or a liability. Fees received or paid in connection
with securities borrowing and lending is recorded as handling income or handling

charge, respectively.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange prevailing at the end of

the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary

items are recognised in profit or loss.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person's family and that

person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iily  is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a

parent of the Group;

or
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

()

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a

parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of

employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosure, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made
the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the

most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Taxes

Significant judgement is required in determining the provisions for income and
other taxes. There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, the differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which the

determination is made.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment property,
and has developed criteria in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to eam rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows largely independently
of the other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that
is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment property only if an
insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not

qualify as an investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year, are described below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level
of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying
value of deferred tax assets relating to recoginsed tax losses as at 31 December
2013 was approximately HK$4.6 million (2012: HK$3.7 million). The amount of
unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2013 was approximately HK$9.0 million
(2012: HK$46.7 million). Further details are contained in note |5 to the financial

statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment allowances on loans and advances to customers and accounts

receivable

The Group reviews its loans and advances to customers and accounts receivable
to assess impairment at least on a monthly basis. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in profit or loss, the Group makes judgements
as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows. This evidence may include observable
data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment status
of borrowers in the Group. Management uses estimates based on historical
loss experience when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows
are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual
loss experience. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will affect the carrying value of loans and receivables and thus the
impairment charge in the period in which the estimate is changed. Further details

are contained in notes |7 and |8 to the financial statements.

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The fair value of financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or
loss that are not traded in an active market is determined by using external
valuations or valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at each
reporting date. Valuation techniques used include the use of comparable recent
arm's length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and
other valuation techniques commonly used by other market participants. Changes
in assumptions on the valuation techniques could affect the reported fair value
of these financial assets. Further details are contained in notes 20 and 38 to the

financial statements.
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4. SEGMENT REPORTING
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Group's senior executive management and in accordance with
HKFRSs. The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed separately
according to the nature of their operations and the services they provide. Each
of the Group's business segments represents a strategic business unit that offers
services which are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of the

other operating segments. Details of each of the operating segments are as follows:

(@)  the dealing and broking segment engages in the provision of securities,
futures and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking as well as wealth

management services to customers;

(b)  the corporate finance segment engages in the provision of advisory services,

placing and underwriting services;

(c)  the asset management segment engages in asset management, including fund

management and the provision of investment advisory services;

(d)  the loans and financing activities segment engages in the provision of margin
financing to margin customers, initial public offering (“IPO") loans, other

loans to customers and bank deposits;

(e)  the investment holding segment represents interest income, dividend income

and gains or losses from listed and unlisted investments; and

() the "others” segment mainly represents rental income and the provision of

information channel services.

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are conducted with reference to the prices
charged to third parties and there was no change in the basis during the years
ended 3| December 2012 and 2013.
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31 December 2013

ZE-FtZA=1-H

4. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4. SB®RER)
The segment information provided to the management for the reportable segments REE-_TE——FrR-FT—=ZF+=A
for the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2013 is as follows: =+—RLFE MEEERTZHRS

BREMDHLERDT -

Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-E-=F+-HA=1+—-RALEE
Dealing Loans and
and financing
broking ~ Corporate Asset activities  Investment

EER  fiance management  EHK  holding  Others Total
B C¥RE EEEE REED REER At @t
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
Tén TEAn TAxr Tz FEx  TEx  TExR

Segment revenue and AHRER
other income: Rt A
Sales to extemal customers  SHEFHNBEP

Inter-segment sales Az EHE

Tota Bt
Segment results BT
Income tax expense MRS
Profit for the year FEREN

Other segment information: ~~ E AL B &R -
Depreciation TE
Finance costs HERK

EEZEBRERERAA 123
2013 £ 3]



ABERH

31 December 2013

—E-=F1-A=+-A
SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4. SB®REE)
Year ended 3| December 2012 BE_Z-——F+-A=1+—-HLEE
Dealing Loans and
and financing
broking  Corporate Asset activities  Investment
EER finance management  EFHRK holding Others Total
B OCXBE BERE REARY REXH 2fts @t
HK$000  HK$000  HKF000  HKE000  HKFO00  HKFO00  HK$O000
TEr TAr TEr TExr  TEr  TEr  TExn
Segment revenue and PHURER
other income: HelA
Sales to extemal customers  HEFINFER 264533 156988 31387 76149 57513 4170 790740
Inter-segment sales N FEHE — — — — — — —
Total &t 264,533 156,988 31387 276,149 57513 4170 790,740
Segment results DEEE 69671 51730 (108) 177516 57513 — 35540
Income tax expense FEHRR (48,252)
Profit for the year FEREA 307,150
Other segment information: ~~ EfbDHER :
Depreciation ik 8779 6182 1216 9,766 — - 25943
Finance costs BERA I3 — — 7225 — — 7238
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4. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Geographical information

@

®)

Revenue and other income from external customers

B R R MIEE
31 December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A

2R E ()
wEHER

@) EEPKERAMBA

Hong Kong BB
Other countries HiER

2013 2012
—B-=F Z—Z——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAET
705,496

85,244

790,740

The information of revenue and other income above is based on the

location of the markets.

Non-current assets

Majority of non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets) of the Group

are located in Hong Kong.

ExEdas R E A E R TR
TGRS -
(b) FERBHEE

AEEABOHRBEE (T8
BELHREE) BUREE -
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31 December 2013
—E—=Ff-f=1—H
5. REVENUE

An analysis of revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, is as follows:

Dealing and broking:
Commission on securities dealing and broking
Commission on futures dealing and broking

Handling income on dealing and broking

HE? “é’% i“‘ﬁE%i%E’Jﬁé
BERELEBOTEERA

Net income on leveraged foreign exchange ERIEEER
dealing and broking ECERE S Sl N R
Commission on wealth management services BRRENES
Corporate finance: hERE -
Placing and underwriting and L& BN
sub-underwriting commission AEEHNAE
— Debt securities - Fﬁ%\ )
— Equity securities —REHE
Consultancy and financial advisory fee income BERRREBAERA
Asset management: BEER
Management fee income BEEEBERA
Performance fee income FHEBRA
Loans and financing activities: ERREELY
Interest and handling income from margin loans FRERFSKFEERA

Interest and handling income from term loans
Interest income from IPO loans
Interest income from banks and others

Interest income from held-to-maturity investments

EHEFMERTFEBERA
BRDAZEERFEMA
RITREMASHA
REIHEEFBMA
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2012

HK$'000
TAT

187,398
51,619
24,444

1,072

264,533

15,878
71,447
69,663

156,988

182,866
22,860
97
64,506
5,820

276,149



31 December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A
5. REVENUE (continued) 5. Wa@#®)
2013 2012
—E-=f —E——F
HK$000 HK$'000
TET TR
Investment holding: REEH
Net fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets HIEEEEREAENRTHE
held for trading Wz (B18) 58
— Listed securities — ka3 (10,282)
— Unlisted securities —FEMER -
Net fair value gain on unlisted financial assets designated ~ #EEEAFEFT ABERIIELT
at fair value through profit or loss SREENATEKSFE 58,130
Interest income on financial assets held for trading HIEEEEREENNERA
— Listed securities — LW 3,657
— Unlisted securities —FEWES —
Interest income from unlisted financial assets designated BERATEFABRELTERARE
at fair value through profit or loss CORIRSR N 2,780
Dividend income from listed equities securities RHIEEE LMESR
held for trading AR S HA 3228
57513
786,570
6. OTHER INCOME 6. HtA
2013 2012
—E-=f —T——-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TRT
Rental income from investment properties REMEHESWA 2832
Information services income BARB KA 1226
Others Hith 112
4,170

EEEEM

BEZEZEBRZERERDA

2013 F ]
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31 December 2013
—§-=Ff=f=+-A
7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBADER
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBNBEHR SR &R,/ (G
ANATEEREE
2013 2012
—E-=f —T——-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Other operating expenses include: HiE &M% a1
Auditors’ remuneration ZER &
(i) audit services (i) =BRT 1423
(if) interim review (i) *EAEE] 535
(iil) tax and other services (iif) B R EL A AR 75 174
Foreign exchange difference, net SNEFEER (2,162)
Information services expense BARBXZ 10,767
Marketing, advertising and promotion expenses R BEEREES N 5272
Professional and consultancy fee EXRHAE 23,151
Repair and maintenance (including system maintenance) 4S8 R # & (B 2 Fi#EE) [1599
Direct operating expenses arising from investment FRNREHESIMANREY S
property that generated rental income during the year BENERLEXH 18
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration (Note 34)): B TR A(RIEZESEHE (ME34))
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e ARER 170,847
Share-based compensation expense AR R 18 2
— Share option scheme (Note 28) — iRt & (P2 28) 20,870
— Share award scheme (Note 29) — Rt 2B AT &I (M5 29) 8310
Pension scheme contributions RIKEGFTEIHR 2,457
202,484
Finance costs: BB :
Bank loans and overdrafts wholly repayable BRAFRZHEEL
within five years RITERREX 6828
Debt securities in issue BETERES 298
Others HAth 12
7,238
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on

the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.

8. FiBHRAX

BRNGHILRFENETBELOME
FERTEMEHRE 165%(—F——F:

'e

31 December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A

16.5%) B o

2013 2012

Bz —ZT——fF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FET

Current — Hong Kong BN — BB FIGH

— Charge for the year —FRFAX 61,492 37981
— Overprovision in prior years - BEFEBERE (426) (171
Deferred (Note |5) B (P 15) 20,702 10,442
Total tax charge for the year FARBER 25 81,768 48,252

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax using the REREEREZERANENIEZHEER
statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: 5

2013 2012

—E-=f —E——F

Group HK$’000 HK$'000

rEE TER AT

Profit before tax BR B A 619,526 355,402
Tax at the statutory tax rate at 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) BEEME 165% 5t B2 BHIEA

(ZZ—ZF 1 165%) 102,222 58,641

Overprovision in prior years BEFEEERME (426) (171

Income not subject to tax BERTBA (26,703) (24,820)

Expenses not deductible for tax AAHBR S 13,139 12,485

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses BRLAAERARIESE (6,359) —

Tax losses not recognised AERVIERRE 520 2,087

Temporary difference not recognised AERERER (625) 30

Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BASEERBEGABEZHIERX 81,768 48,252

BEERARERAERAT
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" Notes to Finai
Br SRR MY
31 December 2013
—F-=F+ZA=1-H
9. DIVIDENDS 9. RE
2013 2012
—E-=f —T——-fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER AT
Interim, paid — HK$0.03 (2012: HK$0.03) RE - B -BREBR00ET
per ordinary share (ZZE—ZF:003%81) 51,829 49,200
Less: Dividend for shares held under the R RBEAR R AR 1R 2
Company's share award scheme iR BV AR B (496) (247)
51,333 48,953
Final, proposed — HK$0.13 (2012: HK$0.07) A BRE - BRERR0IZET
per ordinary share (ZZ——F:007%1) 224,595 114,800
Less: Dividend for shares held under the R RBEAR R AR 2R 2
Company's share award scheme Cigstgnlz)i¥s) (2,386) (918)
222,209 113,882*
273,542 162,835
*  The Company paid a final dividend of approximately HK$ 119,729,000 ¥ AREERE-_Z-_FEZRH

for the year ended 31 December 2012, as further adjusted to include the
dividend for shares issued under the Company's general mandate and share
option scheme amounting to approximately HK$6,031,000 but exclude
the dividend for shares held under the Company's share award scheme
amounting to approximately HK$ 184,000 in respect of award shares

purchased in 201 3.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the

Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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10. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

@

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2013 is based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent of HK$536,398,000 (2012: HK$307,003,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue less shares held for the
Company's Share Award Scheme of 1,710,786,000 (2012: 1,630,943,000)
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is
the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic
eamings per share calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary

shares.

e .
- ’ =a .

g E
31 December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A

0. BAREBERRREESRET

BREXET

Bz-_T-—=%+-A=+—
RIEFE  BREXRFTHR
BEABRTHEAR LT ARRK
R AR % H536,398,0008 7T (=
ZT— 4 :307,003,00087T) &
1,710,786,0008% % 3 AR B9 N4 F 15
BURA A R BN B A S
Bfn (ZF—=%F : 1630,943,000
BR) &tE -

BREERT

BREERNNERIET QA
LBBSAEAFNRAGTE 5t
HE A& L AR IR HET
EEHEBRERBM A RAME
REBRTEBRAB - URER
FRRAEEEEEBRKER
B ERAERRECRT
REBTHLBBINEFHH -
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BEHEM

31 December 2013
—E-=F1-A=+-A

10.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY 0.
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (continued)

(b)

Diluted earnings per share (continued)

The calculation of diluted eamings per share is as follows:

BRAAEERRREGESRAER
(%)

(b) BREFRF(E)
BREERFOHETENT -

2013
—E-=F

2012

—E-—F

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent (in HK$'000)

BRAEE BB EEEF
(T&T)

307,003

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in

issue less shares held for the share award
scheme used in the basic earnings

per share calculation (in '000)

Effect of dilution — weighted average
number of ordinary shares:
Share options under the share option
scheme (in '000)
Awarded shares under the share award
scheme (in '000)

AR EERERRTN
BETERROMETIH
LD SRR Bl A M
(Fh)

HEyE - LRk METa

e B N
BRE(TH)

Rt BT EPA T Y
BRI (T

1,630,943

2,321

Number of ordinary shares for the purpose

of diluted eamings per share (in '000)

BEREERNMEH
ERREAE (TH)

1,633,264

Diluted earnings per share (in HK cents)

SREFRNCEI)

18.8
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31 December 2013

—§F-=F1tZA=1-A
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT . 9% BRERRE
Furniture
Office and Land and Leasehold
equipment fixtures buildings - improvements Motor
PBAE & i HE vehicles Total
#fE REE REF  NERE AE @t
Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
K58 TAr TEr TER TEr TEr Far

For the year ended 3| December 2013

Asat | January 2013
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Bz-E-=f
+=ZA=+-ALEE

R-F-=%-A-R

AR

23E

Net carrying amount

REFE

For the year ended 3| December 2013

Opening net canrying amount
Additions
Depreciation charged during the year

Hz-T-=F
+ZA=+-BLEE
FEEFE

AE
FRFTE

Closing net carrying amount

FREEFE

As at 3| December 2013
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

RZE-=%+-A=1+-H
AR
ZEHIE

Net carrying amount

REFE

EEEZZEBRERERAA 133
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31 December 2013
—F-—=#+=A=+-A
I1.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 1. % BERREZ)
Furniture
Office and Land and Leasehold
equipment fixtures buildings  improvements Motor
/NS & Tt HE vehicles Total
B REE REFT  DEEE AE @5t
Group HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
TEE TR TR TER TR TR TR
For the year ended 3| December 2012 HE-Z-——F
TZAZ+-BILEE
Asat | January 2012 RZE-—%-A-H
Cost X7 48,894 2598 448776 14,685 2004 516957
Accumnulated depreciation RitinE (40,506) (1,540) (21566) (4777) (1675) (70064)
Net carrying amount RHFE 8388 1058 47210 9908 329 446,893
Opening net canrying amount ENEREFE 8388 1058 £7210 9908 39 446893
Additions E 5279 4 — 17 - 5300
Depreciation charged during the year ERE (5142) (471) (12,034) (4936) (208) Q2791)
Closing net carrying amount FIREFE 8525 59 415176 4989 121 429402
As at 31 December 2012 R-E——F+-A=1+—H
Cost AR 54173 2602 448776 14702 2,004 52257
Accumulated depreciation 2HTE (45,648) 2011 (33600) 9713) (1883) (92,855)
Net carrying amount REFE 8525 591 415,176 4989 12| 429402

The land and buildings included land in Hong Kong and are held under medium-

term leases.
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31 December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A
12.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 2. REWR
2013 2012
—B-=F Z—Z——fF
Group HK$'000 HK$'000
i -] TER AT
At | January R—HA—H
Cost A 115,055
Accumulated depreciation BEHITE (3,152)
Net carrying amount REFE 111903
At | January, net carrying amount R—A—H REF#E 111903
Depreciation e (3,152)
At 31 December, net carrying amount R+ZA=+—R REFE 108,75
At 3| December W+=ZRA=+—H
Cost N 15,055
Accumulated depreciation BEHITE (6,304)
Net carrying amount REFE 108,751
The investment properties are situated in Hong Kong and are held under medium- EYEMNEBTIRBERHELOEE o
term leases.
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31 December 2013
—E-=F+-A=+-H

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 12.

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of the investment properties was HK$167.5 million as at 31
December 2013 (2012: HK$165.9 million) according to a valuation performed
by independent professionally qualified valuer, Cushman & Wakefield Valuation
Advisory Services (HK) Limited. The valuations were based on the income
capitalisation approach (term and reversion analysis) and direct comparison
approach which largely used observable inputs and took into account the significant
unobservable adjustments for the fair value of the investment properties. No
impairment has been recognised for the investment properties for the year ended

31 December 2013 (2012: nil).

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's

investment properties:

REME (%)
DHESR

BEEIZZESERMEEMSRTEK
EXBERAARARETNEE  REY
ERZE—=FF+A=+—HHNAF
BERICTSEEBIL(ZE—ZF 1659
BEAET) - HEDRBUAER AL Z
(FHRESIN) REFLEEET
TEFAUBR2HIHRRENER
TENEAELBRAE -HEZ-T
—=F+ZA=1+-HLLEFE  HERE
RRENERE(—T——F &)

TREAAKERENENRFENE

24 -

Fair value measurement as at 3| December 2013 using

Quoted
prices in
active
markets
(Level 1)
b3
mEHRE
(B14)
HK$'000
TERr

RZE-=%+ZHA=+-H

RRAUTRENATEE

Significant Significant

observable  unobservable

inputs inputs

(Level 2) (Level 3)

EX EX
TERE28 REBERSY Total
(%28)  (B38%) R

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TRET TET

Investment properties REMER —

= 167,500 167,500
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13.

ISR M

31 December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13. BFEE
Trading Club
rights  membership Total
X5k efmes Azt
Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
L | TR TR TET
As at | January 2012, 31 December 2012 RZZE—Z—F—H—H
and 3| December 2013 “T-ZH+TZA=T-HBk
—E-ZH+”"A=1—H
Net carrying amounts REFE 1913 910 2823

As at 31 December 2012 and 2013, the Group had three trading rights in The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and one trading right in The Hong Kong
Futures Exchange Limited. The intangible assets are not amortised for the years
ended 31 December 2012 and 2013 as the trading rights and club membership

have no expiry date.

RZE-—ZFR-ZFT-—=ZF1T=H
=+—H REBREREABERS
FIERARIN-ARZEREEHRER
SHERATN—EARHE - ARR S
BhkefefVEISA  wEE-T
—ZERZT-=F+ZA=1+—HLt
FEIRAHEENLEE -

OTHER ASSETS 14 H#EE
2013 2012
—E-= —E-_F
Group HK$'000 HK$'000
58 FRE AR
Basic Contribution of guarantee fund paid to Hong Kong I FEEFREEBR A F
Securities Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC") ([HBEE D OREESERNER 730 370
Deposits with The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: R&EBH A X HAERARINIZE -
— Compensation fund —-HEES 150 150
— Fidelity fund -ERES 150 150
— Stamp duty deposit —HERiRe 500 500
Admission fee paid to HKSCC XNFEBEENENE 150 150
Deposit with HKFE Clearing Corporation Limited REBRERBEARDANES 1,500 1,500
Funds deposited with the Securities and REFRBEEH
Futures Commission ERZEENEE 50 50
3,230 2,870

The carrying amounts of the Group's other assets approximate to their fair values.

AEEAMEENRREEL N FEM
% o
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Notes to Financia

B R R YRR

Statements

31 December 2013
—E=#1Zf=1-H
I5. DEFERRED TAX 15, EERE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as follows: FRNELEREBELEEZHNT -
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE
Accelerated tax
depreciation Fair value gains Total
MEHERE PRRELE @t
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Z8-=F “_F-_% “B-Zf _T-_F “B-=fF —_T-_F
Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
x5H THERT FAL THET FAT THET FET
At | January n—A—H 3,966 3,590 14,329 5489 18,295 9,079
Deferred tax charged to profitorloss B AEEFEL 309 376 21,785 8840 22,094 9216
At 31 December W+ZA=+—A 4275 3966 36,114 14329 40,389 18,295
Deferred tax assets EERBEEE
Losses available for
offsetting against future
taxable profits
AHREHERR Share-based compensation Total
REGNNESR IRt B E B 5 B ECHY
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
ZE-ZF “T-_% ZB-zZf _T-_F ZB-=f —_T-_F
Group HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
x5 THER FET TET FAT THET FAT
At | January w—HA—H 3,670 5891 995 — 4,665 5891
Deferred tax credited/(charged) RERAELERE
to profit or loss WA/ (%) 893 (2.221) 499 995 1,392 (1226)
At 31 December W+ZA=+—-A 4563 3670 1,494 995 6,057 4665

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the subsidiaries are offset when there

is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities

and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation authority. The

deferred income tax assets and liabilities are to be utilised and settled after one

year and the following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown

in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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I5.

P Y .

=] b = - :
B S
31 December 20/3
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A
DEFERRED TAX (continued) EEBIEE)
2013 2012
—E-=§f —T—=F%
Group HK$’000 HK$'000
BN - | TRRT TRET
Deferred tax assets BREMIEEE — 3,670
Deferred tax liabilities ELHIEAR (34332) (17,300)
(34,332) (13,630
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$36.6 million RN-T—=%F+-_A=+—0 K&H
as at 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$68.9 million), that are available indefinitely for RAEENMNBEENBOEEAT
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. (T ——F BIEBET) &K
PR IHE £ BB AR R AR R BRI
M o
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they HMEBRARELABREEA—BER M
have arisen in group companies that have been loss-making for some time and it is MIBEBTET IR A B R TR 7 K 8
not considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax B ZABAEETeRAARILTIE
losses can be utilised. BE o
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items: WER TR BERAELCHEBEE
2013 2012
“E-=§f 2%
Group HK$°000 HK$'000
ES TR TRT
Tax losses REER 8,961 46,671

EZEZZEBRERERAA
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Notes to Finai
B ISR R M EE
31 December 2013
—E—=Ff-f=1—H

16. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS
The movement in unlisted held-to-maturity investments which comprise one senior

note issued by a private company is summarised as follows.

6. BZEIHRE
FETHZIERE(BE-—ZRLELDA
BITNEAZR)HEFMANT -

2013 2012

—E-=f Z—ZT—-F

Group HK$’000 HK$'000
S TER THEL
At | January ®n—A—H 77,520 77,728
Exchange difference e R 35 (208)
Disposal at maturity RE|HEs & (77,555) —
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H — 77,520

As at 31 December 2012, the held-to-maturity investments were rated at Ba2 in

accordance with Moody's ratings.

7. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

RZZE——F+-F=+—H #&=&3
HRERBETRT BB

17. BRREFER

2013 2012

—E-z=f —ZE-——fF

Group HK$’000 HK$'000
rEE FET FET
Margin loans FREXR 5,584,049 2,679,678
Term loans to customers BTIRPRTHER 422,008 379,103
Gross loans and advances to customers BTYEFPNER NI RERE 6,006,057 3,058,781

Less: impairment A ORE (665) (679)

6,005,392 3,058,102
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LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)
The movements in provision for impairment of loans and advances to customers

are as follows:

P Y .

=]k - 2 - 8
g E
31 December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A

17. ERREFBR#)
KYRENERRDIREREZE N
—|? :

2013 2012

—E-=f Z—ZT—-F

Group HK$'000 HK$'000
A% FEL AT
Asat | January K—A—H 679 139
Impairment losses charged to profit or loss FABRMRERR 88 864
Impairment loss reversed to profit or loss BROZBEaMREER (102) (324)
As at 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 665 679

The impairment loss charged to profit or loss included interest income on impaired
margin loans of HK$88,000 (2012: HK$43,000) for the year ended 31 December
2013.

Included in the above provision of impairment of margin loans is a provision for
individually impaired margin loans of HK$665,000 (2012: HK$679,000) with a
carrying amount before provision of HK$665,000 (2012: HK$679,000). Save as
disclosed above, all loans and advances to customers were neither past due nor

impaired as at 3| December 2013 and 2012.

FABENREEBREREE-_T—=
+t-A=+-BLEEEREFEERF
B A 88,0008 (ZBE— % : 43,0008
L) °
FRHFREFRERBOERENREER
6650008 7T (ZZ—Z4% : 679,000 7T)
) & B (B R B I 665,0008 T (=
T :679,00087T) - REXFER
BN RZE—ZFR=F—=-F+=A
=+—H GBTEPHAEERRBERIER
BE - ARRE

EZEZZEBRERERAA
2013 F ]
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17. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

Margin financing operations

The Group provides customers with margin financing for securities transactions,
which are secured by customers' securities held as collateral. The maximum credit
limit granted for each customer is based on the customer’s financial background
and the quality of related collateral. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and has a Credit and Risk Management Department to

monitor credit risks.

Margin loans to the customers are secured by the underlying pledged securities,
bear interest at a rate with reference to the Hong Kong dollar prime rate and are
repayable on demand. The carrying value of margin loans approximates to their fair
values. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, an ageing
analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature of the margin loans
business. The amount of credit facilities granted to margin clients is determined by
the discounted market value of the collateral securities accepted by the Group. As
at 31 December 2013, the total value of securities pledged as collateral in respect
of the margin loans was approximately HK$25,799 million (2012: HK$17,830
million) based on the market value of the securities as at the end of the reporting

period.

Term loans to customers

The Group also provides term loans to customers. In determining the interest
rates, reference is made to the credit standing of the relevant customers and the
quality of the collateral pledged. The term loans granted to customers amounted
to HK$421,000,000 (2012: HK$367,700,000), and the accrued interest amounted
to HK$1,008,000 (2012: HK$11,403,000) as at 31 December 2013. The carrying

amounts of the term loans to customers approximate to their fair values.
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18.  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

@)

Analysis of accounts receivable

The carrying values of accounts receivable arising from the course of business

E?H%#ﬁ%%[‘ﬁ&

31 December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A

L e e
(@) BYWHKEDN

AEEEBBRETAELNER

of the Group are as follows: FOEREREENT
2013 2012
—E-=f —T—-fF
Group HK$000 HK$'000
AEHE T#T TR
Accounts receivable arising from dealing and broking B B & 4842 % 15 &= 4 §) JE UL IR
— cash and custodian clients -RekFAEEP 121,947 23,758
— the Stock Exchange and other clearing houses — B R A E AT 44,031 264,568
— brokers and dealers —REEX5HE 793215 706,313
Accounts receivable arising from corporate finance, T%mE + EEERE RN E ¥
asset management and investment holding FIEE B IR
— corporate clients and investment funds —hERFPREEES 51,916 40,554
1,011,109 1,035,193
Less: impairment B RE (12,228) (12,006)
998,881 1,023,187

The movements in provision for impairment of accounts receivable are as

FUFERERBES M

follows:
2013 2012
—E-=f —T—-fF
Group HK$'000 HK$'000
r58 TERT FAT
As at | January R—A—H 12,006 12,009
Impairment losses charged to profit or loss FFABRNRERR 232 7
Impairment losses reversed to profit or loss BEZERMREESSE (10) Q)
Amount written off as uncollectible HE AR AR E A FR0E — (8)
As at 31 December R+-A=t—H 12,228 12,006

BEZEZEBRZERERDA
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31 December 2013
ZE=Ff_fA=1-H
18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 18. FEWFIE &)
(b)  Accounts receivable neither past due nor impaired (b) B AR HA 7N K Rl (B O B UK B
Accounts Accounts
receivable receivable
Accounts from from
receivable the Stock Accounts corporate
from cash  Exchange and receivable clients and
and  other clearing from investment
custodian houses brokers funds
cients  FEER T and dealers Byt
EURER kEt REUEER EFRRE Total
AERFHE  AEFRE  RIEIE HEeHA -
Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
rEE TER TER TER TET TiEn
As at 3| December R-B-=%
2013 +=B=t-H
Neither past due RARBBIARE
nor impaired 108,643 44031 793,215 43,805 989,694
As at 3| December RZE-_F
2012 TZA=1+-H
Neither past due BARBATKAE
nor impaired [1,447 264,568 706313 38578 1,020,906

Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients which are neither past

due nor impaired represent unsettled client trades on various securities

exchanges transacted on the last two to three business days prior to the

year end date. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the

directors, an ageing analysis does not give additional value in view of the

nature of these accounts receivable.
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3/ December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A
18.  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 18. EWRE£)
Accounts receivable past due but not impaired () EEHERHNENERRE
Accounts Accounts
receivable receivable
Accounts from from
receivable the Stock Accounts corporate
from cash  Exchange and receivable clients and
and  other clearing from investment
custodian houses brokers funds
dients  EWBERF and dealers EltE
EWRER kit ERELER EFRRE Total
AEREFNE HEAYNE RZEHE HEERE @t
Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PN L THERT TET THERT TERT TET
Asat 3| December 2013 HR=B-ZF+=f=+-H
Past due less than 6 months B8R 758 A LA 842 — — 2,681 3,523
Past due 6 to 12 months ~ BHINZE+—{EA = = = 5210 5210
842 = = 7891 8733
Asat 3| December 2012 RZZE——#+-HA=+—H
Past due less than 6 months %1 E3758 A KA R 276 — — 150 46
Past due 6 to 12 months  BEINZE+Z{EA — — — 1,826 1,826
276 — — 1976 2252

Notes to 1nanc1a Statements

Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients which are past due but

not impaired represent client trades on various securities exchanges which

are unsettled beyond the settlement date. When the cash and custodian

clients fail to settle on the settlement date, the Group has the rights to

force-sell the collateral underlying the securities transactions. The outstanding

accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients as at 31 December

2012 and 2013 are considered past due but not impaired after taking into

consideration the recoverability from the collateral. The collateral held

against these receivables is publicly traded securities.

ERBERRERKR S RTE
@F%IETEEAKH%%?&%%E

mEAPRNAEENER
x%ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ’\lmlﬁ - —HBREK
AERPARENEE B BERNK
o RNEEBAERTIHEEE
%Q%tﬁ?‘ﬂﬁ'\]ﬁﬁfm ° Z«‘%‘)’Sﬁ
AomakEtE  RZE—=
ER-ZZF-=F+Z ﬁ +—H
HAREBEERIREREEETFR
EREWRAEBEMERRIE - %
FRBFEFANEFRAAR
MEENZ
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31 December 2013
—F-ZFFZf=1A
18.  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 18.

(c)  Accounts receivable past due but not impaired (continued)

Accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment funds which
are past due but not impaired represent receivables arising from asset
management, corporate finance and advisory services which have not
yet been settled by clients after the Group’s normal credit period. The
outstanding accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment funds
as at 31 December 2012 and 2013 are considered not to be impaired as the

credit rating and reputation of the trade counterparties are sound.

(d)  Impaired accounts receivable

WA (#)
(0 CABBERBENERREZ)

ERHERRENEREERER
FEREREGTREREFRALHE
—RAZE B 1 R (B R A B UK
B (EXBEEEE XA
FEERE)  N_T-——FR
—T-ZHt+ZA=t+—HKE
ERREEEPRBREASHER
WRERRE - REASKHHF
BREERFEREE -

(d) EREEKRE

Accounts Accounts
Accounts receivable receivable
receivable from from
from cash the Stock Accounts corporate
and  Exchange and receivable clients and
custodian  other clearing from investment
clients houses brokers funds
ERRE BUWHRAM  anddealers i 3061
KkitE kEt EUEER EFRRE Total
RFRE HEFFE RZERA HEERA H
Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A& TR Tign TR TiEn TR
Asat 3| December 2013 R=-Z-=f#+-A=+-H
Impaired accounts EREERE
receivable 12,462 = = 220 12,682
Less: impairment B RE (12,008) — — (220) (12,228)
454 = = = 454
Asat 3| December 2012 W-Z——%+-fA=+-H
Impaired accounts EREERE
receivable 12,035 — — — 12,035
Less: impairment B RME (12,006) — — — (12,006)
29 — — — 29
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18.  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

(d)  Impaired accounts receivable (continued)

Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients are considered impaired

when clients fail to settle according to settlement terms after taking into

consideration the recoverability of collateral.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

a“".

B i RN

31 December 2013

—§F-=F1tZA=1-A

18. EWRE£)

d CHREBKREAE)
REFERRAAREIER - F
BPRERBERGIETAS
B BURENEEEFPTAS

AR ARE ©

19. BEHE RERHEMERRE

2013 2012
Bz —ZT——fF
Group HK$’000 HK$'000
FRE TER FET
Interest receivables JE WA 8 3,741 8,808
Prepayments, deposits and others BNRE - BE KA 17,600 14,093
Total @t 21,341 2290
Company
NG
Prepayments, deposits and others BAHIE - ke kEM 2,737 1,549

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets

included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent

history of default.

TREESBEARTARE - SFALLERE
BREENEREETHY BROTH -

EEExERERAERAT 147
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~E-ZFt=A=1A

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

20. BEAVEFABENEREE

2013 2012
—E-=f —T——-fF
Group HK$’000 HK$'000
K& TER TR
Financial assets held for trading: RBIEEBEMSREE
— Listed equity investments - IR ARE 212,025 75,876
— Listed debt investments - EHEHERE 420,658 288,100
— Unlisted debt investments (Note (a)) —F EMEBERE (@) 227,459 —
Financial assets designated as at fair value EBERLTFETABRS
through profit or loss TREE:
— unlisted convertible promissory note —FEmARREE(TRRER)
(the "“Convertible Promissory Note") (Note (b)) GEAO) 123,575 118,244
983,717 482,220

In July 2013, the Group has subscribed a three-year convertible bond issued
by a company (the “Investee”), whose ordinary shares were listed on the
Stock Exchange, at a consideration of HK$45.5 million. The principal amount
of the convertible bond was HK$45.5 million and it bears an interest rate
of | % per annum. An amount of HK$I million was converted into listed
equity investments during the year. The fair value of the convertible bond was
HK$57.4 million as at 31 December 2013.

The Group also acquired approximately 8.6 million non-voting convertible
preference shares (the "Convertible Preference Shares”) of the Investee at
a consideration of HK$70.5 million. The Convertible Preference Shares are
not entitled to dividend or interest income. The non-voting Convertible
Preference Shares can be convertible into ordinary shares of the Investee from
4 May 2014 to 3 May 2019 and will automatically be converted into ordinary
shares of the Investee on 4 May 2019. The fair value of the Convertible
Preference Shares was HK$133.3 million as at 31 December 2013.
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSSE

(continued)

(i) The Group has entered into a sale and purchase agreement dated 4
November 2013 with its fellow subsidiary, under which the Group purchased
a two-year convertible bond issued by a company, whose ordinary shares
were listed on the Stock Exchange, at a consideration of HK$33.0 million.
The principal amount of the convertible bond was HK$32.0 million and bears
interest at 9% per annum. The fair value of the convertible bond was HK$36.8
million as at 31 December 2013.

The Group purchased a two-year Convertible Promissory Note issued by a third party
(the “Issuer’”) amounting to approximately HK$42,650,000 in May 201 I. Pursuant to
a warrant agreement entered into between the Issuer and the Group in May 2011,
the Issuer guaranteed that the audited and forecasted consolidated profit after tax
of the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer (the “Project Company”) for the years
ended 3| December 2010 and 201 | should not be less than a certain threshold level,
otherwise the Group will be compensated by the Issuer for the shortfall (the “Profit
Guarantee 2010 and 201 1"). During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Issuer
and the Group agreed to extend the maturity of the Convertible Promissory Note to
31 December 2014 and the Issuer and the Group agreed that the Profit Guarantee
2010 and 201 | were released and the number of convertible shares attributable to
the Convertible Promissory Note were increased.

In addition, the Group will be compensated for the shortfall if the audited
consolidated profit after tax of the Project Company for either the year ended
31 December 2013 or for the year ending 31 December 2014 is less than certain
threshold levels, depending on which year the Project Company would be listed
on the Stock Exchange. The Convertible Promissory Note bears a fixed interest
rate since | January 2013 to the maturity date of 31 December 2014 (2012: bore
interest rate at the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus an interest spread) and
the interest income for the year ended 31 December 2013 was HK$2,985,000
(2012: HK$2,780,000). The expected amount and timing of receipt of the shortfall
compensation are part of the input variables used to determine the fair value of the
investment in the Convertible Promissory Note.

31 December 2013
—E—=Ff-f=1—H

20. BEAVEFABENEREE#)

(i) ARERERZRMEARRL
—HEHR-T—=F1+—H
mEMEERR Bt &%
BRETh—RARETHOM

FHABRERES  ZARNE
BERNEIMLET RER

BOBEEBTT - JBRRESFK
AEFEANOABBIT  FH
IvroT% REHNATE
—E—=F+ZA=1—H
&%3Ea%xo

AEAR-_Z——FRABETH
—BE=H(BITADBITOMES
AR ER - B E ) 542,650,000
TC o RIBBEITABAEEN T ——
FHATUH—HREBWRE - FITA
RE BOAZENBRAR([BEER
ANHE_Z-TFR-Z—F
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31 December 2013
i

21.  CLIENT TRUST BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS

Client trust bank balances

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with authorised financial

institutions to hold clients’ deposits arising from normal business transactions. The

Group is not allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its own obligations under

the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.571).

AEEERBTEHRRBESREESE

&%
EFERATES

AEERRBUEREBERRBULELR
F URHREFAEEXBRIELN
TR - REBEREZRBEGN(FEE
PIFs71 &) ARETEHAEF KA
BEESES

Cash and cash equivalents HEREESZEY
2013 2012
—E-=f —T—-fF
Group HK$'000 HK$'000
rEE THT FET
Cash and bank balances He KRITHH 378,152 258,754
Time deposits TEHER 107,143 125,800
485,295 384,554
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-—-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FAT

Denominated in AT EETE

HK$ BT 341,572 284,320
Us$ XL 61,247 84,566
RMB AR 76,175 13,068
Others Htn 6,301 2,600
485,295 384,554
2013 2012
—E-=f —T—-fF
Company HK$’000 HK$'000
VAN THT FET
Cash and bank balances denominated in HK$ B TTEHERIR S RIRITH 1,205 521
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21.

22.

ISR M

31 December 2013
—E—=Ff-f=1—H

CLIENT TRUST BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND CASH 2l BEFERARTESRRRERRESE
EQUIVALENTS (continued) Bz
Cash and cash equivalents RERFASEEY
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the Group RS HEERE REBERE S RE
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to HK$76,175,000 (2012: THEAENARBIAREDHER
HK$13,068,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, 76,17500078 T ( —ZF — =% : 13,068,000
under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration BL) ARBETSEHRABMABEME
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is B R RIBRESNESE RAEE -
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to EERNESERT AEEEER
conduct foreign exchange business. RETHNEZBNORITEARBLRR
Hi 5 H -
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. BOERERNTARTERARIRZE
Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and FZE:AE - HHTFHERNFERENT
three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and —BE=ZlA RAEENHNKRLE
eam interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are SKME - WIRAEE BT HETR Xt
deposited with creditworthy banks with no history of default. B RITEHRPEAEERTEERER
52 )38 7
INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 22. RMBLRRE
2013 2012
—E-=f —T——F
Company HK$'000 HK$'000
ARATH T THEL
Unlisted shares, at cost I LRI RAAE 1,306,553 1,280,765
Capital contribution in respect of employee FLiE B LA RETEE
share-based compensation FMEE 29,525 28,378
Recharge in respect of employee shiE B UARR D RERER)
share-based compensation HHBHRE R (19,912) (2,590)
1,316,166 1,306,553

EZEZZEBRERERAA
2013 F ]



: INC . U . dl-
B ISR R M EE

31 December 2013

—E—=Ff-f=1—H

22.  INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 are as follows:

22. RMBRARKREE)
RNZZE—=E+-A=+—0 HEA

RAEET ¢
Place of Nominal value of ~ Percentage of equity
incorporation issued ordinary attributable to
and business share capital the Company
Company name TR AR 3 R ERITEBR AREER Principal activities
RNEER e RAENEE REED TERH
Direct Indirect
B B3
Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Samoa/ HK$31,980,000 100% —  Investment holding and provision of
Limited ("GJHK") Hong Kong 31,980,000/ 7T general administration and
BREZ(EE)ERAR BED/EE support services to its subsidiaries
((BREZER]) RERR LA B AR R
—RER R IRRE
Guotai Junan Securities Hong Kong HK$2,600,000,000 — [00%  Securities dealing and broking and provision
(Hong Kong) Limited” A% 2,600,000,0007% 7T of wealth management
BREREF (BE)ERAR BREE ML ARRES EER
Guotai Junan Futures Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 — [00%  Futures dealing and broking
(Hong Kong) Limited B 50,000,000/ 75 HEEE SR
BERELHE(ER)ERAR
Guotai Junan Finance Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 — [00%  Money lending and trading in securities
(Hong Kong) Limited 30 1,000,000/ 7T BEREREE

ERELHH(BEE)ERAR
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

al Statements

E?H%#ﬁ%%[fﬁﬁ

31 December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A

22. RKBRARRE#E)

Place of Nominal value of ~ Percentage of equity
incorporation issued ordinary attributable to
and business share capital the Company
Company name ALK ERTEER ANEEL Principal activities
NAEH geni RANEE kEED FEER
Direct Indirect
BE 5F:3
Guotai Junan Capital Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 — 100%  Provision of consultancy and
BRELZHERRRA 0 50,000,000 7 financial services
R R AR
Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 — [00%  Asset management
EREREETE(TH) BB 5,000,00077T EEER
BRATF
Guotai Junan Fund Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 — 50%  Asset management and trading in securities
Management Limited' 9 10,000,000/ 7T BEEBEREREE
AREZECERARAA
Guotai Junan FX Limited Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 — [00%  Leveraged foreign exchange dealing
BRELZIINERRRA B 30,000,000 7T and broking
BERAINER S REL
Note |1 The Group considers that it has the ability to govern the financial and operating M. ARAERAERNEZEAXEGRES
policies of the entity as the Group has the power to appoint or remove the GARLEKE  WAEER LG
majority of the members of its Board of Directors. PEELERNME RS ERE -
Note 22 On 27 December 2013, Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited has injected iz R—E—=F+-_A-++8"
HK$600,000,000 to Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited by subscribing BHER(EB)ERATEBR
for its 600,000,000 new shares of par value HK$1.00 each. BRAEELBA(BB)ERAT
600,000,000 A% & R /I {8 1.007% TLHY
TR A7 A ELE A 600,000,000 7T ©
Amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on EWHEBARTRBEAELR 2814
demand. The carrying amount approximates to the fair value as at the end of the RERIEBESE - RNREHEK - HERME
reporting period. HEATERE

EZEZZEBRERERAA
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31 December 2013
—E=#1Zf=1-H
23.  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 23 BAFE
2013 2012
—B-=F Z—Z——F
Group HK$’000 HK$'000
r&E TERT TET
Accounts payable arising from dealing and broking HEERELEBEENERNRK
~ clients -EP 8,186,245 6,657,187
— brokers and dealers —BERR5H 445,354 270,443
—the Stock Exchange and other clearing houses —BRMREMEEN 61,275 —
Accounts payable arising from corporate finance, Re%mE  BEE ﬁ&
asset management and investment holding REEREENENT
— corporate clients —hERP 427,506 28,188

9,120,380 6,955,818

The majority of the accounts payable are repayable on demand except for certain
accounts payable to clients which represent margin deposits received from clients
for their trading activities in the normal course of business. Only the excess

amounts over the required margin deposits stipulated are repayable on demand.

The Group has a practice to satisfy all the requests for payment within one business
day. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, the ageing

analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature of these businesses.

Accounts payable to clients also include those payables in trust accounts with
authorised institutions of HK$7,967 million (2012: HK$5,884 million), Hong Kong
Futures Exchange Clearing Corporation Limited and other futures dealers of
HK$122 million (2012: HK$328 million).

Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing except for the accounts payable to

clients.
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24.

25.

3/ December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 24. HitbEAFERETRE
2013 2012
—B-=F Z—Z——fF
Group HK$’000 HK$'000
r5E THER FAET
Other payables H o e 3RE 2,267 3,287
Accrued liabilities JEET IR 136,762 91,735
139,029 95,022
Company
VW
Accrued liabilities JEET IR 891 1,008
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of three HiENZIERS - EFHER A3 E
months. R
INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 25, HEBFEHR
2013 2012
—E-=ZF ZE-—-F
Group HK$’000 HK$'000
P! TERT FAET
Secured bank borrowings BHEBRITER 1,070,000 360,000
Unsecured bank borrowings BB ITER 2,316,113 379,820
Total bank borrowings RITIERETR 3,386,113 739,820
2013 2012
—E-=ZF ZE—-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Denominated in BT EEE
HK$ BT 3,200,000 510,000
US$ =YW 186,113 93,024
RMB AR® — 136,796
3,386,113 739,820
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31 December 2013
Ry X
25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 25. FEBITERE)
Bank loans of HK$1,070 million (2012: HK$360 million) were secured by certain of ROTERI00BBEL(ZE -4
the listed shares pledged by the customers to the Group as margin loan collateral OEEBTL)VAEFRAEAREER
which had an aggregate fair value amounting to HK$2,433.3 million as at 3| BEGRAEBEFENET EmRGE
December 2013 (2012: HK$1,372.4 million). ABER ZERR_ZE—=%+_-A8
ST -RAMERTERLZ3AEATL
(ZZ—ZF  I3N4BEHBT) °
In addition, the Company has guaranteed certain of the Group's bank borrowings BEAN  RREBER KRB EREEN
up to HK$2,730 million (2012: HK$530 million) as at the end of the reporting FITERIRM T A& ZEL0BES
period. T(ZE—ZF : 5330 BEBTIMER -
The Group's bank borrowings bear interest at the Interbank Offered Rate plus an AEERTETERBTREREME
interest spread per annum and are repayable within three months or less at the BEME  ARBEHR=@AzkzA
end of the reporting period. Big o
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate to their fair values due ERAEERITETNEEHES M
to their short term nature. ERFNEREREQATERS -
26. DEBT SECURITIES IN ISSUE 26. BRITEBES
2013 2012
—E-=f —Z——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Group and Company AEERARE] TER FEL
At amortised cost: R AR -
Medium-term notes HHEE 324,706 86,000
Denominated in HEEE
HK$ BT 59,700 86,000
Us$ e 162,705 —
RMB N 102,301 —
324,706 86,000

The outstanding balance of HK$324.7 million (2012: HK$86 million) represents
unlisted notes issued by the Company under the Company's Medium Term Note
Programme (the “MTN Programme”). As at 31 December 2013, the medium term
notes bear fixed interest rate ranged from 1% to 3.35% (2012: 0.95% to 1%).

The Group and the Company have not had any defaults of principal, interest or
other breaches with respect to their liabilities during the year (2012: nil).
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27.

‘Notes to Financial Statements
3/ December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A
SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
2013 2012
—B-=F Z—Z——fF
Shares HK$’000 HK$'000
R 1 TEr THT
Authorised: AR
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.| each 10,000,000,0008% & [%0. | 78 7T 6 & 3 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
At | January, 1,640,000,000 ordinary shares of M—A—H  1,640,000,0008%
HK$0.! each BRO.VETTHE R 164,000 164,000
85,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.| each issued FA B 8 % 17 B 3517 985,000,000 & ik
upon placement of shares (2012: nil) (Note) EEO. ETTH kK
CE—=F: &) (M) 8,500 —
2,650,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.| each issued AR AR AR TR B 32T #92,650,0008%
upon exercise of share options (2012: nil) (Note 28)  FAXEAO. | B TR L B
(Z2——%: &) (M) 265 —
At 31 December 2013, 1,727,650,000 RZE—=F+=-A=+—8H"
(2012: 1,640,000,000) ordinary shares of HK$0.| each 1,727,6500000% (ZZ——4F :
1,640,000,0008% ) EAREEO. & TTHY)
EE 172,765 164,000

Note:

b

Pursuant to the placing and subscription agreement (the “Agreement”) dated 20 December
2012, GJHL agreed i) to place its existing 85,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
through Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited, as the placing agent, to two
independent parties at a placing price of HK$2.20 each; and ii) to subscribe for the same
number of ordinary shares of the Company that GJHL has placed as mentioned above at a
subscription price of HK$2.20 each. As at 31 December 2012, the Group had subscription
money received in advance of HK$186,798,000. On 3 January 2013, the Company allotted
and issued 85,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0. each to GJHL at the subscription price
of HK$2.20 each, resulting in additional share capital of HK$8,500,000. An amount of
HK$ 178,264,000, being the excess of the proceeds over the nominal value of above-
mentioned ordinary shares issued of HK$8,500,000 and issuing expense of HK$236,000, was

credited to the share premium account.

BEARA-S——F+-A-THNEE
kREHE(ZBZE]) BRERERRA
BNEBERERELFBA)BRRBIE
AEEAE)REEETR220ETAMSE
Y8 57 7% A B & 85,000,000 R A A B3R A &
B RiVEER220BTHREEREL
MERELERMAESAR AL BRAER
FEKRMD - N_TB——F+-_A=+—8"
N5 B B 8 2 YR ER BB FRUIE 186,798,000 74
TLeRZE—=ZF—A=H AARRRHE
BER220ETMERE REREE KRBT
85,000,000 X R EEO. | BITH L@ - %
2K 8,500,000 B TTRIREIMNR AN © #B I Lt 31T
T3 R 88,500,000 T MBI A EITHX
236,0005% 7T 14 BT 15 /9 178,264,000/ 7T E &1
AR EERR -
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31 December 2013
i
28. SHARE OPTION RESERVE

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of assisting in
recruiting, retaining and motivating key staff members. The Board of Director has
the discretion to grant share options to employees and directors of any members
of the Group, including independent non-executive directors. The share option
scheme became effective on |9 June 2010 and, unless otherwise cancelled or

amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date (i.e, |8 June 2020).

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted to be
granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to

shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director or chief executive of the Company, or to any
of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company's shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders” approval in

advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from the date
of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$ | in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by the directors,
and commences after a vesting period of one to three years and ends on a date

which is not later than ten years from the date of offer of the share options.
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28.

SHARE OPTION RESERVE (continued)

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but may not
be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's
shares on the date of offer of the share options; (i) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company's shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (jii) the nominal value (i.e. HK$0.10 each) of the

Company's ordinary share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at

shareholders’ meetings.

2,650,000 share options were exercised during the year ended 31 December 2013
(2012: nil), resutting in the issue of 2,650,000 shares of HK$2.50 each for a total
cash consideration of HK$6,625,000. An amount of HK$2,909,000 was transferred
from the share option reserve to the share premium account upon the exercise
of the share options. The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was HK$3.34 per share (2012: No share

options were exercised).

For the year ended 31 December 2013, 500,000 share options lapsed prior to
the vesting date as a result of staff resignation (2012: 333,333 share options were

forfeited and 666,667 share options lapsed).

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has recognised a share-based
compensation expense of HK$9,577,000 for the share options under the share
option scheme in profit or loss (2012: HK$20,870,000).

28.
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31 December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A

BREREE)
BRENTHERESETE - ETIE
RUATREE  ()AR AR R E
EHHBEBZAEKTE : (VARA]
RN ERZL B BATRER S AT
RO TFHWHE - Ri)ADFE @R
MEE (AER0.10%BIT) °

BEARAE N0 N 45 A AR B
RAE HIREMER -

HE - Z—Z=F+_F=+—HLItHF
& A2,650000)BREESE (=

SR

—ZF ) o EEE1T2,650,0000%F
PREE250B TR - IBEIR e/

E#48%86,625,000/8 70 ° REBARIEETTHE
1% + 2,909,000/ TR R EE R BRI E
ERERMEER - REREITERNE
RRAERATTHE B iR IE R E AER
34 (ZT—ZF  WEEREE
1718)

BE-ZT—=F+-A=+—HL#HF
&+ FRME S B - 500,000 B AAER
BEAMRIAN (ZT—ZF 333333
17 B IR M TR ZE J2 666,667 10 BE AR I K
) e

BE_T-—=F+_-_A=t—-BL#F
g AEECHERESSETOER

BERESERURN AERORERT
9,577,000/ 7t(=ZF — = F : 20,870,000
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31 December 2013
—E-=F+-A=+-H

28. SHARE OPTION RESERVE (continued) 28.

Movements of share options outstanding under the share option scheme during

the year are as follows:

BREREE)
FABRETEIREARTERRENE
BT

2013 2012
—E-=F “E——F
Weighted Weighted
average average

exercise price

exercise price

ML Number MEFSH Number

TEE of options 1@ of options

HK$ EBREHE HK$  EEARIESLA

per share '000 per share '000

SRET 6 BkET T4

At | January m—A—8 250 39,000 430 40,000
Cancelled during the year FRTH — — 430 (40,000)
Granted during the year FERR L — — 250 40,000
Forfeited during the year FRBHE — — 250 (333)
Lapsed during the year FRXM 2.50 (500) 250 (667)
Exercised during the year FATTRE 2.50 (2,650) — —
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8 2.50 35,850 250 39,000

At 31 December 2013, the Company had 35,850,000 (2012: 39,000,000)
share options outstanding under the share option scheme, which represents
approximately 2.08% (2012: 2.38%) of the Company's shares in issue as at 3|
December 2013. The exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 35,850,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of
HK$3,585,000 and share premium HK$86,040,000 (before issuance expenses). The
option period of the share options is from 24 April 2012 to 9 June 2021.
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29.

SHARE AWARD RESERVE

On 27 October 2011, the Company adopted the share award scheme under
which shares of the Company may be awarded to selected employees (including
directors) of any members of the Group (the “Selected Employees”) pursuant to
the terms of the scheme rules and trust deed of the share award scheme. The
share award scheme became effective on the adoption date and, unless otherwise
terminated or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date, ie, 26
October 2021.

The aggregate number of the Awarded Shares permitted to be awarded under the
share award scheme throughout the duration of the share award scheme is limited
to 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date. The
maximum number of the Awarded Shares which may be awarded to a Selected
Employee in any 12-month period up to and including the date of award shall
not in aggregate exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the

adoption date.

When a selected employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which might include
service and/or performance conditions, specified by the Board of Directors of the
Company at the time of making the award and become entitled to the shares
of the Company forming the subject of the award, the trustee shall transfer the
relevant Awarded Shares to that employee at no cost. The selected employee
however is not entitled to receive any income or distribution, such as dividend

derived from the unvested Awarded Shares allocated to him/her.

29.
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31 December 2013
i

29.

SHARE AWARD RESERVE (continued)

29. B RBEEE)

Details of the Awarded Shares awarded during the years ended 3| December TR EBEE_E——FR_TE—=F
2012 and 2013 are set out below: TZA=T—BLEEMRLRBRH
RS
Average fair
Number of value per share
Date of award shares awarded BRBRPM  Vesting dates
RBAY REROHBE ¥HA¥E BEAM
30/3/2012 7,494,000 HK$2.15  30/11/2012, 30/11/2013 and 30/11/2014
—T--F¥=A=+H LSET —E-—Ft—-A=tH ZT—=F
T-A=tAR-ZF-MmF+—A=1H
211512012 182,000 HK$2.52  30/11/2012, 30/11/2013 and 30/11/2014
“T-—FRAZ+-H 2928t —“E--Ft+-A=ftH —T-=F
T—A=tRR=-F-MmE+t—A=1H
22/4/2013 8,567,000 HK$2.97  30/11/2013, 30/11/2014 and 30/1 |/20|5
“E-=fPWA-f-H 29781t —E-ZF+—-A=1H —FT-DF
tT—A=tHRZ-Z— £¢+ A=1H
The fair value of Awarded Shares granted during the year ended 31 December NEE-ZE—=#+-A=+—H

2013 was measured at the share price amounted to HK$3.17 of the Company
on grant date, being adjusted the expected dividends before vesting date. The
expected dividends reflect the assumptions that the historical dividends are
indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome.

The vesting date of 1,360,000 Awarded Shares, which was granted on 30 March
2012 and expected to be vested on 30 November 2012, has been deferred. Those
Awarded Shares were vested and transferred to the grantees on 24 June 2013 at
no cost.

5,258,000 Awarded Shares have been either transferred to the grantees or sold in
accordance with their instructions on 30 November 2013 (30 November 2012:
[,146,000) at no cost.

202,000 Awarded Shares lapsed prior to their vesting date as a result of staff
resignations for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 205,000 Awarded
Shares).

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has recognised a share-based
compensation expense of HK$20,337,000 for the awarded Shares under the share
award scheme in profit or loss (2012: HK$8,310,000).
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30.

31

SHARES HELD UNDER THE SHARE AWARD SCHEME

Movements of shares held under the share award scheme during the year are as

31 December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A

30. REROGRBEFFORS
R SRt B H A MO0 R A A9

follows: FHMT :
2013 2012
—E-=F “T——F
Number of Number of
shares shares
’000 '000
HK$'000  RAEE HK$000  RRIDEE
THER BAF 5 FAT PATF&T
At | January n—H—H 28,833 13,111 9,384 4727
Purchased during the year REREE 42,447 11,861 21,724 9,530
Vested and transferred out RERNGEREL
during the year (14,578) (6,618) (2,275) (1,146)
At 31 December W+ZA=+—H 56,702 18,354 28,833 [3,111

During the year ended 3| December 2013, the trustee acquired |1,861,000
ordinary shares (2012: 9,530,000 ordinary shares) of the Company for the share
award scheme through purchases in the open market at a total cost, including

related transaction costs of approximately HK$42,447,000 (2012: HK$21,724,000).

RESERVES
(@) Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein are

presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Other reserve of the Group as at 31 December 2012 and 2013 represents
a merger reserve, being the difference between the issued share capital of
Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited and the amount of share capital and
share premium of the Company transferred and issued to GJHL in exchange

for the entire issued share capital of Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited.

RBE-_Z-—=F+-A=+-BLEE %
TARBD B EIARR A (BERBR 5K
IR) 442,447,000 T (ZE— 4 ¢ 21,724,000

BIL)ER

B(=ZE—

FMEEA 861,000 RAATI LR

— 4 9,530,000 R E AL ©

3. f#fE
@ F&E
AEBHRKIECBREEZHNGA

R_E——ER-F—=F+_H
=+—B AREEMFEEREH
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31 December 2013
—E-=F1-A=+-A

31.  RESERVES (continued)
(b) Company

At | January 2013
Total comprehensive income
for the year
Shares issued upon placement
of shares (Note 27)
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payment
(Note 28 and 29)
Purchase of shares held under
the share award scheme
(Note 30)
Vesting of shares for the share
award scheme (Note 29 and 30)
Share issued upon
exercise of share options under
the share option scheme(Note 28)
Final dividend paidin 2012 (Note 9)

R-F-=%-A-H
ﬁ?ﬂ%@l&?ﬁ, A

REERHMETHRA
(Mﬁm
RRRELE
RiAZ M HHE
(28 R29)
BERERG RDHERE
Rt (M3 30)

eI RE ]
(M5E29 ]2 30)

REERE 2E T A
BREETE
g7 RBR (7 (M5 28)

R-F-ZFXRORERE

(Mt329)
Interim dividend declared ERRX AP HRE
and paid (Note 9) (Hi3E9)
Proposed final dividendn 2013 BB -ZERRHAHRE
(Note 9) (Hi3E9)
At 31 December 2013 RZZ-=F
TZA=t+-H
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Share
premium
RoaE
HK$'000
TiEx

Share
option
reserve
BRERE
HK$'000
Thn

31

wEE
(b) EAT
Shares held
under the

Share  share award

award scheme
reserve  BERA
KRB RBTE

e BEORG
HK$'000  HK$'000
TEn  TER

Proposed
dividend
RiRRS
HK$'000
ThR

Retained
profits
REEN
HK$'000
AL




31

31 December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A
RESERVES (continued) HiEE)
(b)  Company (continued) (b) AR (E)
Shares held
under the
Share  share award
Share award scheme
Share option reeve  MRIERR(D  Proposed  Retained
premium reserve  ROEE  REEE dividend profits
BiaE BRERE e BAENRL  RERS  REEN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TAT TR TR TR TER TAT
At | January 2012 RZT-_%-A—-H 2,768,723 12,805 — (9,384) 98,116 2626
Total comprehensive income ERNPENEER - - — — — 170,746
for the year
Recognition of equity-settled BRERELE — 20870 8310 - - -
share-based payment R % TR
(Note 28 and 29) (M8 ]R29)
Purchase of shares held under the BB RBIR N RE B AR — — — (21,724) (210) 210
share award scheme fRn (M 30)
(Note 30)
Vesting of shares for the share RRHREHESE — — (2,590) 2275 - 315
award scheme (Note 29and 30) R 7 (A3 29 & 30)
Transfer of share option reserve. AR AR B K RIS 88 ¢ — (345) — — — 345
upon the forfeiture of Bk
share options
Final dividend paid for 201 BT EXFRORBRES — — — - (97906) —
Interim dividend declared BEREX PHRE — — — — — (48,953)
and paid (Note 9) (MEE9)
Proposed final dividend T -ZFRRN — — — - 113882 (113882)
for 2012 (Note 9) RERS (MEE9)
At 31 December 2012 RIE-——F+-A=+-H 2768703 33330 5720 (8833 113882 1407

B RENE
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31 December 2013
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31.  RESERVES (continued) 31,

(b)  Company (continued)

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent for the year
ended 31 December 2013 includes a profit of HK$279,351,000 (2012:
HK$170,746,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company.

32. OPERATING LEASE AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 32.

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (Note [2) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms of three years. The terms of the

leases generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had total future minimum lease receivables

under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

)
(b) ARXFE)

BEZT—=F+-A=1+—HL
FEORAEEARGESETR
279,351,000 T(ZE—=
F 1 170,746000/8 L) * ZEFIE
BEERDEMBRENEE ©

KeHEREMAR
fEREEA

AEEREBELEHERFHAEEREY
£ (ME12)  HEMEERRA=F -
HEGRT—RAETEP XA ERE
o

RZE—=F+ZA=+—0  RET
A EEER TR HR AR HRAR
REWSREEEFRAEAMT -

2013 2012

—E-=f —T—-F

Group HK$'000 HK$'000
-1 TERT TET
Within one year —FR 3,032 3810
In the second to fifth years, inclusive RZZERF(BHEEEMTF) 1,101 4,133
4,133 7,943

Capital commitments

The Group had capital commitments for an IT upgrade of approximately
HK$533,000 which were contracted but not provided for as at 31 December 2013
(2012: HK$2,103,000).
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AEERAREARGELBRAELD
533,000 7T * ZABERITHBETRRZ
E-ZFF+_A=Z+—BFURBEHCZZ
—Z4F 2,103,000 7T) ©



32.

33.

OPERATING LEASE AND OTHER COMMITMENTS (continued)

Other commitments

The Group has undertaken underwriting obligations on placing, IPO, takeover and
merger activities and financial obligations to loans facilities granted to customers.
As at 31 December 2013, the underwriting and financial obligations were
approximately HK$256.8 million and HK$176.4 million, respectively (31 December
2012: nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In addition to the guarantees provided in respect of bank borrowings as mentioned
in note 25 to the financial statements, as at 31 December 2013, the Company
provided guarantees up to HK$249.0 million (31 December 2012: HK$232.6
million) in favour of financial institutions in respect of the securities and futures
trading limit and insurance brokerage limit granted to wholly-owned subsidiaries
principally engaged in the provision of securities and futures dealing and broking

services.

The Group had no other material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2013
and 31 December 2012.

32.

33.

-
g E
31 December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A

KeHEREFREE)
Hith S

AEEARRE BALAREE WER
AHEDRUEOHAXERREFRRE
REBEAZ R_T—=F+=A
=t+—B BHEBEAZINOA
V68 EEBTRITCABEBL(ZE
——F+-A=+-B: %)

HAEE
BT BB ERR NI R 25 R AT A0 RIRATIE
RETRBEMERIN RZF—ZF+=

A=+—8 AREATERSREE
HRHEEERELRENZENBA
AREFRBERIRBRRBELR
BREREERETRAEEZ 249088
BL(ZE——F+=-A=1+—H 12326
BEBT)MER -

RZE—=Ff+ZRA=+—HRKZ=%
—ZF+TZA=t—H FAEEUEH
tEAIABE -

EZEZZEBRERERAA
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31 December 2013
—E-=F1-A=+-A

34. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments of every Director of the Company paid/payable by the

Group for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013 are set out below:

Year ended 3| December 2013

Name of Director

£33

Executive Directors:

Yim Fung
Yao Wei®

Wong Tung Ching

Li Guangjie

Li Sang, Edward

Non-executive Directors: FFETTEE

Fu Tingmei®

Song Ming”

Tsang Yiu Keung®

HITEE

BEZ¢
Rao
8% 0

2013 Annual Report
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Directors’

fee
- E20E
HK$'000
TiEn

Salary and
allowance
FERRE
HK$'000
TR

Share
option
scheme
FRE
8
HK$'000
TiEn

34 EEREHREEEMS
@ E=EHe

AEEHE_E——FR-F—=
FH+_A=+—HILFEDHN/JE
MAERBSEZMHEHINMT

BE-E-=f+Z-A=t+—-HL
FE

Employer’s

Share  contribution

award  to pension

scheme scheme  Discretionary

RA%R EXmiie bonuses Total
i HERR BRRA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR




34.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

- - r -

—§F-=F1tZA=1-A

34, EEREREEEMS (&)

(continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) @ EBMe #)
Year ended 3| December 2012 HE-_Z——F=+-A=+—H1I
£E
Employer's
Share Share  contribution
option award  to pension
Directors Salary and scheme scheme scheme  Discretionary
Name of Director fee  alowance BRE ROZR EXmEne bonuses Total
Y g3 FeREM BE iR GEER BERA &3
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR TR TiEn TR TR TR TR
Beative Diectors: H7E% -
Yim Fung [ - 1944 3204 2642 14 14927 PINE]
Yao Wei® BE® = 47 - - - — 447
Wong Tung Ching 148 - 222 1,602 97 14 4872 9,706
Li Guangje 7N — |,667 801 09 14 1,176 3887
Li Sang, Edward 34 — 1590 80l 29 14 L6 3750
Non-executive Directors: #H7TEE -
Chen Geng? Bat o — - - - - - —
Fu Tingmei© BExo 300 - 267 — - - 567
Song Ming® REO 300 — 267 — — - 567
Tsang Yiu Keung® giERo 300 - 27 - - - 567
900 7,869 7209 4097 5 201 200

In addition to the directors’ emoluments disclosed above, Yao Wei received
allowance of HK$450,000 and discretionary bonus of approximately
HK$929,000 (2012: allowance of HK$150,000) from the Company's
intermediate holding company, Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited, for
the year ended 31 December 2013. No apportionment has been made
as the Directors consider that it is impracticable to apportion this amount

between this service to the Group and the intermediate holding company

BREXFRBENESMS K=
T—=F+-_A=Z1+—HLEF
B RERADRFRNERAR
BHEELLBIERARA MK
28 450,000/ 7T R BB TEALA
59290008 (ZF——F : &
Bh/%150,000/87C) - AREER
ROBMEREEEANZRA
ANRBETIERS - ke
HINREDE -

EZEZZEBRERERAA
2013 F ]
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SBEEN

31 December 2013
—E-=F+-A=+-H

34. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

@

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

(@)  Chen Geng resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 24 August
2012. Chen Geng waived emolument of HK$193,000 for the year ended 31
December 2012.

(b)  Yao Wei was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 24 August
2012 and resigned as an executive Director with effect from | September
2013.

() Independent Non-executive Directors

Save as Note (a) above, there was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the years.

As illustrated in the above table, during the year certain directors were
granted share options and awarded shares in respect of their services to
the Group under the share option scheme and the share award scheme
of the Company, further details of which are set out in notes 28 and 29
to the financial statements. The fair values of these options and awarded
shares, which have been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the current year is included in the above directors’

remuneration disclosures.
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19300078 7T ©
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34.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

Excluding amounts paid or payable by way of commission of sales generated
by the individuals, the five highest paid individuals during the year included
two (2012: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 34(a) above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three (2012:

three) highest paid individuals for the year are as follows:

34.

E?H%#ﬁ%%[‘ﬁ&

31 December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A

ESNEAEEEME (@)

(b)

EREHFMAL

BRUAERALTEERNEERENA
AT THEARFEIN - FRAN
EREMATRERA(Z

F:MEB)ES HFEMFBEER
EXF34G) c FREHR=ZR(Z

% ZH)RSFMALH
FMFEMT

2013 2012
—E-=f Z—ZT—-F
HK$000 HK$'000
TER TR
Salary and allowance 5,027 4,862
Share option scheme 780 1,602
Share award scheme R 15 S EyEt 2 1,716 442
Employer’s contribution to pension scheme BFmRARSTEIER 30 23
Discretionary bonuses 8,015 5,569
15,568 12,498

The emoluments of the highest-paid individuals of the Group fall within the

following bands:

REBSEHMALHHEN T
THE

Emolument bands
—HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
- HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
—HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
—HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
—HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000

—3,500,001 7 7T % 4,000,000 % 7T
—4,000,001 77T % 4,500,000 7T
—4,500,001 7 7T Z 5,000,000 % 7T
—5,000,001 7T % 5,500,000 7T
—5,500,001 7 7T Z 6,000,000 7T

2013 2012
—B-=F Z—Z——f
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET

- |

- 2

I —

I —_

I —

3 3

EZEZZEBRERERAA
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R YRR

31 December 2013
—F=FF-A=+-A
35. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 35, RETHELNRERE
2013 2012
—E-=f —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz TR
Cash flows from operating activities RETBHELENEESRE
Profit before tax B A& A 619,526 355,402
Adjustments for: L
Depreciation e 26,049 25943
Share-based compensation expense SARR A7 A EL 188 ) 5 B 7 29914 29,180
(Write back of)/impairment charge on EXREFBH(EE), HE
loans and advances to customers (14) 540
Impairment charge on accounts receivable FEUGRIE R B 222 5
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss REIHREREN
on held-to-maturity investments (Yz),/ BH#E (35) 208
675,662 411,278
(Increase)/decrease in other assets Hth&EGEM),/ B> (360) 90
Increase in financial assets at fair value BRATESABROER
through profit or loss Eﬁiﬂﬂ (501,497) (331,504)
Increase in loans and advances to customers HEBEPEFIEM (2,947,276) (994,435)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable FEW/TAIE)E% L/ (3h0) 24,084 (686,818)
Decrease in held-to-maturity investments REINRERS 77,555 —
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, BNRE - BE REME
deposits and other receivables WeERER D,/ (g ) 1,560 (4,866)
(Increase)/decrease in client trust bank balances BPEERITERCLEM), R (2,082,900) 237,827
Increase in accounts payable JEf FRIE 1L AN 2,164,562 484583
Increase in other payables and accrued liabilities H A IR K B 5 BRI N 44,007 17,234
Cash used in operations REXBHARS (2,544,603) (866,611)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBNEH (25,802) (49,426)
Net cash flows used in operating activities RETHYAREMEFH (2,570,405) (916,037)
Cash flows from operating activities included: REFHNRERERE -
~ Interest received —EBHE 417,197 278,806
— Interest paid —BfRFR 22,624 7,238
— Dividend received -EMRE 1,031 3228
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—§F-=F1tZA=1-A
36. MATURITY PROFILE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 3. EERBEBENIHER

An analysis of the maturity profile of certain assets and liabilities of the Group AEEETEEREERREPHE

analysed by the remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the EENEHEENNGIENESEBERS
contractual maturity date is as follows: g N
Up to | to 3to
| month 3 months 12 months | to 5 years Total
—-BAUT -Z=fA ZEt-@A —ZIfF EH

HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TR TR TR TR TER

As at 3| December 2013 R-BE-Zf+-A=+-H

Loans and advances to EXREFPBH
customers

Accounts receivable JEY B

Financial assets at fair value BATEG ARG
through profit or loss SREE

Client trust bank balances RPEARTER

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY

Accounts payable BB
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t B3RITE K
Debt securities in issue BETERES

HEEZEBRERERAA 173
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31 December 2013
—E-=F+-A=+-H

36.

MATURITY PROFILE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

3. EERGENIMERE)

Up to [ to 3to
| month 3 months [2months | to 5 years Total
—@AKT —Z=fA =E+ZfAF —ELfF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET FAET FHET FAET
As at 31 December 2012 R=ZB-=—F+=A=t-H
Held-to-maturity investments ~ # 22| Bi1R & — — 77,520 — 77,520
Loans and advances to customers EFRE P #7 2,750,038 — 267967 40,097 3,058,102
Accounts receivable FENR IR 1022639 162 386 — 1,023,187
Financial assets at fair value BATEMABENEMEE
through profit or loss — — — 406,344 406,344
Client trust bank balances RPEAFTES 5613936 270,005 — — 588394
Cash and cash equivalents e kA2 EEY 354,780 29,774 — - 384,554
9741393 299941 345873 446441 10833648
Accounts payable 3R (6,955,818) — — —  (6955818)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5F S3R{T{E R (739.820) — — — (739.820)
Debt securnities in issue BRTERES — (86,000 — — (86,000)
(7,695,638) (86,000) — —  (7781638)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in this maturity profile does not

include equity investments.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances set out elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Group had the following material transactions with related

parties during the year.

37.

hrnir iy

31 December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A

B¥ITRS

@ BREBBREATEINRSRE
oM RERERNFAEERTET
UTEARS °

Commission expenses to the X P RIEER DA
ultimate holding company MRER%

Professional and consultancy fees IRTRZMBARNFER
paid to a fellow subsidiary HAE

Management fee income and BARANERRER
performance fee income from a RAZHBEARIRE
private fund managed by a subsidiary ~ MIFLEESWEEERERA
of the Company and invested by RERERA
a fellow subsidiary

Commission income from REESKBNAS KA
the private fund

Management fee income and BARFZEMBARER

performance fee income of a private ~ XFEI R BRRIRE
fund managed by a wholly- owned MRS ES K
subsidiary of the Company and ERBRARKRERA
invested by a fellow subsidiary
Total fees received from a private fund FLEZE S WEHAE
Commission income of a public BRZMBERAERNAEES
fund managed by a fellow subsidiary ~ WERRIA S YA

Notes 2013 2012
B sE —E-=f —T——F
HK$'000 HK$000

T FET

0) (3016)
(i) (15,000)
(ii) 632
(v) 35
W) 15,362
(vi) 2,655
(vii) 949
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

37. BBARS(#)

176 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(@)  (continued) @ (&)
Notes 2013 2012
MieE  —B-=f ZF-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEL
Professional and consultancy fee paid ~ X TREZBRAFNEERANE
to the ultimate holding company (viii) (990)
Commission income from the BERENMERAFKBRNEE KA
intermediate holding company (ix) 583
Commission income from the BRRERD KB ASHA
ultimate holding company %) 59
Management fee income from public ~ BARFEZENBARER
funds managed by a wholly-owned REAZMBARIRER
subsidiary of the Company and REESUIMNEREKRA
invested by a fellow subsidiary (xi) 5518
Management fee income from public ~ BARFZENBARIER
funds managed by a wholly-owned RN ERA B
subsidiary of the Company and REEGWMERENA
controlled by intermediate holding
company (xii) —
Commission income from the RERE SR
investment funds (EEAON (xiii) 380
Management fee from a public fund ~ BAAFRZEMBARIEER
managed by a wholly-owned RNERAARENLEES
subsidiary of the Company and WEERBWA
invested by the intermediate
holding company. (xiv) —
Professional and consultancy fee paid X I FTHREBRARNEERARE
to the ultimate holding company (xv) —




37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(@)  (continued)

Notes:

0

(i)

()

Commission expenses to the ultimate holding company were calculated
based on the percentage of the transaction value stated in the Cooperation

Agreement signed with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Professional and consultancy fees paid to a fellow subsidiary for the provision
of capital market information was charged up to HK$ 1,250,000 per month for
the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$ 1,250,000 per month).

Management fee income and performance fee income received from a private
fund managed by a subsidiary of the Company and invested by a fellow
subsidiary were charged at 1.25% per annum of the net asset value at the last
working day of each month and 20% of the positive increment in the net asset
value for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013. The private fund was
fully redeemed by the fellow subsidiary on 31 December 2013.

Commission income received from the private fund mentioned in note (iii)

above was charged at 0.125% of the transaction value.

Management fee income and performance fee income received from a private
fund managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and invested
by a fellow subsidiary were charged at |.5% per annum of the net asset value
at the last working day of each month and 20% of the positive increment in
the NAV for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013. The fund was
terminated on 23 August 2013.

Total fees received from the private fund mentioned in note (v) above
included commission income which was based on 0.25% of the transaction
value and interest income which was based on an annual rate of 3% over the
best lending rate on Hong Kong dollars on its overdue amount and other

handling income.

g E
31 December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A

37. BEBARS(E)

@ (&)

(i)

(vi)

XN FREERA AN EH
XTREARRN K2 AW
BRRIFELN AR
RSGEBNLAE -

HE-_ZT—=F+-A=1+—
B FEFR R HB A ARG
BERMGERNEERZAE
%8 A KD 1,250,000/ L3 f+f
(ZZ—=%F: §A1250000
BT
BARAIMBARERRRAZR
B RRENLEES I
HEBEWRARKRERAR
HE-"T——FR-"T—=F
T A=t HIFEEAR
B—REIEEMEEFESTF
1.25% DA ] & B FE L INEE /Y
0% 4B - ZAEEEN T
—=ZF+-A=t-HaRZE
MBARZHERD -
ERSCEIOERIER -5
W) 1 & WA IR R 5 B /)
0.125% M o

BARAIZEMBRAIEER
RRMNBARNRENLEES
WEKEEBRARKEEIR
ANREBE-_Z—Z—FR=F
—=f+-B=1+—HIFE
ERBE—AIERNEES
EEF | 5% AR EEFEEM
BH20% M E - ZESERZ
E-=FENA-+=BKIL-

BHf WML EES KR
MEBEREERMEBAER
H1ER0.25% 18 ) RF B KA
(RBHFRFE  FAER
REERNRINN3%) REMTF
BEYA -

BEZRERERAERAT

2013 F ]

177
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RPNy e

SE-ZF+-AZtA

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(@)  (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(vi)

(viii)

(i)

(xii)

Commission income received from a public fund managed by a fellow
subsidiary was based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement

with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The professional and consultancy fee paid to the ultimate holding company
was based on the usage of research reports and financial advisory services
provided to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company principally engaged in

the provision of securities dealing and broking services.

The commission income received from the intermediate holding company was
based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement with a wholly-

owned subsidiary of the Company.

The commission income received from the ultimate holding company was
calculated based on a percentage stated in the respective signed brokerage

agreement with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The management fee income received from a public fund (2012: three)
managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and invested by a
fellow subsidiary was charged based on percentage prescribed in respective
investment management agreement for the years ended 31 December 2012
and 2013.

The management fee income received from two public funds managed by a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and controlled by the intermediate
holding company was charged based on percentage prescribed in respective

investment management agreement for the year ended 31 December 201 3.

The commission income received from investment fund mentioned in note (xi)
(2012: two of the three investment funds) above was based on a percentage
stated in the respective signed brokerage agreement with a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company.
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37. BBAERZ(E)
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(v

()

()

(i)

(xii)
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IR AR E A E R
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AL LR LUty
TEEURER -
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ANBREARNE—RK2EMBA
RIFRAIN R DL ez At
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BEARRIZENBRAIEER
RAREMBARKREN—HE(Z
T—ZF: ZH)REESW
PHERBRAZHEEZE-T
——FRZZE-—ZF+_A
=T —RIEFEMERIREE
BB FE B D EURER -

BARRIZEMBLARERR
R ER A AR B A
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(@)  (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xiv)

(xvii)

(xvii)

The management fee income received from the public fund managed by a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and invested by the intermediate
holding company was charged based on percentage prescribed in the

investment management agreement for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Apart from note(viii) disclosed above, the professional and consultancy fee
paid to the ultimate holding company was based on the usage of research
reports and financial advisory services provided to another wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company principally engaged in the provision of futures

dealing and broking services.

Included in the Group's accounts payable is a broker payable due to the
ultimate holding company of HK$12,238,000 (2012: HK$72,321,000) arising
from dealing in securities as at 31 December 2013. The balance is unsecured,
interest-free and payable on the settlement day under the relevant market

practices.

Included in the Group's accounts receivable is a broker receivable due from
the ultimate holding company of HK$22,993,000 (2012: HK$49,659,000)
arising from dealing in securities as at 31 December 2013. The credit terms
provided to the ultimate holding company are consistent with the practice
of the securities dealing industry. The balance is unsecured, interest-free and

payable on the settlement day under the relevant market practices.

Included in the accounts receivable are management fee and performance fee
receivables due from investment funds managed by the Group mentioned
above HK$833,000 (2012: HK$11,216,000) arising from the provision of asset
management services as at 31 December 2013. The balances are unsecured,

interest-free and receivable monthly in arrears.

ISR M

37. BBAERS(E)

@ (&)

Bt -

(xiv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xvii)

31 December 2013
ZE-=FtA=1—A

(#&)
BAARIZEMBRRIEER

BNERARRENRERES
WBNERBRAREZE-Z
*E¢+—H:+*H¢¢F
MREEBRERENED
URER

B b SRR E (vil) BT 2 5 F &%
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(@)  (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xix)

Included in the Group's accounts payable are the accounts payable to certain
investment funds mentioned in notes (iii), (v) and (xii) arising from dealing in
securities in an aggregate amount of HK$ 119,000 (2012: HK$13,570,000) as
at 31 December 2013. The Group has a practice to satisfy all requests for

payment within one business day.

Included in the Group’s accounts receivable are the accounts receivable from
the private fund mentioned in note (iii) above which is HK$2,665,000 as at 3|

December 2012. There was no such balance as at 31 December 201 3.

Included in the client trust bank balance is a deposit from an intermediate
holding company which is HK$ 18,106,000 as at 31 December 2012. There

was no such balance as at 31 December 2013.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

(continued)

The Group's ultimate holding company, Guotai Junan is subject to the
control of the PRC Government which also controls a significant portion
of assets and entities in the PRC (collectively referred to as “state-owned
enterprises”). Therefore transactions with state-owned enterprises are

regarded as related party transactions.

Majority of the bank borrowings and deposits of the Group were entered
into with state-owned banks. In addition, the Group entered into transaction
with state-owned enterprises that relates to the Group’s normal business
activities, including but not limited to brokerage services, corporate finance
business, asset management business, lending business, and investment
holding. These transactions are entered into in the ordinary course of
business at an arm's length and under the normal commercial terms and
conditions as to those that would have been entered into with non-state-
owned enterprises, which were not considered as individually significant in
accordance with HKAS 24.

The related party transactions in respect of items (i), (ii), (v) to (x), (xii), (xv)
and note 20(a)(ii) above also constitute connected transactions or continuing

connected transactions as defined in Chapter 4A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the remuneration of the key management personnel of the Group

are disclosed in note 34.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and monitoring of these risks which are an inevitable consequence of
being in business. The Group's aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance
between risk and return and minimise a potential adverse effect on the Group's

financial performance.

The Group's risk management policies are approved by the Board of Directors
and are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable
and up-to-date information. The Board of Directors provides written principles for
overall risk management. The Group regularly reviews its risk management policies

to reflect any change in the market and clients.

The Group's principal financial assets and liabilities comprise cash and short term
deposits maintained as working capital as well as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and bank borrowings. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as loans and advances to customers and accounts receivable as
well as accounts payable and debt securities in issue, which arise directly from its

operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are credit risk, market
risk and liquidity risk. The policies for managing each of these risks are summarised

below:

Credit risk

Credit exposures arise principally from loans and advances to customers, accounts
receivable from clients, brokers and dealers, corporate clients and investment funds,
debt securities, bank balances and client trust bank balances which are included in

the Group's asset portfolio.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Board of Directors delegates to the Credit Committee the duties to monitor
the credit risk of the Group. Members of the Credit Committee include, inter alia,
the Chief Executive Officer, Responsible Officers, the Chief Financial Officer and
the Head of Credit and Risk Management Department. The Credit Committee is
responsible for the development of financing business and approval of major credit

EXposure.

The Credit and Risk Management Department is responsible for approval,
monitoring and review of the Group's credit risk. It is also responsible for making
settlement calls when the trades of margin clients exceed their respective limits.
Failure to meet margin calls may result in liquidation of the client's position. The
credit limit and margin limit for each client and the lending ratio of securities
acceptable as margin collateral prepared by the Credit and Risk Management

Department will be further approved by the Credit Committee.

The Group also grants term loans to customers that may contain an element of
credit risk. The Group minimises such risk exposure by performing a detailed credit
analysis, and dedicated professionals are assigned to oversee and monitor the
performance. These key investment decisions are also subject to approval by the

Credit Committee.

Loans and advances to customers including IPO loans for subscription of new
shares are normally settled within | week from the drawdown date. Forced
liquidation action would be taken if the customers fail to settle their shortfall within

a specific period of tolerance after the IPO allotment result is announced.

For debt securities, external rating such as Standard & Poor's and Moody's ratings
or their equivalents are used by the Credit and Risk Management Department for
managing credit risk exposures as supplemented by the Group's own assessment

through the use of internal rating tools.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

The Group's bank balances are deposited in respectable, large commercial banks.
For the client trust bank balances which are held in segregated accounts, they are
deposited in authorised financial institutions in Hong Kong. The credit risk of bank

balances and client trust bank balances are considered to be manageable.

Accounts receivable from clients represent receivables from clients arising from
dealing in securities, which normally had a delivery-against payment settlement
term of 2 to 3 days. The Group allows credit up to the settlement dates of
the respective securities transactions (normally within T+2 or T+3 days). All
applications for credit limits must be reviewed by the Credit Manager and approved
by the Credit Committee. However, no credit limit would be granted to new
clients. The Credit and Risk Management Department determines whether a forced
liquidation action is to be taken against clients with overdue balances on a case-by-

case basis. The Credit Committee regularly reviews the overdue balances.

The Group only accepts margin deposits in the form of cash for futures and leveraged
foreign exchange dealing and broking. No transaction is allowed to be executed if the
current position of the customer exceeds its trading limit. The margin deposit placed
and the aggregate of the required margin deposits of each futures and leveraged foreign
exchange contract are timely monitored by both the dealers and the Credit and Risk
Management Department. Margin calls will be executed by the on-site duty staff for
futures and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking if there is a deficit with the
margin deposit. Forced liquidation of the customer’s position will be executed if the

customer fails to meet the margin calls.

With the above stated controls, management is confident that the credit risk of the
Group resulting from securities, futures and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and

broking as well as margin and other loan financing is manageable.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

Accounts receivable from brokers and dealers are placed with large financial
institutions which are governed by regulators including the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (the "HKMA") and the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission
(the "SFC"). The credit risk of accounts receivable from brokers and dealers is

considered to be manageable.

The credit risk of accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment
funds arising from corporate finance, asset management and investment holding is

manageable as the credit rating and reputation of trade counterparties are sound.

Accounts receivable from the Stock Exchange and other clearing houses and other
assets which are mainly deposits placed with the regulators are considered to have

minimal credit risk.

Impairment and provisioning policies

The Group's credit and risk management policy requires the review of individual
outstanding amounts at least monthly or more regularly depending on individual
circumstances or market condition. Impairment allowances on individually assessed
accounts are determined by an evaluation of the incurred loss at the end of the
reporting period on a case-by-case basis, and are applied to all individually significant
accounts. The assessment normally encompasses collateral held and the anticipated
receipts for that individual account. Generally, impairment allowances will be
provided when clients fail to meet margin call requirements and clients” collateral

are insufficient to cover their outstanding loan balances.

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit

enhancement

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the counterparties
fail to perform their obligations as at the end of the reporting period, in relation to
each class of financial assets, is the carrying amount of those assets as indicated in

the statement of financial position.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit

enhancement (continued)

These amounts represent the worst case scenario of credit risk exposure to the
Group at 31 December 2012 and 2013, without taking account of any collateral

held or other credit enhancements attached.

The Company is also exposed to credit risk through the granting of financial
guarantees, further details of which are disclosed in note 33 to the financial

statements.

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(@)  Bankbalances and client trust bank balances

The counterparties of all client trust bank balances and the majority of cash
and bank balances are located in Hong Kong, As the Group's bank balances
and client trust bank balances are deposited with a number of financially
sound financial institutions, in the opinion of the directors, the concentration
risk of the Group's bank balances and client trust bank balances is

insignificant.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure (continued)

Loans and advances to customers and accounts receivable from clients

The counterparties of the majority of loans and advances to customers
(including margin loans, IPO loans and other loan financing) and accounts
receivable from clients are individuals who are mainly located in China. The
Credit and Risk Management Department daily prepares key margin client
and future and leveraged foreign exchange client exposure for review to
avoid excessive concentration risk. As the Group trades with a large number
of diversified clients, in the opinion of the directors, the concentration risk
of loans and advances to customers and accounts receivable from clients is

manageable.

Accounts receivable from brokers, dealers as well as clearing houses and

others

The Group also has accounts receivable from clearing houses, brokers and
dealers from its securities, derivative and leveraged foreign exchange broking
and dealing as well as other receivables from asset management, corporate
finance and investment holdings. Responsible Officers timely monitor excess
deposits placed with dealers and brokers to ensure the concentration risk of

accounts receivable is manageable.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Stock borrowing and lending

In the normal course of business, the Group may enter into stock borrowing and
lending arrangements with financial institution and the Group's customers. As at
31 December 2013, the Group borrowed equity securities of HK$123,780,000
(2012: HK$41,230,000) from financial institutions as well as equity securities
of HK$97,285,000 (2012: HK$94,025,000) pledged by margin clients, for such
lending arrangements to the customers. Cash collateral of HK$250,790,000 (2012:
HK$147,535,000) was received from the customers while HK$ 132,314,000 (2012:
HK$43,288,000) was placed to the financial institutions.

The Group also borrowed exchange-traded funds of HK$2,802,000 (2012:
HK$10,583,000) from a financial institution for the market making activities and
placed HK$2,943,000 (2012: HK$11,115,000) to the financial institutions as cash

collateral as at 31 December 201 3.

The Group maintains no net position in such stock borrowing and lending
transactions and is not subject to significant price risk. However, under the stock
borrowings and lending arrangement, the cash collateral received and cash
collateral placed is included in the account payable to client and account receivable
from brokers and dealers respectively. The Group is principally liable to repay the

borrowed securities in case of any default by the customers.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency
and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market
movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as

interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

The financial instruments held by the Group mainly exposed it to interest rate
risk and price risk. The market risk mainly includes cash flow interest rate risk and
price risk. The Group has established policies and procedures for monitoring and

controlling the market risk arising from these financial instruments.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group's loans and advances to customers, accounts receivable,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, accounts payable to clients, bank
borrowings, debt securities in issue, client trust bank balances and cash and bank

balances.

Interest on cash at banks will fluctuate at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Bank borrowings and margin loans receivable at variable rates exposed
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Debt investments held for trading are
expected to be traded within a short period of time and their interest rate risk
is considered to be minimal. Other financial assets and liabilities are non-interest-
bearing or fixed interest bearing with short term maturities within one year, of
which the interest rate risk is also considered to be minimal. The Group mitigates
its interest rate risk by monitoring market interest rate movements and revising the
interest rates offered to its customers on an ongoing basis in order to limit potential
adverse effects of interest rate movements on net interest income. The Group
regularly calculates the impact on profit or loss of a possible interest rate shift on
its portfolio of bank borrowings, margin loans receivable and interest-bearing bank

deposits.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

If there would be a general increase/decrease in the interest rate by one percentage
point, with all other variables held constant, the profit before tax for the year
ended 3| December 2013 would have been increased/decreased by approximately
HK$107.5 million (2012: HK$85 million). The estimated one percentage point
increase or decrease represents management's assessment of a reasonably possible

change in interest rates over the period until the next annual reporting period.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk from equity instruments and
unlisted debt investments held by the Group which are classified in the statement
of financial position as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Price risk is
the risk of changes in fair value of financial instruments from fluctuations, whether
such a change in price is caused by factors specific to the individual instrument
or factors affecting all instruments traded in the markets. The Group mitigates its
price risk by performing detailed due diligence analysis of investment and dedicated

professionals are assigned to oversee and monitor the performance of investments.

At 31 December 2013, the profit before tax would increase/decrease by HK$15.9
million for the financial assets held for trading (2012: HK$6.0 million) should the
Hang Seng Index (the “HSI") increase/decrease by 10% (2012: 10%). The analysis
is based on the assumption that all the equity instruments and unlisted debt
investments move according to the historical correlation with the HSI and with all

other variables held constant.

The listed debt investments held by the Group is not subject to significant price
risk exposure as they are managed for the market-making activities or holding for a

short period of time.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Price risk (continued)

The asset quality of the margin clients’ margin collateral will deteriorate when the
market comes down drastically. Scenario analysis and stress testing are regularly

performed on an individual client basis.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movements in foreign currency
exchange rates will affect the Group's financial results and its cash flows.
Management considers the Group is not exposed to significant foreign currency
risk as the majority of its operations and transactions are in Hong Kong and

denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.

For leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking, stringent control over the open
position has been adopted. In the opinion of the directors, the foreign exchange

risk of the Group is considered to be manageable.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash, the availability
of funding from an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to
close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business,
the Finance Department maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining available

committed credit facilities from the banks.

Sources of liquidity are daily reviewed by the Finance Department to ensure the

availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all obligations.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity reserve (comprising
undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of
expected cash flows in strict compliance with statutory requirements. This is
achieved by monitoring the liquidity position of the individual companies within the
Group on a daily basis to ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all
obligations and compliance with the statutory requirements such as the Hong Kong

Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules.
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31 December 2013
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 8. SREARER#)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBELER(E)
The following table summarises the maturity profiles of the Group and Company’s BEANRAGEBRESRE TR
financial liabilities, based on the contractual and undiscounted cash flows, and AEENAREcHEENIBER
financial assets (undiscounted where appropriate) in order to provide a complete hemEERER(MER))  IRE
view of the Group and Company's contractual commitments and liquidity. AEBRARNATEBHAHNEAERR
As at 3| December 2013 R-BE-=%+-A=t-H
Group KEE
3to
Up to [to 12 months I to Over  Indefinite'
[ month 3 months =z 5 years 5 years BRE Total
-BARm -Z=@R T=fA -ZIf fbik:d R hy
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$000  HK$'000
FET FhER TER FHER TER TER FHER
Assets EE
Loans and advances to customers B REP BN
Accounts receivable fElEE
Financial assets at fair value BATET AR
through profit or loss SREE
Client trust bank balances EPELRTER
Cash and cash equivalents BERAEEED
Liabiliies a8f
Accounts payable FERTFIE
Other payables EthENTE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5T BIR{T{EH
Debt securities in issue BETEEES
Net on-balance sheet financial EESERTH
position BHHRR
Off-balance sheet items EEAERMER
Underwriting obligations 2 EES
Financial obligations MBER
Capital commitment BRAE
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2013 (continued)

Company

Assets BE

Due from a subsidiary FEYMBARE

Cash and cash equivalents RERAEEEN

Liabilties af

Debt securities in issue BRERE

Net on-balance sheet BERERT
financial position WETH R

Off-balance sheet items BEEEXIMER

Financial guarantees to subsidiaries AT B A B fEL MBI £ 1R

Up to [ to

[ month 3 months
—-fBAR —Z=fA
HK$000  HK$'000
TéEn  THEn

31 December 2013
ZE-ZF1ZA=+-H

38. CRIAKRER#)

3to

12 months
=z
tZf8A
HK$'000
Thn

! Indefinite represents equity investments with no contractual maturity date and debt

investments held for trading.

RBESERE)

R-ZB-=F+=A=+—-H(#&)

ARF

I to Over  Indefinite'
5 years 5 years BRE Total
-ER%  @Rf R @zt
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000

TEéx  TExr  TEx  TER

ERERARESNIHANKER
BRBEEEMEBRE -

EEZZEBRERERAA 193
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31 December 2013
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. SREKRER#)
Liquidity risk (continued) RBESRER(E)
As at 3| December 2012 RZE——"F+-A=+—H
Group K%M
It 3to
Upto  3months 2 months [ to Over  Indefinite!
| month 2= -z 5 years 5 years BRE Total
—fEARA @R +=EA -ZR% ALF R @t
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKF000  HKPO00  HKFO00  HKHO0O
TEr  ThAr  TEr  TEx  TEr  TET TR
Assets EE
Held-to-maturity investrents BEYHRE — 2907 80427 — — — 83334
Loans and advances to customers ~ EFREF RN 2750347 4460 29415 42080 - — 3076302
Accounts receivable YA 1,022,639 162 386 — — — 1023187
Financial assets at fair value BATE ABRH
through profit or loss EREE — — — — — 482,220 482,220
Client trust bank balances BPERRTER 5619027 270725 — — — — 588975
Cash and cash equivalents BERBEEEN 35495 29847 - - — — 384803
9,746969 308,101 360,228 42,080 — 482220 10939598
Liabilities aff
Accounts payable 508 (6955818) — — — — —  (6955818)
Other payable Bt NI 017) — - - — - (2017)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5t 2 RITEH (740819) — - - — —  (740819)
Debt securities in issue BETERES - (86,203) — - - — (86,203)
(7,698,654) (86203) — — — —  (7784857)
Net on-balance sheet EEGERTH
financial position BHRR 248315 220898 360228 42080 — 400 35474
Off-balance sheet items EESERINMER
Capital committment BARAE 2103 — — — — — 2103
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38.

B R MR

-

31 December 2013

—§F-=F1tZA=1-A

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. SEEARERZ)
Liquidity risk (continued) RBESRER(E)
As at 31 December 2012 (continued) R-_Z——F+-A=+—H(E)
Company PN
310
Upto [to 12 months [ to Over  Indefinite!
I'month 3 months =z 5 years 5 years BT Total
—[@AR —E=@A +-@A -En%¥ BIF R @t
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$OOO  HK$O000  HK$000  HKHOOO
TET TEr TEn  TEr TEr  TET  TERn
Assets EE
Due from a subsidiary R BEARNE 1,721,614 — - - — — 1l
Cash and cash equivalents RERAEEEN 521 — — — — — 921
1,722,135 — — — — — 1722135
Liabiliies af
Debt securities in issue BEITERE — (86203 - - — — (86203
Net on-balance sheet EERERY
financial position et AR 1722135 (86203) — — — — 1635932
Off-balance sheet items EEAERIMER
Financial guarantees to subsidiaries  [EIf1 B 2 AL OB B B IR 762600 — — — — — 762600

Indefinite represents equity investments with no contractual maturity date and debt

investments held for trading.

ERERAREESNIHENKRER
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31 December 2013
—E—=Ff-f=1—H
38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

At the end of the reporting period, the fair values of the Group's financial assets
and liabilities not measured at fair value are not materially different from their

carrying amount due to their short term nature.

Financial instruments measured at fair value
Group's valuation process

The Level | and Level 2 fair value of financial assets are measured by reference to
quoted market prices and brokers’ quotes, respectively. The Group has engaged
an independent professionally qualified valuer, International Valuation Limited, to
perform the valuation of financial instruments in Level 3 for financial reporting
purposes. These valuation reports are sent to the Accounting Department and the
Audit Committee for discussion at least twice per annum, which is in line with the

Group's reporting dates.

At each financial year end, the Accounting Department reviews all significant
unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments used to measure the fair value of
financial instruments in Level 3. Changes in fair values of Levels 2 and 3 financial

assets are analysed at each reporting date.

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's

financial instruments:

196 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2013 Annual Report

SHERERE)
THEERAENATE

WHERFEGTEN A LA

NG REERE  AEBELFRATF
B ENEREENAENATERZ
TEERAENEBEEMEAREE
BEAER -

BEAFEGTENTHTA
AEEOEERE

FIBRERERMBENDFETID A
SENSRENELEENE - F5HE
ERBBUEXABRMEMBERTE
BRARHEIRERMTRETHE "
DMERTSERRA M) - ZFMERSHE
FEIMR (BAKENHREEH—
B) 2EATEMELERZREE  UH

EECR

REMRFER - St HEHAEAR
AEEMRERTARFENENEE
BRE2BMEEHRE - F2ARFRE
BEENRTEZIN SRS AET
AT

TREAXEEEBTANLFEHE

ST



BBEER

3/ December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A
38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 8. cREARER#Z)
CRMEEREBNATEE)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value hierarchy

As at 31 December 2013

AHEEFR
R-B-=f+-A=1-H

Fair value measurement using

RANTEENAVENE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
ER EATE  BEAEAR
mEHE Z28 BE2E

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B1&R) (28 (FE3R) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TR TR

Financial assets held for trading
— Listed equity investments
— Listed debt investments
— Unlisted debt investments
Financial assets designated as at

fair value through profit or loss

— Unlisted convertible promissory note

RIFEESMEE
— EMBRARE
- tHEHRE
—FLEMEHRE
BT A FER ARG
TREE
—FEMABRERE

Total assets

BERE

EEZZEBRERERAA 197
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

As at 31 December 2012

38. CRIAKRER#)
SREERGENATEE)

BAFEGTENTHBIAE)

RNFHEER(E)

RZ_E——F+-A=1+—H

Fair value measurement using

REATEROLTEHE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BB BAWE  EAEA
mi5RE R2H  BR2¥™

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B (E28 (B38) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR THT TET
Financial assets held for trading HIEEBSRAE
— Listed equity investments — FTRARE 75,876 — — 75,876
— Listed debt investments - tHEHRE — 288,100 — 288,100
Financial assets designated as at EERLTETABRN
fair value through profit or loss PREE
— Unlisted convertible promissory note ~ — 3 _E T [ AR 2 455 — — 118244 118,244
Total assets BERE 75876 288,100 118244 482,220
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(@)

Financial instruments in Level |

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based
on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting periods. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm'’s length basis. The quoted market

price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
(for example, over-the-counter) is determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.
If all significant inputs used in the valuation for financial instruments are

observable, the financial instruments are included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market

data, the financial instrument is included in Level 3.

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013, there were no

transfers of fair value measurement between Level | and Level 2.

YL P —
g E
31 December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A
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31 December 2013
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

() Financial instruments in Level 3

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 instruments of financial

instruments for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013,

For the year ended 31 December 2013

38. SREREEE)
LREERBENATLES)

BRAFEAENZBTA(E)

(0 H3meEMIA

TRENEZ-ZE—-FR-F
—:$+—H—+—H¢¢E*%

BE-B-=f+t-A=t-HL
£E

Unlisted
Convertible

Unlisted debt Promissory

investments Note
FELEH El i Total
BEERE FTRREE st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRRT TERT TERT

At | January 2013
Purchases
Accrued interest income
Receipt of interest income
Net gain recognised

in profit or loss

Transfer out to Level |

—E-=%-f-H
ﬁﬁ
FEE R BMA
HeER A B

RIBZE MR B8
BREE IR

At 31 December 2013

R-E—=%+-A=1+—H
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38.

B RENE

31 December 2013
—§F-=F1tZA=1-A
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. SEEARERZ)
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) CRMEEREBNATEE)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BRFEGTENEHIA(E)
(c)  Finandial instruments in Level 3 (continued) € HIRGRIAE)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE-Z——F+-A=+—HL
FE
Unlisted
Unlisted Convertible
equity Promissory
investments Note
e il e il Total
BRERE  AHRERRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FET
At | January 2012 R-E——%—H—H 39,000 60,109 99,109
Accrued interest income FEETF SN — 2,780 2,780
Receipt of interest income WERF) S A — (2,775) (2,775)
Net gain recognised R AR e F
in profit or loss — 58,130 58,130
Transfer out to Level | HEEE IR (39,000) — (39,000)
At 3| December 2012 NZ_F——F+-A=1+—H — 118244 118,244

EEZEBEBRERERAA 201
2013 F ]
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38.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Group's valuation process

38.

SHERERE)
SHEERABNATYEE)

BAFEGTENTHBIAE)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of financial

instruments as at 31 December 2013:

Valuation

technique Significant unobservable input

fhER ERELERSH

Average/Range
4,/ &6E

AKEMBERRE

TXRERIAR-ZT—=F1+=A
St RRENEREZBER28M

Sensitivity of the input to fair value

SHHDVENHRE

Unlisted debt investments Binomial pricing  Credit spread above risk free rate
model
FEMEBRE “EAEEEY SRERRMENEES
Unlisted Convertible Binomial pricing ~ Pricing multiples of market
Promissory Note model comparable companies used to

determine the estimated equity
value of the Project Company:
— Price to revenue muttiple
— Price to book multiple

— Price to eamings multiple

K LHTRRES “EARERY ARBREE AR REE
EHTSTALBATNEE
g
-
-
Rt
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79% - 14.6%

7.9%-14.6%

1.6
2
220

1.6
2
220

2% increase or decrease in the credit spread
above the risk-frree rate, the fair value would
be decreased by HK$ 1.6 million or increased
by HK$1.7 million, respectively.
BRERBAENEESEEMAR
D2% RFERDRRL 16 BEE
TTEIEM I TREAT

[0% increase or decrease in the pricing
multiples, the fair value would be increased
by HK$7.8 million or decreased by HK$7.8

million, respectively.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Capital management

The Group's objectives for managing capital, which represent a broader concept

than the “equity” on the face of the statement of financial position, are:

. To comply with the capital requirements under the Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules for its subsidiaries which are licensed

corporations;

. To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern so that it
can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other

stakeholders;
. To support the Group's stability and growth; and

. To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

The liquid capital is monitored daily by each individual licensed subsidiary's
management based on the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules. The
required information is filed with the SFC on a timely basis. The SFC requires each
licensed corporation to maintain a level of required liquid capital which is the higher
of the floor requirement ranging from HK$0.1 million to HK$15 million and 5% of
the aggregate of its adjusted liabilities and clients” margin. All licensed corporations
within the Group complied with their required liquid capital during the years ended
31 December 2013 and 2012.

The capital of the Group mainly comprises its total equity.

38.
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31 December 2013
ZE=Ff_fA=1-H
39. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 39.
The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the Continuous Net
Settlement (CNS) money obligations receivable and trade payable with HKSCC
and it intends to settle on a net basis as accounts receivable from or accounts
payable to the Stock Exchange. For the net amount of CNS money obligations
receivable or payable with HKSCC and guarantee fund pledged in HKSCC, they do
not meet the criteria for offsetting in the financial statements and the Group does
not intend to settle the balances on a net basis.
Gross amount
of recognised
financial
(assets)/
liabilities
Gross amount offset

of recognised in the financial

financial assets/

statements

(labilities) ~ FAB B &
BERER HHCER

EHCREERSRUAE

AERE B AR QAR RITENEHE
ERAGENREFERR(BEFER
WO REBERER 7 N FUR - WHIFR
EEERRRIENBITEREE
HEBEENREFRRIWELRLE
HERAFARN BB T EFRIRE
X FHERPHREAEHORE -
AEETRRFREREE ARG

Net amount  Related amount
of financial not set off
liabilities i the statement
reflected in of financial

the financial position

statements BENN
REBHRE  BBRRE

EE/(8f) <SR(EE)/ 23ped EHH Net
L afEaR aERE FHLHE BH
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn

As at 31 December 2013 R=B-=#+ZA=1-H
CNS money obligation receivable  FEEFBRIMEIKER 641,967 (641,967) = = =

CNS money obligation

payable (Note 23) BEFERMERR(NE2) (703,242) 641,967 (61,275) — (61,275)
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-

B R MR

31 December 2013
ZF=Ff-A=1-A
OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 39. BHLREEHESRERFZ)
(continued)
Gross amount
of recognised
financial
(assets)/ Related amount
liabilities  Net amount of not set off
Gross amount offset  financial assets in the statement
of recognised  in the financial reflected in of financial
financial assets/ statements the financial position
(labilties) — WREIH|MK  statements EAR
EEISR HEHCER  RUBERR  HBHARR
BE/(RfE) SR(EE)/ EiMeR gl Net
it AEER EERE REcE ik
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET TR TER
As at 3| December 2012 RZE-ZF+ZA=1—H
CNS money obligation receivable 54 R MU R 1,527,364 (1,275905) 251,459 — 251,459
CNS money obligation
payable (Note 23) BRI ER (Fif 5 23) (1275905) 1,275,905 — — —
The “net amount of financial assets reflected in the financial statements”, as set out FXRENREBRRRRNERE
above, is included in “accounts receivable arising from, dealing and broking — the EFEIORERTISNIEERELE
Stock Exchange and other clearing house” in note |8. BEENEKRE-BIMREMEE

File
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40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 10 January 2014, 50,000,000 share options have been granted to the directors
and employees with an exercise price of HK$3.82 per share. One-third of the
share options granted will be vested on the first, second and third anniversaries
of the date of grant, respectively. The option period of the share options is from
10 January 2014 to 9 January 2024. Among the share options granted, a total of
9,750,000 share options were granted to directors of the Company. The closing
price of the Company's shares on the date of grant of the share options was
HK$3.82 per share.

On 17 January 2014, in addition to the guarantee provided by the Company in
respect of bank borrowings as mentioned in note 25, the Company provided
another guarantee of up to HK$200 million in favour of a financial institution in

respect of bank borrowings of a wholly-owned subsidiary.

On 29 January 2014, the Company (as guarantor) and its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited (as borrower) entered into a facility agreement
with certain financial institutions (the “Lenders”) in respect of a revolving loan
facility and a term loan facility in an aggregate amount of HK$3.3 billion for a term
of 3 years. Under the facility agreement, it will be an event of default if Guotai Junan
ceased to directly or indirectly own, legally and beneficially, at least 51% of the

share capital of the Company.
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